
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Hamilton High School Library/Zoom/Facebook Live 
Wednesday, December 9, 2020 

5:30 p.m. Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:30 p.m. Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

Hamilton Unified School District Board Meetings are open to the public. We are still adhering to social distancing for 
public safety so in-person seating capacity in the Hamilton High School Library is limited to thirteen attendees.  
As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will continue to conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further 
notice. Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through 
the below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86857369649?pwd=ZlhWUHExSW5vSXVIZk1JWmJBZjNvdz09 

Meeting ID: 868 5736 9649 
Passcode: board 

Dial in by phone: 
+1 669 900 6833

Meeting ID: 868 5736 9649 
Passcode: 712410 

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 
a. Call to order and roll call

_______Gabriel Leal, President _______Hubert “Wendell” Lower, Clerk _______Rod Boone 
_______Genaro Reyes _______Ray Odom 

2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 
may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. 

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 
a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,

resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.
b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation. Government Code section 54957, subdivision (b)(1). Superintendent.
c. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator,

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.
d. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified

School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394.
e. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School,

approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties:
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

f. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr.
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamilton Teachers Association.

Report out action taken in closed session.

Page 1

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86857369649?pwd%3DZlhWUHExSW5vSXVIZk1JWmJBZjNvdz09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1605045145181000&usg=AOvVaw0TYrJrI3nvZEr3dKi6TVSI


 
 

5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:   
 

6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 
 

7.0 ADJOURN TO ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
a. Administration of oath of office for re-appointed board members 

i. Rod T. Boone  
ii. Hubert “Wendell” Lower 

iii. Juan Gabriel Leal 
b. Seating of board members 

i. Board President: Elect Board President for the 2021 year. 
ii. Board Clerk: Elect Board Clerk for the 2021 year. 

iii. Meeting Dates: Set day, time and location of regular monthly meetings for the 2021 year. 
c. Set board meeting dates for 2021 (p. 9) 

 
8.0 CLOSE ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING AND REOPEN REGULAR MEETING 

 
9.0   COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 

a. Board Member Comments/Reports. 
b. District Reports (written) 

i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (p. 10) 
ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 11) 

iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p.12) 
c. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 

i. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 13) 
ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (p. 14) 

iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 15) 
iv. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 17) 

d. Chief Business Official Summary of 2020-21 First Interim Report by Kristen Hamman (p. 18) 
e. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (p. 168) 

 
10.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a.  None 
 

11.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 
12.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 

a. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years (p. 169) 
b. Bond Satus (Fund 21) Update (p.170)  
c. Update on Roy Boone Memorial Barn Project – Mike Cannon (p. 173) 
d. HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update – Mike Cannon (p. 174) 

 
13.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a. CSBA Policies for Review and 1st Reading (p. 176) 
i. Exhibit E 1113 (New Exhibit) District and School Web Sites (p. 182) 

ii. Board Policy BP 3280 Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property (p. 186) 
iii. Board Policy BP 3530 Risk Management Insurance (p. 194) 
iv. Administrative Regulation AR 3530 Risk Management Insurance (p. 197) 
v. Board Policies BP 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 Sexual Harassment (p. 200) 

vi. Administrative Regulations AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 Sexual Harassment (p. 205) 
vii. Administrative Regulations AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures (p. 213) 
viii. Exhibits E 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 (New Exhibit) Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 

(p. 226) 
ix. Board Policy BP 4157/4257/4357 Employee Safety (p. 228) 

Page 2



x. Administrative Regulation AR 4157/4257/4357 Employee Safety (p. 231)
xi. Administrative Regulation AR 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 Work-Related Injuries (p. 240)

xii. Board Policy BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (p. 245)
xiii. Administrative Regulation AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy (p. 251)
xiv. Administrative Regulation AR 5113.11 Attendance Supervision (p. 260)
xv. Board Policy BP 5145.7 Sexual Harassment (p. 265)

xvi. Administrative Regulation AR 5145.7 Sexual Harassment (p. 271)
xvii. Administrative Regulation AR 5145.71 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures (p. 278)

xviii. Exhibit E 5145.71 (New Exhibit) Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures (p. 292)
xix. Board Policy BP 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials (p. 294)
xx. Administrative Regulation AR 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials (p. 301)

xxi. Exhibit E 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials (p. 308)
xxii. Exhibit E(1) 9323.2 Actions by the Board (p. 312)

14.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

15.0  ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING AND OPEN PUBLIC HEARING 
a. Resolution No. 20-21-105 to Resolution Establish Temporary Interfund Transfers (p. 318)

16.0   CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING AND REOPEN REGULAR MEETING TO ACTION ITEMS: 
a. Adopt Resolution No. 20-21-105 Resolution to Establish Tempoary Interfund Transfer.(p. 321)
b. Approve 2020-21 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents. (p. 322)
c. Approve adjustments to the 8th grade promotion requirements due to COVID-19. (p. 326)
d. Approve new job description: Social Services Coordinator. (p. 329)
e. Accept donation of oak table to District from retired HES teacher, Ruthie Holland. (p. 332)
f. Approve First Interim Report 2020-2021. (p. 333)
g. Approve Developer Fee Report for 2019-2020. (p. 334)
h. Approve Memorial Barn Notice of completion (p. 336)
i. Approve HHS and HUSD Participation Liability Waivers (p. 338)
j. Approve Spring 2021 Instructional Schedule (p. 341) (Handouts) 

17.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 
motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

a. Minutes from October 21, 2020 Regular Board Meeting (p. 342)
b. Minutes from November 4, 2020 Special Board Meeting (p. 346)
c. Williams Quarterly Report for October 2020 (p. 348)
d. HES School Site Council Minutes November 10, 2020 (p. 349)
e. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 351)
f. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually).

i. Out
1. Hamilton Elementary School

a. none
2. Hamilton High School

a. none
ii. In

1. Hamilton Elementary School
a. none

2. Hamilton High School
a. 9th grade x 1
b. 10th grade x 1

g. Personnel Actions as Presented:
i. New hires:

Sheila Skemp Multiple Subject Teacher, Long Term Substitute – 
Postion ending December 2020 

HUSD 

Page 3



Aaron Johnson Temporary Science Teacher HES 
Derek Nall Temporary Physical Education Teacher HES 

 
ii. Resignations/Retirement: 

Kristy Eden Art Teacher HHS 
Lawna Dalton-Saldivar Girls Soccer Coach HHS 
Todd Deitz Varsity Softball Coach HHS 
 

 
18.0   ADJOURNMENT: 

Page 4



Page 5



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT IN LIEU OF ELECTION OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 

 

THIS CERTIFIES that the undersigned, being the remaining members of the governing board of 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT of Glenn County, California, has appointed 

ROD T. BOONE 

to the office of MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD, of the above named district 

 to hold the office for the completion of the term expiring December 13, 2024. 

                                                                               

Dated _________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 
ISSUE THIS CERTIFICATE TO PERSON APPOINTED 

 
 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT IN LIEU OF ELECTION OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 

 

THIS CERTIFIES that the undersigned, being the remaining members of the governing board of 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT of Glenn County, California, has appointed 

ROD T. BOONE 

to the office of MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD, of the above named district 

 to hold the office for the completion of the term expiring December 13, 2024. 

 

Dated _________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

 

OATH OF OFFICE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

County of Glenn  

 

 

I, ROD T. BOONE, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the Constitution of the United States and the 

Constitution of the State of California against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation freely, without any mental 

reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter. 

 

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER                                   ___________________________________________________________ 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT                                                                     (SIGNATURE) 

 

  

 
                                                                                                                                                                 (ADDRESS) 

 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me, this ____________day of _____________________________________________ 
  

 

 

 
(SIGNATURE AND TITLE OF PERSON ADMINISTERING OATH) 

 
Before taking office, each member must take and subscribe this Oath of Office before a governing board member, other school officer, state or county officer, judicial 

officer or notary public, to be filed with the County Clerk. 

FILE ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE AND OATH WITH COUNTY CLERK - BOARD RETAINS COPIES 

}ss. 

Page 6



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT IN LIEU OF ELECTION OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 

 

THIS CERTIFIES that the undersigned, being the remaining members of the governing board of 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT of Glenn County, California, has appointed 

JUAN GABRIEL LEAL 

to the office of MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD, of the above named district 

 to hold the office for the completion of the term expiring December 13, 2024. 

                                                                               

Dated _________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 
ISSUE THIS CERTIFICATE TO PERSON APPOINTED 

 
 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT IN LIEU OF ELECTION OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 

 

THIS CERTIFIES that the undersigned, being the remaining members of the governing board of 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT of Glenn County, California, has appointed 

JUAN GABRIEL LEAL 

to the office of MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD, of the above named district 

 to hold the office for the completion of the term expiring December 13, 2024. 

 

Dated _________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

 

OATH OF OFFICE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

County of Glenn  

 

 

I, JUAN GABRIEL LEAL, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the Constitution of the United States and 

the Constitution of the State of California against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the 

Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation freely, without any mental 

reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter. 

 

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER                                   ___________________________________________________________ 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT                                                                     (SIGNATURE) 

 

  

 
                                                                                                                                                                 (ADDRESS) 

 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me, this ____________day of _____________________________________________ 
  

 

 

 
(SIGNATURE AND TITLE OF PERSON ADMINISTERING OATH) 

 
Before taking office, each member must take and subscribe this Oath of Office before a governing board member, other school officer, state or county officer, judicial 

officer or notary public, to be filed with the County Clerk. 

FILE ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE AND OATH WITH COUNTY CLERK - BOARD RETAINS COPIES 

}ss. 

Page 7



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT IN LIEU OF ELECTION OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 

 

THIS CERTIFIES that the undersigned, being the remaining members of the governing board of 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT of Glenn County, California, has appointed 

HUBERT WENDELL LOWER 

to the office of MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD, of the above named district 

 to hold the office for the completion of the term expiring December 13, 2024. 

                                                                               

Dated _________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 
ISSUE THIS CERTIFICATE TO PERSON APPOINTED 

 
 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT IN LIEU OF ELECTION OF GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER 

 

THIS CERTIFIES that the undersigned, being the remaining members of the governing board of 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT of Glenn County, California, has appointed 

HUBERT WENDELL LOWER 

to the office of MEMBER OF THE GOVERNING BOARD, of the above named district 

 to hold the office for the completion of the term expiring December 13, 2024. 

 

Dated _________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________     ____________________________________________________ 

 

 

OATH OF OFFICE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

County of Glenn  

 

 

I, HUBERT WENDELL LOWER, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the Constitution of the United 

States and the Constitution of the State of California against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and 

allegiance to the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation freely, 

without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to 

enter. 

 

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER                                   ___________________________________________________________ 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT                                                                     (SIGNATURE) 

 

  

 
                                                                                                                                                                 (ADDRESS) 

 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me, this ____________day of _____________________________________________ 
  

 

 
 

(SIGNATURE AND TITLE OF PERSON ADMINISTERING OATH) 

 

Before taking office, each member must take and subscribe this Oath of Office before a governing board member, other school officer, state or county officer, judicial 

officer or notary public, to be filed with the County Clerk. 

FILE ORIGINAL CERTIFICATE AND OATH WITH COUNTY CLERK - BOARD RETAINS COPIES 

}ss. 

Page 8



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

2021 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE AND AGENDA ITEM DEADLINES 
 

Proposed 2021 Schedule for Discussion at Regular Board Meeting 10/21/2020 

 
Time: 6:00 p.m. (public session begins at 6:00 pm., but no later than 6:30 p.m. 

unless otherwise noted on agenda) 
Location: Hamilton High School Library 

620 Canal Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 
When: Fourth Wednesday of the month* 

 

 
 

BOARD MEETING DATE 

 
 

REGULAR OR 
SPECIAL 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 
DEADLINE TO 

DISTRICT OFFICE BY 
3:00 P.M. 

 

 
AGENDA REVIEW: 
BOARD PRESIDENT 

AND 
SUPERINTENDENT 
(subject to change) 

January 27, 2021 
 

Regular January 7, 2021 January 11, 2021 

February 24, 2021 
 

Regular February 11, 2021 February 16, 2021 

March 10, 2021 
2nd Interim & LCAP Stakeholders 

Special February 18, 2021 February 22, 2021 

March 24, 2021 
 

Regular March 11, 2021 March 15, 2021 

April 28, 2021 
 

Regular April 1, 2021 April 12, 2021 

May 19, 2021* 
(note 3rd Wednesday) 

Regular April 29, 2021 May 3, 2021 

June 9, 2021 
LCAP/Budget Hearing 

Special May 20, 2021 May 24, 2021 

June 23, 2021 
Approval of LCAP and Budget 

Regular June 10, 2021 June 14, 2021 

July 28, 2021 
 

Regular July 15, 2021 July 19, 2021 
 

August 25, 2021 
 

Regular August 12, 2021 August 16, 2021 

September 22, 2021 
 

Regular September 9, 2021 September 13, 2021 

October 6, 2021 
GANN Limit & Unaudited Actuals 

Special September 27, 2021 September 23, 2021 

October 27, 2021 
 

Regular October 14, 2021 October 18, 2021 

December 8, 2021 
Annual Reorganization & 1st Interim 

Regular November 18, 2021 November 29, 2021 

 
*Dates and times of meetings and workshop(s) are subject to change. 
 
  

Page 9



Technology Report 

Board Meeting on December 9, 2020 

Frank James, Director of Technology 

Derek Hawley, Information Systems Technician 

 
Completed and in Progress Tasks – November 2020 

1. Chromebooks: Chromebooks purchased for K-1 have arrived. They have been 

configured and provided to K-1 teachers for distribution. Hopefully K-1 will complete the 

swap out this week and we can use the old devices as spares for 2-12. 

2. Document Cameras: Aver DocCams have arrived. Once they are configured and tagged 

we will begin deployment based on need.  

3. Dell Server: A new Dell server has been ordered for HUSD. The Server was shipped this 

month and we expect it to be arriving in the early part of December. We don’t have an 

ETA for config and deployment. 

4. NEC Phone Project: The first phase of this project is underway. We expect to deploy the 

system and install all phones over the Holiday break. 

5. Smart Classrooms: Smart Classrooms have been set up and we are working towards 

completing all the installs prior to the Holiday break and NEC phone project. 

Page 10



HUSD Food Service Report  

Board Meeting on December 9, 2020 

Sean Montgomery, Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare 

 
November meal counts 

 Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

 November 2 November 3 November 4 November 5 November 6 
Breakfast 294 320 252 321 202 

Lunch 213 213 171 226 252 
B&G Supper 36 41 27 16 No B&G Club 

Snack 25 38 27 16 - 
      

 November 9 November 10 November 11 November 12 November 13 
Breakfast 293 312  292 105 

Lunch 212 231  210 105 
B&G Supper 39 26  16 No B&G Club 

Snack 43 42  16 - 
      

 November 16 November 17 November 18 November 19 November 20 
HES Breakfast 355 295 363 406 140 
HHS Breakfast 31 24 24 19 20 
HES Lunch 238 178 245 289 140 
HHS Lunch 31 22 17 23 No HS Lunch 

B&G Supper 36 40 41 No B&G Club No B&G Club 
Snack 36 32 22 - - 

      

 

In late October we started serving students breakfast in the classrooms along with curbside meals. 

We serve a breakfast at 9:05 and a lunch at 12:20. 

Students get a breakfast first thing in the morning in classrooms and they can also pick up a lunch on 

their way off campus. 

We continue to serve two meals per day at the curbside distribution point at Hamilton Elementary. 

On November 16th we started serving meals at the High School again. 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



HUSD Maintenance Report 

Board Meeting on December 9, 2020 

Alan Joksch, Director of Maintenance and Transportation 

 
Facilities 

• Daily Cleaning is going well. Wizard Cleaning is ‘deep cleaning’ and disinfecting on Friday 

afternoon. Custodial then ‘Fogs’ the rooms on Monday and as needed. The probiotic in the fog 

actively works at killing germs for 5 to 7 days.  

• Leaves are falling, it’s that time of year, extra blowing and raking has become a daily necessity.  

 

Maintenance 

• We are working on a list of winter projects. I hope to finish a couple of quick projects over 

Christmas break. I will update these as they happen. 

• We have begun cleaning out the bus barn at the Elementary. Our goal is to get a bus parked 

back inside so we are not parking in the ag area any longer.  

 

      Transportation 

• The first week of bussing was mostly uneventful. We had a one late rider in the first day. 

They missed the Orland bus but were transported by a parent. I confirmed all times with site 

admin to help avoid this from happening again.  

• We are not running the new bus yet. Bus West is holding the start date of the Warranty until 

we place the bus into service. We plan to keep it new and nice as long as we can.  

Page 12



HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Board Meeting on December 9, 2020 

Submitted by  

Kathryn Thomas, Principal 

__________________________________________________________________ 

Enrollment: 409 

Attendance:  

Grade Percentage Attendance Synchronous/Asynchronous 

K 84.34% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

1 83.75% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

2 84.22% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

3 82.86% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

4 86.39% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

5 85.71% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

6 95.46% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

7 99/17% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

8 99.10% Synchronous/Asynchronous 

Campus News:  

• Our Middle School students returned this past week. Students are happy to be back, although 
they have reported that things feel a little different and they want to be “back to normal.” We 
are serving just around 50% of our students with our two cohorts: A and B. 

• Home visits and family/student support has continued to reach our struggling students and 
those disengaged. I am pleased to report that these numbers are decreasing, and the in-person 
instruction is also helping to support engagement.  

• Students will be recognized this month for responsibility and will be highlighted on social media 
by their respective teachers.  

• Teachers are sending out positive postcards home, our Wolf Howl home cards, and home visits 
to reward those students with high levels of engagement are planned for the weeks prior to our 
Winter Break.  

• All Tk-5 teachers conducted their parent conferences prior to Thanksgiving Break. 

• We had a successful School Site Council meeting on November 10th with 10 people present. The 
council elected their Chairperson, Ana Lozano, Vice Chair, Teresa Alvarado, and Secretary, Rocio 
Juaregui. The council requested the attendance of Dr. Powell to go over LCFF and budgetary 
oversight.  

• We have now met with our 8th grade parents of students at-risk of promotion/activities. We 
also took this time to invite parents to see our classrooms with our safety precautions in place. 
Parents, thus far, have been impressed with what the district has provided to ensure safety of 
their children.  

Instructional News: 

• Teachers continue to meet with their intervention groups every Friday morning. 

• SST and focus groups took place on 12/2/2020 to serve our students requiring additional 
supports at an upper Tier 2 level and potential Tier 3 level.  

Coming Up: 

• PTO meeting on 12/8/2020 to discuss Santa’s visit to HC with support from the HC Fire 
Department. 

• End of Second Quarter: 12/18 

• Report Cards mailed on 12/30 
 

Page 13



Alternative Education Report 

Board Meeting on Wednesday December 9, 2020 

Maria Reyes, Dean of Students 

 
 

Happy Holidays from Alternative Ed! 

• Seniors will begin the Reg 2 Go Butte College Registration process for Spring semester 

o Will have application workshops on December 8th and December 10th for seniors.   

• Students continue to work on earning credits towards graduation requirements and possibly 

returning to the high school 

• Looking forward to a great Spring Semester 

• M.E.Ch.A Giving Tree 

o Our Annual gift drive continues and ask if anyone interested in sponsoring a child this 

Christmas to select a tag from our tree.  

o Gifts can be returned December 17 or the morning of the 18th.    

o Gifts can be wrapped or unwrapped.   

• We have completed the first quarter via distance learning.   

• As we start the second quarter we will focus on finishing strong for the Fall semester and 

continue to conduct home visits as needed to assist students and check in.    

• We continue with a combination of homework packets and online assignments for students to 

complete at home.   

• Enrollment: 

12th grade=5 (two of the seven are in Independent Study) 
 
11thgrade=3 (one of seven is in Independent Study) 
  8    

Wishing all a festive holiday season!  

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Hamilton Adult Education 

Board Meeting Report-December 9, 2020 

Silvia Robles/Director 

 

Completed and in Progress Tasks – November, 2020 

1. Enrollment and students served to date for all programs:  

• Citizenship ..................................................................12  

• Computer Literacy Spring 2020 .................................8 (Waitlist) 

• CPR/First Aid ..............................................................0 

• ESL ..............................................................................24  

• Floral Design ...............................................................10 

• Forklift Training ..........................................................14 

• High School Diploma ..................................................20  

• Intensive ELD/Childcare Provider ..............................0 

• Job Reentry 2020 .......................................................1 (Waitlist) 

TOTAL:  ...................................................... 89 

 

2. Assist participants with the barriers and challenges of distance learning  

3. Outreach and Recruit with nonprofit organizations, local businesses, and employers 

4. Facilitated Special Zoom Meeting on Emergency Preparedness with North Valley Catholic Social 

Services (NVCSS). 

5. Ongoing enrollment for various programs, Forklift and Floral Design 

6. Home visits 

7. Helped students prepare forms for Citizenship 

 

Page 17



H
A

M
IL

TO
N

 U
N

IF
IE

D
  

SC
H

O
O

L 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
2

0
2

0
-2

1
 F

ir
st

 In
te

ri
m

 
P

re
se

n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e 
D

ec
e

m
b

er
 9

th
, 2

0
2

0
 R

eg
u

la
r 

B
o

ar
d

 M
ee

ti
n

g 

P
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
K

ri
st

en
 H

am
m

an
 

Page 18



2
0

2
0

-2
1

 F
ir

st
 In

te
ri

m
 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 R
ev

en
u

es
  

 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 B
o

ar
d

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t 

R
ev

e
n

u
es

 
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
/ 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 

LC
FF

 S
o

u
rc

es
 

7
,1

9
7

,8
8

8
 

Fe
d

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

e
 

2
5

2
,7

7
0

 

O
th

e
r 

St
at

e 
R

ev
en

u
e

 
4

8
3

,2
7

9
 

O
th

e
r 

Lo
ca

l R
ev

en
u

e
 

7
4

,8
4

0
 

To
ta

l R
ev

e
n

u
es

 
8

,0
0

8
,7

7
7

 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 Y
e

ar
 T

o
ta

ls
 

R
e

ve
n

u
es

 
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
/ 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 

LC
FF

 S
o

u
rc

es
 

7
,7

1
1

,0
1

3
 

Fe
d

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

e
 

1
,1

5
4

,1
2

8
 

O
th

e
r 

St
at

e 
R

ev
en

u
e

 
5

5
3

,0
0

9
 

O
th

e
r 

Lo
ca

l R
ev

en
u

e
 

1
5

0
,4

4
2

 

To
ta

l R
e

ve
n

u
es

 
9

,5
6

8
,5

9
2

 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 R
ev

en
u

es
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d
 o

n
 P

ag
e 

4
3

 o
f 

th
e 

b
o

ar
d

 p
ac

ke
t.

 

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 F

u
n

d
ed

 A
D

A
 B

o
ar

d
 A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 B

u
d

ge
t:

 6
8

8
.3

2
 

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 F

u
n

d
ed

 A
D

A
 P

ro
je

ct
ed

 Y
ea

r 
To

ta
ls

: 6
7

1
.1

7
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
B

as
ed

 o
n

 c
u

rr
en

t 
ye

ar
 

Page 19



2
0

2
0

-2
1

 F
ir

st
 In

te
ri

m
 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

 
 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 B
o

ar
d

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t 

Ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
/ 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

d
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

2
,9

4
4

,8
8

6
 

C
la

ss
if

ie
d

 S
al

ar
ie

s 
9

4
7

,5
5

8
 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
 B

e
n

ef
it

s 
1

,6
5

8
,1

5
0

 

B
o

o
ks

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s 
4

1
4

,7
5

5
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 &
 O

th
er

 
8

9
6

,1
3

3
 

C
ap

it
al

 O
u

tl
ay

 
3

0
6

,7
2

8
 

O
th

e
r 

O
u

tg
o

 (
n

o
 IC

*
) 

9
0

0
,3

7
2

 

O
th

e
r 

O
u

tg
o

 (
IC

*)
 

(1
7

,7
8

6
) 

To
ta

l E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
8

,0
5

0
,7

9
6

 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 Y
e

ar
 T

o
ta

ls
 

Ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
/ 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

d
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

3
,0

5
9

,0
8

6
 

C
la

ss
if

ie
d

 S
al

ar
ie

s 
1

,0
5

4
,3

9
9

 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
 B

e
n

ef
it

s 
1

,7
3

7
,1

6
0

 

B
o

o
ks

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s 
9

2
9

,4
0

1
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 &
 O

th
er

 
1

,1
5

6
,8

3
1

 

C
ap

it
al

 O
u

tl
ay

 
3

3
7

,1
2

2
 

O
th

e
r 

O
u

tg
o

 (
n

o
 IC

*
) 

9
9

2
,8

7
0

 

O
th

e
r 

O
u

tg
o

 (
IC

*)
 

(1
7

,7
8

6
) 

To
ta

l E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
9

,2
4

9
,0

8
3

 

* 
IC

 =
 In

d
ir

ec
t 

C
o

st
s;

 2
0

2
0

-2
1

 G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d

 o
n

 P
ag

e 
4

3
 o

f 
th

e 
b

o
ar

d
 p

ac
ke

t.
 

 

Page 20



2
0

2
0

-2
1

 F
ir

st
 In

te
ri

m
 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 c
h

an
ge

s 
in

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

  
 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 B
o

ar
d

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 B
u

d
ge

t 

C
h

an
ge

 in
 F

u
n

d
 

B
al

an
ce

 
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
/ 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 

B
e

gi
n

n
in

g 
Fu

n
d

 B
al

. 
8

8
7

,3
2

2
 

R
ev

en
u

e
s 

8
,0

0
8

,7
7

7
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

(8
,0

5
0

,7
9

6
) 

In
te

rf
u

n
d

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

(2
5

,0
0

0
) 

In
cr

ea
se

 (
D

ec
re

as
e

) 
in

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

. 
(6

7
,0

1
9

) 

En
d

in
g 

Fu
n

d
 B

al
. 

8
2

0
,3

0
3

 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 Y
e

ar
 T

o
ta

ls
 

C
h

an
ge

 in
 F

u
n

d
 

B
al

an
ce

 
U

n
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
/ 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 

B
e

gi
n

n
in

g 
Fu

n
d

 B
al

. 
8

8
7

,3
2

2
 

R
ev

en
u

e
s 

9
,5

6
8

,5
9

2
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

(9
,2

4
9

,0
8

3
) 

In
te

rf
u

n
d

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

(2
5

,0
0

0
) 

In
cr

ea
se

 (
D

ec
re

as
e

) 
in

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

. 
2

9
4

,5
0

9
 

En
d

in
g 

Fu
n

d
 B

al
. 

1
,1

8
1

,8
3

1
 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 c
h

an
ge

s 
in

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

 a
re

 lo
ca

te
d

 o
n

 P
ag

e 
4

3
 a

n
d

 4
4

 o
f 

th
e 

b
o

ar
d

 p
ac

ke
t.

 

Page 21



2
0

2
0

-2
1

 F
ir

st
 In

te
ri

m
 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 M
u

lt
iy

ea
r 

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

s 

D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
-2

1
 P

ro
je

ct
e

d
 

Ye
ar

 T
o

ta
ls

 
2

0
2

1
-2

2
 

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

 
2

0
2

2
-2

3
 

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

 

B
e

gi
n

n
in

g 
Fu

n
d

 B
al

. 
8

8
7

,3
2

2
 

1
,1

8
1

,8
3

1
 

1
,3

5
0

,3
3

6
 

R
ev

en
u

e
s 

9
,5

6
8

,5
9

2
 

8
,1

7
8

,3
6

7
 

8
,0

8
9

,7
0

2
 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

(9
,2

4
9

,0
8

3
) 

(7
,9

5
6

,8
6

2
) 

(8
,2

7
1

,9
0

1
) 

In
te

rf
u

n
d

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

(2
5

,0
0

0
) 

(5
3

,0
0

0
) 

(5
3

,0
0

0
) 

In
cr

ea
se

 (
D

ec
re

as
e

) 
in

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

. 
2

9
4

,5
0

9
 

1
6

8
,5

0
5

 
(2

3
5

,1
9

9
)  

En
d

in
g 

Fu
n

d
 B

al
. 

1
,1

8
1

,8
3

1
 

1
,3

5
0

,3
3

6
 

1
,1

1
5

,1
3

6
 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 M
u

lt
iy

ea
r 

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

s 
ar

e 
lo

ca
te

d
 o

n
 P

ag
e 

1
3

8
 o

f 
th

e 
b

o
ar

d
 p

ac
ke

t.
 

Page 22



O
th

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

Fu
n

d
s 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
 E

n
d

in
g 

Fu
n

d
 B

al
an

ce
s 

 •
Fu

n
d

 1
1

, A
d

u
lt

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 (

p
g 

5
3

)  
 

   
   

   
$

  1
1

9
,8

5
4

 

•
Fu

n
d

 1
2

, C
h

ild
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
(p

g 
6

7
) 

 
   

   
   

$
   

   
 2

,1
5

9
 

•
Fu

n
d

 1
3

, C
af

et
er

ia
 S

p
ec

ia
l R

ev
en

u
e 

(p
g 

7
4

) 
   

   
   

$
   

  8
3

,7
2

7
 

•
Fu

n
d

 1
4

, D
ef

er
re

d
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 (
p

g 
8

1
)  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$

   
  6

7
,5

0
8

 

•
Fu

n
d

 1
7

, O
th

e
r 

Th
an

 C
ap

it
al

 O
u

tl
ay

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
(p

g 
8

7
) 

$
   

3
9

5
,4

6
3

 

•
Fu

n
d

 2
0

, P
o

st
em

p
lo

ym
en

t 
B

en
ef

it
s 

(p
g 

9
1

) 
   

   
   

$
   

2
2

0
,3

1
0

 

•
Fu

n
d

 2
1

, B
u

ild
in

g 
- 

B
o

n
d

 (
p

g 
9

5
) 

 
 

   
   

   
$

1
,4

9
8

,9
9

2
 

•
Fu

n
d

 2
5

, C
ap

it
al

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 (

p
g 

1
0

2
) 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 $

   
1

8
6

,5
0

4
 

•
Fu

n
d

 5
1

, B
o

n
d

 In
te

re
st

 &
 R

ed
em

p
ti

o
n

 (
p

g 
1

1
6

)  
   

   
  $

   
4

9
2

,5
0

8
 

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



HUSD Superintendent’s Report 

Board Meeting on December 9, 2020 

Jeremy Powell, Ed., D. 
 

 
 

The past 6 weeks have seen all of our students (K-12) return to school to finish the Fall 2020 Semester.  
Together with staff and families, we have provided a safe and caring environment that has allowed the 
return of students to where we know they learn best-in the classroom.  We are now working to finalize our 
Spring 2021 instructional modes and schedules.  Surveys have been sent to families and staff reviewing 
what they believe to be the best way for us to continue to serve our community safely.  These survey 
findings will be discussed later in the meeting.    

District Highlights for November & December:

 

● The Maintenance Department has been hard at work continuing to serve our teachers and 
students with extra effort put forth in providing a clean and sanitary learning environment.   

● Our new Marquee continues to shine bright during these short days!  There were some 
initial power issues but Alan and his team were able to work those out and we expect no 
future issues!   

● Nutrition Services continues to serve our students fresh and healthy meals.  They have 
expanded service to include our Pre-school and High School since their opening in 
November. 

● We had our Quarterly Cabinet Meeting on Friday, December 4th.  The focus of this meeting 
was to review the Survey Data and create recommendations for our Spring 2021 schedule.  

● HUSD continues to serve the community in many ways.  Our High School MEcHA Club 
continues their tradition of a Giving Tree to provide gifts for our families that are struggling.   

 
  Make sure to Follow us on: 

o HUSD App: Download from App Store or our website 
o Instagram: HamiltonUnified 
o Twitter: @hamiltonunified 
o Facebook: HamiltonUnifiedSchool District 

 

Upcoming Events: 

● December 9th: HUSD Board Meeting in HHS Library 

● December 21st -Jan. 8th: Winter Break 

● December 23rd-25th & Dec 31-Jan. 3rd: HUSD District Office Closed 

● January 11th: HUSD School Back in Session 

● January 18th: MLK Day-No School 

● January 20th: HULC 

● January 26th-27th: HES Kindergarten Registration 

● January 27th: HUSD Board Meeting in HHS Library 

Page 168



H
U

S
D

 E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T 
O

V
E
R

 S
IX

 Y
E
A

R
S

2
0
1
5
-2

0
2
1

3
0
4

H
H

S
2
6
4

H
H

S
2
6
9

H
H

S
2
8
6

H
H

S
2
6
5

H
H

S
2
8
8

H
H

S

9
E
B

H
S

1
4

E
B

H
S

1
2

E
B

H
S

9
E
B

H
S

1
3

E
B

H
S

8
E
B

H
S

K
-5

K
-5

2
7
9

K
-5

2
9
2

K
-5

2
7
2

K
-5

2
6
7

K
-5

6
-8

6
-8

1
3
3

6
-8

1
2
5

6
-8

1
5
3

6
-8

1
4
2

6
-8

7
2

8
E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
6

9
2

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
6

9
3

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
7

1
2

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
7

0
3

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
7

0
5

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T

7
1

2
.2

6
A

D
A

6
6

9
.2

9
A

D
A

6
7

2
.2

1
A

D
A

6
8

7
.8

7
A

D
A

6
6

8
.3

6
A

D
A

6
7

7
.5

6
A

D
A

E
n

ro
llm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 A
D

A
 t

o
ta

ls
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 P
2

 D
a

ta
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 e
x

c
e

p
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

y
e

a
r 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

#
S
TU

G
R

A
D

E
#

S
TU

G
R

A
D

E
#

S
TU

G
R

A
D

E
#

S
TU

G
R

A
D

E

1
3

TK
1
3

TK
1
2
.1

1
1
3

TK
1
2
.0

8
1
3

TK
1
1
.9

3

4
2

K
4
2

K
4
1
.1

1
4
3

K
4
1
.3

0
4
1

K
3
5
.5

9

4
1

1
4
0

1
4
0
.5

3
4
0

1
4
0
.1

6
4
0

1
3
8
.1

4

4
7

2
4
5

2
4
3
.1

1
4
3

2
4
2
.9

5
4
3

2
4
1
.1

1

4
0

3
4
0

3
3
7
.8

4
4
0

3
3
8
.1

4
4
0

3
3
7
.3

4

4
2

4
4
2

4
4
0
.1

1
4
2

4
4
0
.5

1
4
2

4
3
9
.7

0

5
0

5
4
9

5
4
8
.0

5
4
8

5
4
7
.8

1
4
8

5
4
6
.2

1

4
1

6
4
1

6
3
9
.2

1
4
1

6
3
9
.7

8
3
9

6
3
9
.2

1

6
0

7
5
9

7
5
9
.6

8
6
0

7
5
9
.5

4
6
0

7
5
9
.6

1

4
4

8
4
4

8
4
3
.0

5
4
4

8
4
3
.3

2
4
3

8
4
2
.2

3

7
4

9
7
6

9
7
3
.6

8
7
7

9
7
4
.3

5
7
8

9
7
5
.1

5

6
5

1
0

6
6

1
0

6
2
.6

3
6
7

1
0

6
3
.6

2
6
8

1
0

6
4
.4

6

8
0

1
1

7
9

1
1

7
6
.8

5
7
7

1
1

7
7
.4

1
7
7

1
1

7
5
.9

4

7
4

1
2

7
4

1
2

7
0
.5

7
7
4

1
2

7
2
.1

3
7
3

1
2

7
0
.9

4

7
1

3
TO

TA
L

7
1

0
TO

TA
L

6
8

8
.5

3
7

0
9

TO
TA

L
6

9
3

.1
7

0
5

TO
TA

L
6

7
7

.5
6

0
9

/0
7

-1
0

/0
2

A
D

A

2
0

2
0

-2
1

A
D

A

2
0

2
0

-2
1

4
1
4

4
1
5

2
0

2
0

-2
1

2
0

2
0

-2
1

8
/1

1
-8

/1
7

/2
0

8
/0

5
-8

/3
0

/2
0

5

2
0
2
0
-2

1
 A

D
A

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 M
o

n
th

 4
 r

e
p

o
rt

2
0

1
9

-2
0

2
0

1
8

-1
9

2
0

1
7

-1
8

2
0

1
6

-1
7

2
0

1
5

-1
6

1
2

3
4

A
D

A
1

1
/2

-1
1

/2
7

6

2
0

2
0

-2
1

7
2

8

6
9

2
6

9
3

7
1

2

7
0

3
7

0
5

7
1

2
.2

6

6
6

9
.2

9
6

7
2

.2
1

6
8

7
.8

7

6
6

8
.3

6

6
7

7
.5

6

2
0

1
5

-1
6

2
0

1
6

-1
7

2
0

1
7

-1
8

2
0

1
8

-1
9

2
0

1
9

-2
0

District Enrollment & ADA

En
ro

llm
e

n
t 

 A
D

A

En
ro

llm
en

t 
&

 A
D

A
 b

y 
Sc

h
o

o
l Y

ea
r

Page 169



 B
u

ild
in

g 
Fu

n
d

 2
1

 (
B

o
n

d
) 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

fo
r 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

Fo
r 

D
e

ce
m

b
er

 9
th

, 2
0

2
0

 H
U

SD
 B

o
ar

d
 M

e
et

in
g

P
O

 #
D

at
e

V
e

n
d

o
r

D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

P
V

 1
7

/2
2

/2
0

2
0

B
an

k 
o

f 
N

ew
 Y

o
rk

 M
el

lo
n

P
ay

in
g 

A
ge

n
t 

Fe
e;

 R
E:

 E
le

ct
io

n
 o

f 
2

0
1

8
, G

O
 B

o
n

d
s,

 S
er

ie
s 

A
7

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

4
2

3
9

/2
3

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l f
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
4

9
0

.5
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

4
2

3
1

0
/2

1
/2

0
2

0
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l f

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

2
,2

5
6

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
1

2
/2

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l f
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
9

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

P
V

 1
2

1
0

/7
/2

0
2

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
o

f 
To

xi
c 

Su
b

st
an

ce
s 

C
o

n
tr

o
l -

 D
TS

C
P

ro
p

er
ty

 p
u

rc
h

as
e 

te
st

in
g

5
7

7
.5

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

2
1

-1
5

0
8

/1
9

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

3
,3

6
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
1

-1
5

0
9

/1
6

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

4
,4

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
1

-1
5

0
1

0
/1

4
/2

0
2

0
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
LL

C
P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
3

,9
2

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
1

-1
5

0
1

1
/1

0
/2

0
2

0
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
LL

C
P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
4

,2
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

P
V

 3
2

1
1

/1
0

/2
0

2
0

H
am

ilt
o

n
 U

n
if

ie
d

 R
ev

o
lv

in
g 

Fu
n

d
 f

o
r 

G
le

n
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
Fi

le
 a

 p
ar

ce
l m

ap
 in

 G
le

n
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
1

,1
3

6
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

-5
1

5
1

1
/1

0
/2

0
2

0
P

la
ce

w
o

rk
s 

In
c.

C
EQ

A
 S

tu
d

y/
Ex

p
an

si
o

n
2

,0
9

7
.3

8
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

-5
1

5
1

1
/1

0
/2

0
2

0
P

la
ce

w
o

rk
s 

In
c.

C
EQ

A
 S

tu
d

y/
Ex

p
an

si
o

n
2

,1
8

6
.6

3
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
1

-1
5

2
8

/1
9

/2
0

2
0

R
o

b
er

ts
o

n
 E

ri
ck

so
n

 In
c

Fi
n

al
 s

u
rv

ey
 a

n
d

 m
ap

 p
ac

ka
ge

 f
o

r 
co

u
n

ty
 r

ec
o

rd
er

1
,6

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
1

-1
5

2
1

0
/2

1
/2

0
2

0
R

o
b

er
ts

o
n

 E
ri

ck
so

n
 In

c
Fi

n
al

 s
u

rv
ey

 a
n

d
 m

ap
 p

ac
ka

ge
 f

o
r 

co
u

n
ty

 r
ec

o
rd

er
7

4
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

4
4

8
9

/2
/2

0
2

0
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 V
al

le
y 

M
ir

ro
r

Le
ga

l a
d

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 h

ea
ri

n
g 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 s

ch
o

o
l e

xp
an

si
o

n
8

2
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l e

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 1
2

/3
/2

0
2

0
2

8
,0

1
6

.0
9

$
   

   
   

  

Page 170



 B
u

ild
in

g 
Fu

n
d

 2
1

 (
B

o
n

d
) 

Ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

9
-2

0

Fo
r 

H
U

SD
 B

o
ar

d
 M

e
e

ti
n

g 
A

u
gu

st
 2

6
, 2

0
2

0

P
O

 #
D

at
e

V
e

n
d

o
r

D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

4
2

3
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
8

0
2

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
1

0
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

1
,1

2
6

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
1

1
/1

3
/2

0
1

9
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

1
6

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
1

2
/1

1
/2

0
1

9
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

2
,9

6
9

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
1

/8
/2

0
2

0
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

/1
1

0
3

8
0

7
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
5

/6
/2

0
2

0
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

7
5

4
.5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
5

/2
0

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
1

,8
3

3
.5

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
6

/2
4

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
1

,1
9

4
.5

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
2

,1
7

9
.5

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
9

,3
1

7
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
1

,0
5

7
.6

3
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
1

,4
4

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
1

0
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

2
,9

6
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

3
9

7
1

0
/2

3
/2

0
1

9
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

1
7

1
.6

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

3
9

7
1

2
/1

1
/2

0
1

9
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

1
2

,9
4

0
.5

8
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

3
9

7
2

/5
/2

0
2

0
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

1
2

,8
9

5
.9

3
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

3
9

7
2

/5
/2

0
2

0
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

5
6

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

3
9

7
3

/1
8

/2
0

2
0

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
4

,4
7

5
.1

2
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
3

/1
8

/2
0

2
0

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
1

,2
5

2
.3

8
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
6

/1
7

/2
0

2
0

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
1

,3
6

6
.9

8
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

5
1

5
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

4
,6

9
2

.0
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

5
1

5
1

0
/2

/2
0

1
9

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

5
,0

0
9

.4
8

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

5
1

5
1

1
/2

0
/2

0
1

9
P

la
ce

w
o

rk
s 

In
c.

C
EQ

A
 R

ev
ie

w
; e

xp
an

si
o

n
 p

ro
je

ct
9

,6
6

7
.9

8
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

5
1

5
1

1
/2

0
/2

0
1

9
P

la
ce

w
o

rk
s 

In
c.

C
EQ

A
 R

ev
ie

w
; e

xp
an

si
o

n
 p

ro
je

ct
1

4
,7

1
5

.5
9

$
   

   
   

  

1
9

5
1

5
6

/1
7

/2
0

2
0

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

1
5

,9
3

3
.6

9
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

5
1

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

4
3

0
.4

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

5
1

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

9
,3

4
1

.1
9

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

5
1

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

2
,5

8
8

.2
6

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
0

2
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

To
xi

c 
Su

b
st

an
ce

s 
C

o
n

tr
o

l -
 D

TS
C

P
ro

p
er

ty
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
Te

st
in

g
1

4
,4

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  

2
0

2
1

9
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

5
,0

4
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

4
,2

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
1

1
/1

3
/2

0
1

9
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
LL

C
C

o
n

su
lt

in
g 

fo
r 

H
H

S 
Ex

p
an

si
o

n
 P

ro
je

ct
4

,4
8

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

2
1

9
1

2
/1

1
/2

0
1

9
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
LL

C
C

o
n

su
lt

in
g 

fo
r 

H
H

S 
Ex

p
an

si
o

n
 P

ro
je

ct
3

,0
8

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

2
1

9
1

/1
5

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

2
,5

2
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
2

/1
2

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

2
,3

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
3

/1
1

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

4
,4

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
4

/1
5

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

5
,3

2
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
5

/2
0

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

3
,9

2
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
6

/1
7

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

4
,2

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

5
,1

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
4

7
1

1
/2

0
/2

0
1

9
Ti

m
io

s 
Ti

tl
e

Ti
tl

e 
R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

n
ew

 p
ro

p
er

ty
4

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

2
8

7
1

0
/9

/2
0

1
9

R
o

b
er

ts
o

n
 E

ri
ck

so
n

 In
c.

Su
rv

ey
 f

o
r 

la
n

d
3

,2
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

2
8

7
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

R
o

b
er

ts
o

n
 E

ri
ck

so
n

 In
c.

Su
rv

ey
 f

o
r 

la
n

d
3

,2
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

4
9

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

In
te

gr
at

ed
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 P

la
n

n
in

g 
&

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
B

u
ild

in
g/

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

4
,8

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

P
V

 9
8

3
/1

1
/2

0
2

0
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 V
al

le
y 

M
ir

ro
r

Le
ga

l A
d

 -
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
P

re
p

. o
f 

a 
P

re
lim

. E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l A
ss

es
s.

9
0

.2
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

P
V

 1
1

9
6

/1
7

/2
0

2
0

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 V

al
le

y 
M

ir
ro

r
Le

ga
l A

d
 -

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

1
3

9
.4

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l e
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
th

ro
u

gh
 6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

1
9

3
,8

6
1

.5
4

$
   

   
  

Page 171



2018-19 Bond and Property Expenses

PO # Vendor Description Amount Reimbursable

19-567 California Appraisals Appraisal for future site 4,000.00$   Yes

19-134 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Bond Development & Election 34,440.00$ Yes

PV#69 Glenn County Elections Bond Election Fees 3,466.00$   No

19-309 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Environmental Site Assessment 4,600.00$   Yes

19-397 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 4,060.62$   Yes

19-524 HUSD Revolving Fund New property project 1,500.00$   Yes

19-514 Placeworks Inc. Title 5 Risk Assessment 15,210.00$ Yes

19-515 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; Expansion Project 5,877.75$   Yes

18-639 School Works Inc. Development Fee Study 6,000.00$   No

19-596 Western Valuation Professional Appraisal - new property 3,500.00$ Yes

423 Dannis Woliver Kelley matter # 10518 Property Purchase Negotiation 6,470$         Yes

423 Dannis Woliver Kelley matter # 10418 2018 Bond Discussions 1,017$         No

Total Amount Expended 90,140.87$ 

Reimbursable Total 79,657.87$ 

2018-2019 Bond and Property Related Expenses

Page 172



R
O

Y
 B

O
O

N
E 

M
EM

O
R

IA
L 

B
A

R
N

 C
TE

 P
R

O
JE

C
T:

A
P

P
R

O
V

ED
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 C

O
ST

 B
U

D
G

ET
 &

 S
C

H
ED

U
LE

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 C
O

ST
P

R
O

P
O

SE
D

A
C

TU
A

L
N

O
TE

S

B
U

D
G

ET
B

U
D

G
ET

G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
21

2,
9

20
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

0,
1

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

D
ed

u
ct

iv
e 

A
lt

er
n

at
e:

 D
el

et
e 

en
cl

o
se

d
 b

u
id

in
g 

ar
ea

 

N
o

rt
h

 V
a

lle
y 

B
u

ild
in

g 
Sy

st
em

s
o

f 
4"

 w
as

h
ed

 c
h

ip
 s

an
d

 -
$5

90
0.

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 7
-2

2-
20

20

C
h

an
ge

 O
rd

e
r 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 #
1

5,
9

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

A
d

d
 4

" 
W

as
h

ed
 C

h
ip

 S
an

d
 t

o
 In

te
ri

o
r;

 3
/4

" 
b

as
e

 R
o

ck
 a

t 
Ex

te
ri

o
r

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 1
0/

21
/2

02
0

SI
TE

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 N

V
B

S 
B

id

O
TH

ER
 S

P
EC

IA
LI

TY
 

45
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
,6

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$2

0,
1

10
 Q

u
o

te
 r

ec
'd

 6
/1

7/
20

20

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

(S
)

$2
4,

6
85

 M
o

d
if

ie
d

 Q
u

o
te

 r
ec

'd
 1

1/
9/

20
20

Sh
e

ep
 P

en
s-

N
E 

G
at

e

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 C
O

N
TI

N
G

EN
C

Y
 (

1
5.

0%
)

25
,7

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
%

 C
o

n
ti

n
ge

n
cy

 (
$3

0,
7

19
).

 F
u

n
d

s 
u

se
d

 f
o

r 
C

O
R

 #
1

 &
 

M
o

d
if

ie
d

 S
h

ee
p

 P
en

s 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 T
O

TA
L

2
8

3
,7

1
2

$
   

   
   

   
2

1
0

,6
9

5
$

   
   

   
 

SU
P

P
O

R
T 

C
O

ST

A
 &

 E
 F

EE
S 

(9
.0

%
)

25
,5

34
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

N
o

t 
to

 E
xc

ee
d

 A
m

o
u

n
t-

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 7
-2

2-
20

20

R
o

b
er

ts
o

n
 E

ri
ks

o
n

SI
TE

 IN
SP

EC
TO

R
 (

1
.2

5
%

)
3,

5
46

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
/A

D
SA

 &
 C

D
E 

FE
ES

 (
0

.7
5%

)
2,

1
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
/A

TE
ST

IN
G

 L
A

B
 (

0
.7

5%
)

2,
1

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

2
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
N

o
t 

to
 E

xc
ee

d
 A

m
o

u
n

t-
A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 8

-2
6-

20
20

M
.T

. H
al

l

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

(3
.5

%
)

9,
9

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

6
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
N

o
t 

to
 E

xc
ee

d
 A

m
o

u
n

t-
A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 7

-2
2-

20
20

EF
P

M
/L

LC

SU
P

P
O

R
T 

C
O

N
TI

N
G

EN
C

Y
 (

1
5.

0%
)

4,
3

27
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

%
 C

o
n

ti
n

ge
n

cy
 (

$2
,2

20
).

 U
se

d
 f

o
r 

C
O

R
 #

1
 a

b
o

ve
.

SU
P

P
O

R
T 

TO
TA

L
4

7
,5

9
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

1
4

,8
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

TO
TA

L
3

3
1

,3
0

5
$

   
   

   
   

2
2

5
,4

9
5

$
   

   
   

 

FU
N

D
IN

G
 A

V
A

IL
A

B
LE

2
5

0
,5

0
3

$
   

   
   

   

FU
N

D
 B

A
LA

N
C

E
2

5
,0

0
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

SC
H

ED
U

LE D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
C

O
M

P
LE

TE
D

 A
U

G
U

ST
 2

5,
 2

0
20

SI
TE

W
O

R
K

IN
IT

IA
L 

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 C
O

M
P

LE
TE

D
 O

C
TO

B
ER

 8
, 2

0
20

FO
U

N
D

A
TI

O
N

S
C

O
M

P
LE

TE
D

 O
C

TO
B

ER
 1

3,
 2

0
20

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

C
O

M
P

LE
TE

D
 W

EE
K

 O
F 

N
O

V
EM

B
ER

 2
0

, 2
02

0

C
O

M
P

LE
TI

O
N

P
U

N
C

H
 L

IS
T 

C
O

M
P

LE
TE

D
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 1
, 2

0
20

D
ec

em
b

er
 1

, 2
02

0

Page 173



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS 

BOARD INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEM 

December 9, 2020 

 

CURRENT SITE PURCHASE STATUS & TIMELINE (Defer to Supt. & Legal Counsel) 

CDE SITE PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS 

DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL (NV5) 

• Final PEA completed; submitted to DTSC 2/11/2020.  Required 30-day Public Comment Period 

opened 2/17/2020; closed 3/20/2020.  Public Comment Hearing completed at Board Meeting 

2/26/2020.  No adverse comments from DTSC received; No Further Action (Final Approval 

Letter) from DTSC (see attached) received 4/29/2020.  No further action required by the District; 

requirements completed. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (PLACEWORKS) 

• CEQA Final Report now completed; Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration on District 

Agenda for review 4/22/2020 (see separate Agenda item). Notice of Intent to Adopt and 30 

Public Comment period from 4/20/2020 through 5/20/2020; no public comments received to 

date. Board adoption and final Notice of Determination on August 26, 2020 Board Agenda for 

approval.  Final Notices of Determination filed with Glenn County Planning Commission ant 

California Office of Planning and Research.  CEQA requirements completed. 

TITLE 5 REPORTS (PLACEWORKS)- 

• Pipeline Safety Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY:  No mitigation measures 
required. 

• Railway Safety Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY: No special risks or mitigation 
required.  

• Dam Inundation Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY: Dam Inundation: No special 

risks or mitigation required. 

EDUCATIONAL SPECIFICATIONS (iep2) 

• Initial Steering Committee Meeting held 2/11/2020; meetings now being scheduled for site 

faculty, support staff, administrators, parents, students and community members. 

Teleconference staff scoping meetings scheduled for December 2020-February 2021. 

GEOLOGICAL HAZARDS STUDIES (EFPM/LLC) 

• Geological Hazards Study completed by EFPM/LLC after consultation with Department of 

Education/Facilities Division. Now in review at CDE. 

  

Page 174



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS 

BOARD INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEM 

December 9, 2020 

 

FINAL SITE SURVEY 

• Fieldwork for final site survey for escrow closure and recording completed by Robertson 

Erickson Surveying & Engineering in August 2020; final report at County Engineer for review. 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUBMITTAL (EFPM/LLC) 

• Request for Glenn County Planning Commission review (per Section 21151.2. Public Resources 

Code) submitted on 6/10/2020, with a requested return within 45 days. Public hearing and 

comments by Planning Commission at its August 19, 2020 Commission Meeting (see attached 

Glenn County Planning Commission Staff Report). Planning Commission submission requirement 

completed. 

WILLIAMSON ACT FILINGS (EFPM/LLC) 

• Initial Williamson Act abatement filings to County Planning Office and State Department of 

Conservation reviewed by District Legal Counsel and submitted to the State Department of 

Conservation and the Glenn County Planning Commission on 6/15/2020. Approval by 

Department of Conservation on 7/23/2020; review and comment by Glenn County Planning 

Commission at its August 19, 2020 Commission Meeting (see above).  Department must file 

copy of final executed purchase agreement with Department of Conservation. 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FILINGS 

• CDE Initial Filings & SFPD 4.03 now being prepared, including all completed studies/documents 

noted above. 

 

Page 175



CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE CHECKLIST – October 2020 
 

 

District Name: Hamilton Unified School District  
 

 

Contact Name: Tiffany Wilhelm  Phone:530-826-3261 Email: twilhelm@husdschools.org 
 

 

 

Page 1 of 2 

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT 

DATE 

E 1113 District and School Web Sites NEW EXHIBIT/New Law 

 

 

BP 3280 Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real 

Property 
New Law  

BP 3530 Risk Management/Insurance New Law  

AR 3530 Risk Management/Insurance Policy Update  

BP 4119.11 

4219.11 

4319.11 

Sexual Harassment Policy Update  

AR 4119.11 

4219.11 

4319.11 

Sexual Harassment Fill in Blanks 

Superintendent 

PO Box 488 

Hamilton City, CA 95951 

530-826-3261 

 

 

AR 4119.12 

4219.12 

4319.12 

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures 

Policy Update  

E 4119.12 

4219.12 

4319.12 

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures 
NEW EXHIBIT 

 

 

BP 4157 

4257 

4357 

Employee Safety New State Regulation 

 
 

AR 4157 

4257 

4357 

Employee Safety New State Regulation  

AR 4157.1 

4257.1 

4357.1 

Work-Related Injuries New Law  

Page 176



CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE CHECKLIST – October 2020 
 

 

District Name: Hamilton Unified School District  
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

POLICY TITLE OPTIONS/BLANKS ADOPT 

DATE 

BP 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy Policy Update  

AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy Policy Update  

AR 5113.11 Attendance Supervision Regulation update to reflect 

new law 
 

BP 5145.7 Sexual Harassment Policy Update  

AR 5145.7 Sexual Harassment Regulation Update  

AR 5145.71 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures 
Regulation Update  

E 5145.71 Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures 
NEW EXHIBIT 

 

 

BP 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional 

Materials 
New Law  

AR 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional 

Materials 

Regulation Update  

E 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional 

Materials 

Regulation Update  

E(1) 9323.2 Actions by the Board Exhibit Update  

 

Page 177



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

October 2020 

First Reading December 9, 2020 

 

 

Note:  Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 

board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 

should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 
NEW - Exhibit 1113 - District and School Web Sites 

New exhibit lists material which state and/or federal law explicitly requires to be posted on district and/or 

school web sites, including a citation to the legal authority and a reference to the board policy, administrative 

regulation, or board bylaw that further describes the requirement. 

 

Board Policy 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property  

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 820, 2020) which adds, until July 1, 2024, an exception to the 

requirement that boards appoint an advisory committee for the sale or lease of district-owned property if the 

property has not operated as an early childhood education facility or for elementary or secondary instruction, 

and NEW LAW (SB 98, 2020) which authorizes, until July 1, 2024, the proceeds from the sale or lease of 

property purchased entirely with local funds to be used for any one-time general fund purpose if certain 

conditions are met. Policy also adds material regarding the authorization for boards to meet in closed session 

with real property negotiators, the requirement to notify the Office of Public School Construction within 90 

days if the district sells property that utilized funds received from a state school facilities program within the 

previous 10 years and the proceeds were not used for specified purposes, and conditions under which the 

State Allocation Board may require a return of the funds. 

 

Board Policy 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance 

Policy updated to address the basis upon which insurance decisions should be made and the provision of 

safety-related training and protective equipment for staff. Policy also updated to delete material regarding 

the removal of an insurance agent as being implicit in a governing board's authority and explicit in insurance 

contracts.  Timeline for reporting to the board on risk management activities revised from twice a year to 

periodically to give boards flexibility based on district need. 

 

Administrative Regulation 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance 

Regulation updated to provide more detail in the list of risk management procedures, including examples of 

methods for identifying risks in district operations, the prioritization of risks based on frequency and potential 

impact, and examples of strategies to prevent loss. Regulation also adds optional language regarding the 

documentation of safety incidents. 

 

Board Policy 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment 

Policy updated to clarify that, in some instances, it may be necessary to concurrently review a sexual 

harassment complaint under both the Title IX sexual harassment complaint procedures and the district's 

procedure reflecting state law, as described in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment, in order to meet 

the applicable timelines.  Policy also adds the requirement to provide supportive measures to the respondent 

as well as the complainant.   

 

Administrative Regulation 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment 

Regulation updated to add section on "Definitions," including the federal definition of sexual harassment for 

purposes of applying the Title IX complaint procedures. Section identifying the Title IX Coordinator(s) 

moved and revised to reference CSBA's AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Complaint Procedures.  Section on "Notifications" adds federal requirement to disseminate the district's 

sexual harassment policy and procedures, along with the name and contact information of the Title IX 

Coordinator, by posting them in a prominent location on the district's web site and including them in any 

handbook provided to employees or employee organizations. New section on "Complaint Procedures" 

references the applicable procedures and the responsibility of the district to take prompt action to stop the 

sexual harassment, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effects. 

Page 178



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

October 2020 

First Reading December 9, 2020 

 
 

Administrative Regulation 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 

Regulation updated to clarify that a sexual harassment complaint that is dismissed or denied under Title IX 

may still be subject to review under state law pursuant to AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment and 

thus the two procedures should be implemented concurrently in order to meet the applicable timelines.  

Regulation also updated to clarify that the applicability of the Title IX sexual harassment complaint 

procedures is limited to conduct that allegedly occurs in an education program or activity over which the 

district exercises control; revise the timeframe for concluding the complaint process from 45 to 60 days;  

reflect the right to pursue civil law remedies; and add the requirement to maintain a record of any actions, 

including supportive measures, taken in response to a report or formal complaint of sexual harassment. 

 

NEW - Exhibit 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 

New exhibit presents a sample of the required notification to employees, job applicants, and employee 

organizations regarding the district's Title IX sexual harassment policy, the district's Title IX coordinator, 

and grievance procedures pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8.  

 

Board Policy 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety 

Policy updated to reflect NEW STATE REGULATION (Register 2020, No. 10) which requires districts 

to provide employees with access to the district's injury and illness prevention program, and to add the 

prohibition against discharging or discriminating against an employee for exercising any right protected by 

the Occupational Safety and Health Act.  

 

Administrative Regulation 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW STATE REGULATION (Register 2020, No. 10) which requires that 

access to the district's injury and illness prevention program be provided to employees by either providing 

access in a reasonable time, place, and manner or providing unobstructed access through the district's server 

or web site. Regulation also updated to add material regarding the provision of facilities for quick drenching 

within the work area for immediate use when there is exposure to injurious corrosive materials. Regulation 

adds a section on "Protection from Communicable Diseases and Infections" which includes the development 

of an exposure control plan for bloodborne pathogens and strategies to prevent and mitigate infectious 

diseases, and a section on "COVID-19 Exposure" reflecting NEW LAW (AB 685, 2020) which specifies 

notifications that must be provided if the district receives notice of potential exposure to COVID-19 or the 

Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) prohibits entry into any district work site that 

exposes employees to the risk of COVID-19. 

 

Administrative Regulation 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1804, 2019) which requires that a report of death or serious 

injury or illness be immediately reported to Cal/OSHA by telephone or through an online mechanism 

established by Cal/OSHA, with clarification that districts may make the report by telephone or email until 

Cal/OSHA has an online mechanism available, and NEW LAW (AB 1805, 2019) which redefines "serious 

injury or illness." Regulation adds optional language regarding the responsibility of employees to document 

any incident, and combines options regarding the reporting of incidents to the insurance carrier or Department 

of Industrial Relations. Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (SB 1159, 2020) which provides that an 

employee will be presumed to be entitled to workers' compensation benefits for illness or injury resulting 

from COVID-19 if the diagnosis was made within 14 days after the employee performed labor or services at 

the place of employment and other conditions are met. 

 

Board Policy 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy 

Policy updated to designate the attendance supervisor as the person responsible for performing various 

assignments related to absence and truancy; reflect a tiered approach for reducing chronic absence which 

includes universal strategies and letters to parents/guardians; expand material regarding early intervention; 

add the provision of training and information to staff for the implementation of a trauma-informed approach 

to chronic absence; reflect chronic absence as a measure of district and school performance on the California 

Page 179



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

October 2020 

First Reading December 9, 2020 

 
School Dashboard; and add grade level to the list of specific data to be provided to the board regarding 

attendance, absence, and truancy. 

 

Administrative Regulation 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy 

Regulation updated to reflect law allowing the referral of a chronic absentee (rather than a student who is 

"irregular in attendance") to a school attendance review board (SARB), a truancy mediation, or a comparable 

program and requiring documentation of the interventions undertaken at the school when making such a 

referral. Regulation also revised to give students who are absent the opportunity to make up missed work for 

full credit and support to limit the impact of absences on grades. Regulation clarifies that parents/guardians 

of students between 13 and 18 years of age must be notified, upon initial identification of their child for 

truancy, that the student may be subject to suspension, or delay of driving privilege. 

 

Administrative Regulation 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision 

Regulation updated to reflect the requirements to investigate complaints of violations of compulsory 

education laws, gather and transmit to the county superintendent of schools the number and type of referrals 

made to the SARB and of requests for petitions made to the juvenile court, and refer a matter to court if a 

parent/guardian continually and willfully fails to respond to SARB directives or services.  

 

Board Policy 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment 

Policy updated to clarify that, in some instances, it may be necessary to concurrently review a sexual 

harassment complaint under both the Title IX sexual harassment complaint procedures and the district's 

uniform complaint procedures (UCP) in order to meet the applicable timelines.  Policy also adds the 

requirement to provide supportive measures to the respondent as well as the complainant.   

 

Administrative Regulation 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment 

Regulation updated to add section on "Definitions," including the federal definition of sexual harassment for 

purposes of applying the Title IX complaint procedures. Section identifying the Title IX Coordinator(s) 

moved and revised to reference CSBA's AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

Section on "Notifications" adds requirement to notify students and parents/guardians that the district does 

not discrimination on the basis of sex and that inquiries about the application of Title IX may be referred to 

the Title IX Coordinator or the U.S. Department of Education; deletes requirement to provide contact 

information of the Title IX Coordinator to employees, bargaining units, and job applicants which is addressed 

in AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment; and reflects NEW LAW (AB 34, 2019) which 

requires districts to post the definition of sex discrimination and harassment in a prominent location on the 

district's web site.  

 

Administrative Regulation 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 

Regulation updated to clarify that a sexual harassment complaint that is dismissed or denied under Title IX 

may still be subject to review under the district's UCP and thus the two procedures should be implemented 

concurrently in order to meet the applicable timelines.  Regulation also updated to clarify that the applicability 

of the Title IX sexual harassment complaint procedures is limited to conduct that allegedly occurs in an 

education program or activity over which the district exercises control; add optional language providing that 

an employee must forward a report of sexual harassment to the Title IX Coordinator within one day, 

consistent with AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment; revise the timeframe for concluding the complaint process 

from 45 to 60 days to align with requirements of the UCP; reflect the right to appeal the district's decision to 

the California Department of Education consistent with the UCP or to pursue civil law remedies; and add the 

requirement to maintain a record of any actions, including supportive measures, taken in response to a report 

or formal complaint of sexual harassment. 

 

NEW - Exhibit 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures 

New exhibit presents a sample of the required notification to students and parents/guardians regarding the 

district's Title IX sexual harassment policy, the district's Title IX coordinator, and grievance procedures 

pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8.  

Page 180



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET 

October 2020 

First Reading December 9, 2020 

 
 

Board Policy 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 820, 2020) which revises the definition of "technology-based 

materials" to include the electronic equipment required to make use of those materials, making such 

equipment subject to the determination of sufficiency. Policy also deletes unnecessary legal citations related 

to the State Board of Education's (SBE) adoption of academic standards, deletes section on "Review Process" 

which was moved to the AR, deletes option in regard to public hearings on the sufficiency of textbooks and 

other instructional materials for schools that operate on a multitrack year-round calendar since such schools 

can use the same language as those that operate on a traditional calendar, and adds references to sample board 

policy and regulations for complaints concerning instructional materials.  

 

Administrative Regulation 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 

Regulation updated to add section on "Review Process" formerly in the BP and revise the section to 

encourage input from a diverse group of stakeholders. Section on "Criteria for Selection and Adoption of 

Instructional Materials" revised to delete unnecessary legal citations related to SBE's adoption of academic 

standards; move material regarding publisher requirements for grades 9-12 to end of list ot make it easier for 

K-8 districts to delete; replace the list of nondiscrimination categories with a reference to BP 0410 - 

Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities; add a new item on criteria for technology-based 

materials; emphasize the importance of the accurate portrayal of the cultural and racial diversity of society 

in instructional materials; and delete an outdated item regarding quality, durability and appearance.  "Conflict 

of Interest" section revised to delete redundant and difficult-to-enforce item. 

 

Exhibit 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 

Exhibit updated to delete unnecessary legal citations related to SBE's adoption of academic standards and to 

change "foreign language" to "world language" consistent with current law. 

 

Exhibit(1) 9323.2 - Actions by the Board 

Exhibit updated to clarify items under "Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board" and "Actions 

Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board" regarding emergency facilities conditions as only applying to 

districts that have adopted the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act procedures.  Item regarding 

the expenditure and transfer of funds or use of district property or personnel to meet a national or local 

emergency created by war moved from "Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board" to "Action 

Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting" to more accurately reflect law. 

 

 

 

 

Page 181



CSBA Sample 
Exhibit 
 

Community Relations E 1113(a) 

 

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES 

 

 

MATERIALS REQUIRED TO BE POSTED ON DISTRICT WEB SITE 

 
Note:  The following exhibit lists material which the law explicitly requires be posted on district or 

school web sites. See the referenced Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for 

further information about related requirements. The exhibit does not include other postings that may 

recommended throughout CSBA's sample policy manual but are not required by law.  

 

Materials to Prominently Display 

 

The following must be posted in a prominent location on the district's web site, such as 

on the home page when required by law: 

 

1. The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP), any updates or 

revisions to the LCAP, and the local control funding formula budget overview 

(Education Code 52064.1, 52065).  See AR 0460 - Local Control and 

Accountability Plan. 

 

2. A direct link to the current board agenda containing the time and location of the 

meeting and a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted 

or discussed at the meeting, including items to be discussed in closed session, or a 

link to the district's agenda management platform where the current agenda 

shall be the first available (Government Code 54954.2, 54956).  Post at least 72 

hours before a regular board meeting or 24 hours before a special meeting.  See 

BB 9320 - Meetings and Notices and BB 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials. 

 

3. The district's policy on student suicide prevention including, for grades K-6, the 

age appropriateness of the policy (Education Code 234.6).  See BP 5141.52 - 

Suicide Prevention. 

 

4. The district's policies and procedures prohibiting discrimination, harassment, 

student sexual harassment, intimidation, bullying, and cyberbullying, including 

a section on social media bullying that includes all of the references described in 

Education Code 234.6 as possible forums for social media (Education Code 

234.6).  See AR 5131.2 - Bullying and AR 5145.3 - 

Nondiscrimination/Harassment. 

 

5. The district's policy on preventing and responding to hate violence, if the district 

has adopted such a policy (Education Code 234.6).  See BP 5145.9 - Hate-

Motivated Behavior. 

 

Page 182



 E 1113(b) 

 

 

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES  (continued) 

 

 

6. The definition of discrimination and harassment based on sex as described in 

Education Code 230, including the rights set forth in Education Code 221.8 

(Education Code 234.6).  See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment. 

 

7. Information regarding Title IX prohibitions against discrimination based on a 

student's sex, gender, gender identity, pregnancy, and parental status, including 

the name and contact information of the Title IX Coordinator, the rights of 

students and the public as specified in Education Code 221.8, the responsibilities 

of the district under Title IX, web links to information about those rights and 

responsibilities on the web sites of the Office for Equal Opportunity and the U.S. 

Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights, a description of how to file a 

complaint of noncompliance under Title IX with specified components, and a 

link to Title IX information posted on the California Department of Education's 

(CDE) web site (Education Code 221.6, 221.61, 234.6; 34 CFR 106.8).  See AR 

5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment and AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 

8. A link to statewide CDE-compiled resources, including community-based 

organizations, that provide support to youth who have been subjected to school-

based discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying and to their families 

(Education Code 234.5, 234.6). See AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment. 

 

9. If the district has formed a community facilities district (Mello-Roos district) for 

the acquisition or improvement of school facilities, a copy of the annual report 

for the fiscal year if requested pursuant to Government Code 53343.1, the report 

provided to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission pursuant 

to Government Code 53359.5, and the report provided to the State Controller's 

office pursuant to Government Code 12463.2 (Government Code 53343.2).  Post 

within seven months after the last day of the fiscal year. See BP 7212 - Mello-

Roos Districts. 

 

Other Postings 

 

The following materials are also required to be posted on the district web site.  

However, there are no specific requirements related to where they are posted on the 

web site. 

 

1. The Special Education Local Plan Area's approved comprehensive local plan for 

special education, annual budget plan, annual service plan, and annual 

assurances support plan and any updates or revisions to the plans (Education 

Code 56205.5).  See AR 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education. 

 

 

 

Page 183



 E 1113(c) 

 

 

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES  (continued) 

 

 

2. The district's nondiscrimination policy and regulation, including the complaint 

procedure and the compliance coordinator's contact information (34 CFR 100.6, 

106.8).  See BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities and 

AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. 

 

3. Training materials used to train the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), 

decision-maker(s), and any person(s) who facilitate an informal resolution 

process in response to a Title IX sexual harassment complaint (34 CFR 106.45). 

See AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures and AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures. 

 

4. For all schools offering competitive athletics, the total enrollment of the school 

classified by gender, the number of students enrolled at the school who 

participate in competitive athletics classified by gender, and the number of boys' 

and girls' teams classified by sport and by competition level (Education Code 

221.9). The information shall be posted at the end of the school year on the 

school's web site or, if the school does not have a web site, on the district's web 

site.  See AR 6145.2 - Athletic Competition. 

 

5. If the district has interdistrict attendance agreement(s), the procedures and 

timelines for requesting an interdistrict transfer permit, including, but not 

limited to, a link to the board's policy on interdistrict attendance, the date that 

the district will begin accepting applications, reasons that the district may 

approve/deny the request, the process for appeal, that failure to meet timelines 

will be deemed an abandonment of the request, and the condition under which 

an exiting interdistrict transfer permit may be revoked or rescinded (Education 

Code 46600.2).  See AR 5117 - Interdistrict Transfer. 

 

6. If the district has elected to be a school district of choice, application information 

including, at a minimum, any applicable form, the timeline for a transfer, and an 

explanation of the selection process (Education Code 48301).  See AR 5117 - 

Interdistrict Transfer. 

 

7. For districts that offer grade 9, the district's policy and protocols related to 

student placement in mathematics courses (Education Code 51224.7).  See AR 

6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses. 

 

8. The section(s) of the district's employee code of conduct addressing interactions 

with students (Education Code 44050).  Post these section(s) or a link to them on 

each school's web site or, if a school does not have its own web site, on the  

 

 

Page 184



 E 1113(d) 

 

 

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES  (continued) 

 

 

 district's web site in a manner that is accessible to the public without a 

password.  See BP 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards and BP 

4119.24/4219.24/4319.24 - Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions. 

 

9. The district's meal payment collection policy and procedures (CDE Nutrition 

Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-03-2017).  See AR 3551 - Food 

Services Operations/Cafeteria Fund. 

 

10. If the district includes information about the free and reduced-priced meal 

program on its web site, a nondiscrimination statement about the district's status 

as an equal opportunity provider and the address of the agency with 

responsibility to handle complaints made against the district (U.S. Department 

of Agriculture's FNS Instruction 113-1).  For the required wording of the 

statement, see E 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance. 

 

11. The school's or district's integrated pest management plan, whenever a school 

chooses to use a pesticide not exempted pursuant to Education Code 17610.5 

(Education Code 17611.5).  Post on the school's web site or, if the school does not 

have a web site, then on the district's web site.  See AR 3514.2 Integrated Pest 

Management.  

 

12. When a citizens' oversight committee is formed after the approval of a bond 

under the 55 percent majority threshold, the committee's minutes, documents 

received, and reports issued (Education Code 15280).  See AR 7214 - General 

Obligation Bonds.   

 

13. Copy of each school's school accountability report card, on or before February 1 

of each year (Education Code 35258).  See BP 0510 - School Accountability 

Report Card. 

 

14. Results of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC) or other 

accrediting agency's inspection of a school, within 60 days of receiving the 

results.  (This notification could be made in writing to parents/guardians instead 

of or in addition to posting the results on the district's web site.)  In addition, if a 

school loses its WASC or other agency's accreditation, the district and school 

shall post on their web sites a notice of the loss of accreditation and potential 

consequences (Education Code 35178.4).  See BP 6190 - Evaluation of the 

Instructional Program.  

 

 10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 185



CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3280(a) 

 

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY 

 

 
Note:  The following optional policy and accompanying administrative regulation detail the procedures that 

govern the district's sale or lease of surplus real property. 

 

When district properties are not being utilized for school purposes after specific time periods, Education Code 

17219-17224 authorize the State Allocation Board (SAB) to charge an "unused site fee." For further 

information regarding non-use payments, see the Office of Public School Construction's Unused Site Program 

Handbook. 

 

Education Code 17455 authorizes the sale, or lease of for up to 99 years, of any district real property together 

with any personal property located thereon without taking a vote of the electors of the district approval of the 

voters within the district. To do so, the property must not or will not be needed by the district and the 

district must follow the procedures under stated in Education Code 17387-17391. 

 

Pursuant to Education Code 17219, when the district has not used a previously used site for school 

purposes within the preceding five years, or has not used a newly acquired site within five years of 

acquisition for any of grades K-8 or seven years of acquisition for any of grades 7-12, the State 

Allocation Board (SAB) is authorized to charge an "unused site fee" pursuant to Education Code 

17219-17224.  For further information regarding non-use payments, see the Office of Public School 

Construction's Unused Site Program Handbook. 

 

The Governing Board believes that district facilities and resources should be utilized in an 

economical and practical manner. The Superintendent or designee shall periodically study the 

current and projected use of all district facilities to ensure the efficient utilization of space for 

the effective delivery of instruction. 

 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 

(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 

(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 

(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 17387-17391, before surplus real property is sold or leased, the Governing 

Board must appoint an advisory committee to advise the Board on the disposition of such property.  

Education Code 17388 and 17391 establish exceptions from this requirement. for rentals not exceeding 30 

days, and for the lease or rental of a district facility to a private educational institution for the purpose of 

offering summer school. In addition, Education Code 17391, as amended by AB 1157 (Ch. 717, Statutes of 

2017), provides that an advisory committee need not be appointed prior to the sale, lease, or rental of excess 

real property if it is to be used for teacher or other employee housing. As amended by SB 820 (Ch. 110, 

Statutes of 2020), Education Code 17391 adds an exception, until July 1, 2024, for the sale or lease of 

property that has not previously operated, or was not constructed to be operated, as an early childhood 

education facility or a school for elementary or secondary instruction. 

 

Education Code 17389 requires that the advisory committee be representative of specific groups within the 

community and be composed of not less than seven nor more than 11 members (commonly referred to as a 

"7-11 committee"). See the accompanying administrative regulation for further information on the 

composition and duties of this committee. 

Page 186



 BP 3280(b) 

 

 

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 

 

 

Prior to the sale or lease of any surplus real property, tThe Board shall appoint a district 

advisory committee prior to the sale or lease of any surplus real property to advise the Board 

regarding the use or disposition of schools or school building space which is not needed for 

school purposes.  Rentals of surplus property not exceeding 30 days are exempted from this 

requirement. When the sale, lease, or rental of surplus property is for the purpose of teacher 

or other employee housing or for the offering of summer school by a private educational 

institution, tThe Board may elect not to appoint a district advisory committee. for any of the 

following:  (Education Code 17387-17388, 17391) 

 

1. A rental of property for a period of time not exceeding 30 days 

 

2. A lease or rental of surplus property to a private educational institution for the 

purpose of offering summer school  

 

3. A sale, lease, or rental of surplus property to be used for teacher or other employee 

housing 

 

4. Until July 1, 2024, a sale or lease of surplus property that has not previously 

operated, or was not constructed to be operated, as an early childhood education 

facility or a school for elementary or secondary instruction 

 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 65402, if the county or city has adopted a general plan which is 

applicable in the area where the district property is located, the district must notify the county or city planning 

agency of the location, purpose, and extent of the proposed disposition of district property so that the agency 

can determine and report on the extent to which the disposition conforms with the local planning agency's 

general plan. The planning agency has 40 days during which it may raise objections. If objections are not 

raised within 40 days, the lack of response is deemed to be a finding that the district's proposed disposition of 

the property is in conformity with the local planning agency's adopted general plan. 

 

In addition, to ensure that the proposed disposition of the property conforms with any 

general plan adopted by If the local planning agency has adopted a general plan that affects 

or includes the area where the surplus property is located, the Board shall submit a report to 

the local planning agency describing the location of the surplus property and the purpose and 

extent of the proposed sale or lease.  (Government Code 65402) 

 
Note:  When proposing the sale or lease of surplus property, the district must also comply with Public 

Resources Code 21000-21177 (the California Environmental Quality Act) (CEQA), when applicable. 

Pursuant to 14 CCR 15061, the sale or lease of property is exempt from detailed CEQA review if there is no 

possibility that the sale or lease will have a significant environmental effect. In such cases, the district must 

adopt a notice of exemption in accordance with 14 CCR 14062. 

 

 

 

Page 187



 BP 3280(c) 

 

 

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 

 

 

The Board shall determine whether the sale or lease of the surplus property is subject to 

review under the California Environmental Quality Act.  (Public Resources Code 21000-

21177; 14 CCR 15061-15062) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 54956.8, the Board may hold a closed session for real property 

negotiations, including the sale or lease of property by the district. An Attorney General opinion (94 

Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 82 (2011)) has concluded that only three subjects related to real property 

negotiations may be considered in closed session:  (1) the amount of consideration the local agency is 

willing to pay or accept in exchange for the real property rights to be acquired or transferred; (2) the 

form, manner, and timing of how that consideration will be paid; and (3) items that are essential to 

arriving at the authorized price and payment terms.  See BB 9321 - Closed Session. 

 

The Board may meet in closed session with its real property negotiator prior to the sale 

or lease of real property by the district in order to grant its negotiator authority 

regarding the minimum price or rent and terms of the sale or lease.  (Government Code 

54956.8) 

 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session) 

 
Note:  When a district is selling any surplus property or leasing it with an option to purchase, Education Code 

17464 lists the public entities that must be given priority to lease or purchase the property and the types of 

notice that the district must provide such entities before disposing of the property. Under certain 

circumstances, districts may also need to comply with the Naylor Act (Education Code 17485-17500), which 

requires that priority be given to public agencies when disposing of any district property that includes a 

playground, playing field, or land with an outdoor recreational purpose. Under certain conditions, the district 

may grant priority to licensed child care providers pursuant to Education Code 17458 or may sell surplus 

property for less than fair market value to public entities for recreational purposes pursuant to Education Code 

17230. The requirement to first offer surplus property to a charter school with a projected in-district average 

daily attendance of at least 80 students expired July 1, 2016 pursuant to the terms of Education Code 17457.5. 

 

When selling or leasing district real property, the Board shall comply with applicable 

procedures and give priority to specified public agencies as required by law comply with the 

priorities and procedures specified in applicable law.  (Education Code 17230, 17464, 17485-

17499; Government Code 54222) 

 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 

(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 17462.3, the SAB may require a district selling real property purchased, 

improved, or modernized with funds received from a state school facilities funding program, to return those 

funds if:  (1) the state funds were received and the property purchased or improved within the previous 10 

years; (2) the proceeds from the sale are not used for capital outlay; and (3) the property is not sold to a 

charter school, another school district, a county office of education, or an agency that will use the property 

exclusively for the delivery of child care and development services.  

 

 

Page 188



 BP 3280(d) 

 

 

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 

 

 

When selling real property purchased, constructed, or modernized with funds received within 

the past 10 years from a state school facilities funding program, the Board shall consider 

whether any of the proceeds from the sale will need to be returned to the State Allocation 

Board (SAB) pursuant to Education Code 17462.3. 

 

Resolution of Intention to Sell or Lease 

 

Before ordering the sale or lease of any real property, the Board shall adopt a resolution by a 

two-thirds vote of all of its members at a regularly scheduled open meeting. The resolution 

shall describe the property proposed to be sold or leased in such a manner as to identify it, 

specify the minimum price or rent, describe the terms upon which it will be sold or leased, 

and specify the commission or rate, if any, which the Board will pay to a licensed real estate 

broker out of the minimum price or rent. The resolution shall fix a time, not less than three 

weeks thereafter, for a public meeting, held at the Board's regular meeting place, at which 

sealed proposals to purchase or lease will be received and considered.  (Education Code 

17466) 

 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notice of the adoption of the resolution and of 

the time and place of the meeting that will be held to consider bids by posting copies of the 

resolution, signed by the Board, in three public places not less than 15 days before the date of 

the meeting. In addition, the notice shall be published at least once a week for three 

successive weeks before the meeting, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the 

county in which the district is located, if such a newspaper exists.  (Education Code 17469) 

 
Note:  Education Code 17470 requires districts to take reasonable steps to notify the former owner of 

the property of the public meeting at which bids will be considered.  However, the Board is not 

required to accord the former owner the right to purchase the property at the tentatively accepted 

highest bid price nor to offer to sell the property to the former owner at the tentatively accepted highest 

bid price. 

 

In accordance with Education Code 17470, At least 60 days prior to the public meeting, 

the Superintendent or designee shall take reasonable steps to provide written notification of 

the public meeting, by certified mail, to the former owners of the property of the district's 

intent to sell it. from whom the district acquired the property.  (Education Code 17470) 

 

Acceptance/Rejection of Bids 

 

At the public meeting specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease property, the 

Board shall open, examine, and declare all sealed bids.  Before accepting a written proposal, 

the Board shall call for oral bids in accordance with law.  (Education Code 17472, 17473) 

 

Page 189



 BP 3280(e) 

 

 

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 

 

 

The Board may reject any and all bids, either written or oral, and withdraw the properties 

from sale when the Board determines that rejection is in the best public interest. If no 

proposals are submitted or the submitted proposals do not conform to all the terms and 

conditions specified in the resolution of intention to lease, the Board may lease the property 

in accordance with Education Code 17477.  (Education Code 17476, 17477) 

 

Of the proposals submitted by responsible bidders which conform to all terms and conditions 

specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease, the Board shall finally accept the 

highest bid after deducting the commission, if any, to be paid to a licensed real estate broker, 

unless the Board accepts a higher oral bid or rejects all bids.  (Education Code 17472) 

 

The final acceptance of the bid may be made either at the same meeting specified in the 

resolution or at any adjourned/continued meeting held within 10 days.  Upon acceptance of 

the bid, the Board may adopt a resolution of acceptance that directs the Board president, or 

any other Board member, to execute the deed or lease and to deliver the document upon 

performance and compliance by the successful bidder of all of the terms and conditions of 

the contract.  (Education Code 17475-17478) 

 
(cf. 1431 - Waivers) 

 

Use of Proceeds 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 17462, the proceeds derived from the sale of surplus property or lease with 

an option to purchase must generally be used for one-time expenditures for capital outlay or maintenance, 

with specified exceptions. except as provided below.  In addition, Education Code 17462 requires that the 

proceeds be used for one-time expenditures and prohibits the use for ongoing expenditures such as salaries 

and general operating expenses. However, 2 CCR 1700 authorizes the use of such proceeds, if approved by 

the SAB, for one-time funding to reduce a district's unfunded liability for other postemployment benefits 

(OPEBs) (i.e., medical, dental, vision, hearing, life insurance, long-term care, long-term disability, and other 

nonpension benefits for retired employees). For information about prefunding OPEBs and reporting the 

district's liability for OPEBs, see BP 3100 - Budget and AR 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability. The 

law does not place limitations on the use of proceeds for a lease of surplus property that does not include an 

option to purchase. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the proceeds from the sale or lease with an 

option to purchase of surplus district property are used for one-time expenditures and not for 

ongoing expenditures such as salaries and general operating expenses.  (Education Code 

17462; 2 CCR 1700) 

 

Proceeds from a sale of surplus district property shall generally be used for capital outlay or 

maintenance costs that the Board determines will not recur within a five-year period.  

Proceeds from a lease of district property with an option to purchase may be deposited into a 

restricted fund for the routine repair of district facilities, as defined by the SAB, for up to a 

five-year period.  (Education Code 17462) 

 

Page 190



 BP 3280(f) 

 

 

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 

 

 

Proceeds from a lease of district property with an option to purchase may be deposited into a 

restricted fund for the routine repair of district facilities, as defined by the SAB, for up to a 

five-year period.  (Education Code 17462) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 17462, proceeds from the sale or lease with an option to purchase may be 

deposited in the district's general fund when the Board and SAB determine that the district has no anticipated 

need for additional sites or building construction for the next 10 years and no major deferred maintenance 

requirements. Thus, districts may not apply to the state for new construction or modernization funding during 

that time period unless certain conditions specified in Education Code 17462 are satisfied. 

 

However, if If the Board and SAB determine that the district has no anticipated need for 

additional sites or building construction for the next 10 years and no major deferred 

maintenance requirements, the proceeds from the sale or lease with an option to purchase 

may be deposited in a special reserve fund for the future maintenance and renovation of 

school sites or in the district's general fund. Proceeds from the sale or lease with option to 

purchase of district property may also be deposited in a special reserve fund for capital outlay 

or maintenance costs of district property that the Board determines will not recur within a 

five-year period.  (Education Code 17462) 

 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 

(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 

 
Note:  Until July 1, 2024, Education Code 17463.7, as added by SB 98 (Ch. 24, Statutes of 2020), 

authorizes the proceeds from the sale or lease of property purchased entirely with local funds to be 

used for any general fund purpose. 

 

In addition, until July 1, 2024, if district surplus property was purchased entirely with 

local funds, the proceeds from the sale or lease of the property, together with any 

personal property located on the property, may be deposited into the general fund of 

the district and may be used for any one-time general fund purpose. Before exercising 

this authority, the Board shall:  (Education Code 17463.7)  

 

1. Submit to SAB documents certifying that the sale of real property does not 

violate the provisions of a local bond act and the real property is not suitable to 

meet projected school construction needs for the next 10 years 

 

2. At a public meeting, adopt a plan for expending one-time resources from the sale 

or lease of the property which identifies the source and intended use of the 

surplus property proceeds and describes the reasons that the expenditure will 

not result in ongoing fiscal obligations for the district 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 17462.3, the SAB may require a if the district is selling real property 

purchased, improved, or modernized with funds received from a state school facilities funding program within 

the previous 10 years, the district is required to return those funds to SAB if:  (1) the state funds were 

 

Page 191



 BP 3280(g) 

 

 

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 

 

 
received and the property purchased or improved within the previous 10 years; (2) the proceeds from the sale 

are not used for capital outlay; and (3) the property is not sold to a charter school, another school district, a 

county office of education, or an agency that will use the property exclusively for the delivery of child care and 

development services.  under specified conditions.  The district must notify OPSC of the sale by submitting 

Form SAB 308, available on OPSC's web site. 

 

Whenever the district sells real property that was purchased, improved, or modernized 

with funds that were received from a state school facilities funding program within the 

previous 10 years, the district shall notify OPSC within 90 calendar days of the sale of 

the property if the proceeds from the sale are not used for capital outlay and the 

property is not sold to a charter school, another school district, a county office of 

education, or an agency that will use the property exclusively for the delivery of child 

care and development services. If SAB subsequently makes a finding that the sale is 

subject to Education Code 17462.3, the district shall return the funds to the SAB within 

90 calendar days of the finding.  (2 CCR 1702) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

17219-17224  Acquisition of property not utilized as school site; nonuse payments; exemptions 

17230-17234  Surplus property 

17385  Conveyances to and from school districts 

17387-17391  Advisory committees for use of excess school facilities 

17400-17429  Leasing property 

17430-17447  Leasing facilities 

17453  Lease of surplus district property 

17455-17484  Sale or lease of real property, especially: 

17462.3  State Allocation Board program to reclaim funds 

17485-17500  Surplus school playground (Naylor Act) 

17515-17526  Joint occupancy 

17527-17535  Joint use of district facilities 

33050  Request for waiver 

38130-38139  Civic Center Act 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

50001-50002  Definitions 

54220-54232  Surplus land, especially: 

54222  Offer to sell or lease property 

54950-54963  Brown Act, especially: 

54952  Legislative body, definition 

PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 

21000-21177  California Environmental Quality Act 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 

1700-1702  Definitions related to sSurplus property; use of proceeds 

 

 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 

 

Page 192



 BP 3280(h) 

 

 

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: (continued) 

COURT DECISIONS 

San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley Unified 

School District, (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

94 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 82 (2011) 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Closing a School Best Practices Guide 

OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PUBLICATIONS 

Unused Site Program Handbook, December 2015 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education, School Facilities Planning Division:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa 

Coalition for Adequate School Housing:  http://www.cashnet.org 

Office of Public School Construction: http://www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (4/14  10/17)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 193



CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3530(a) 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT/INSURANCE 

 

 
Note:  The following Board policy may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

The Governing Board strongly supports a risk management program that protects district 

resources and desires to promotes the safety of students, staff, and the public while 

protecting district resources.  The Superintendent or designee shall establish a risk 

management program that uses effective safety and loss control practices.   

 

The district shall strive to keep its liability at a minimum and its insurance premiums as low 

as possible while maintaining adequate protection against loss which may occur due to 

hazards facing the district.   

 

To determine the most economical means of insuring the district consistent with required 

services, the Superintendent or designee shall annually review the district's options for 

obtaining coverage, including qualified insurance agents, a joint powers agency, self-

insurance, or a combination of these means. Decisions regarding the means of insuring the 

district shall be based on a careful analysis of past claims records indicating the 

frequency and magnitude of losses and a prediction of future losses. 

 
Note:  In reviewing various means of insuring the district, decisions related to self-insurance should be based 

on a careful analysis of past claims records indicating the frequency and magnitude of losses and a prediction 

of future losses.  Any self-insured retention reserves should be carefully monitored and compared with open 

claims. 

 

The Board reserves the right to remove an insurance agent-of-record or a participating agent 

whenever, in the judgment of the Board, such action becomes desirable for the best interests 

of the district. 
 

To attempt to minimize the district's exposure to liability, the Board shall adopt clear policies 

related to discrimination, harassment, safety procedures, and the timely handling of claims.  

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that enforce these policies and related 

procedures are enforced fairly and consistently.  The Superintendent or designee shall 

provide safety-related training and protective equipment to staff as appropriate for 

their position. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11- Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 4132/4232/4332 - Publication or Creation of Materials) 

(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 

(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries) 

Page 194



 BP 3530(b) 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT/INSURANCE  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 

(cf. 5142 - Safety) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials) 

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection) 

 
Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to require more or less frequent reporting. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board twice a year on the 

district's risk management activities, including, but not limited to, the district's property 

and liability risks and exposures and the effectiveness of the district's risk management 

and loss control practices. 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 195



 BP 3530(c) 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT/INSURANCE  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

17029.5  Contract funding; board liability 

17565-17592  Board duties re property maintenance and control 

32350  Liability on equipment loaned to district 

35162  Power to sue, be sued, hold and convey property 

35200-35214  Liabilities, especially: 

35208  Liability insurance 

35211  Driver training civil liability insurance 

35213  Reimbursement for loss, destruction, or damage of personal property 

35214  Liability self-insurance 

35331  Medical or hospital service for students on field trip 

39837  Transportation of pupils students to places of summer employment 

41021  Requirement for employees' indemnity bonds 

44873  Qualifications for physician (liability coverage) 

49470-49474  District medical services and insurance 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

820.9  Board members not vicariously liable for injuries caused by district 

831.7  Hazardous recreational activities 

989-991.2  Local public entity insurance 

LABOR CODE 

3200-4855 Workers' compensation 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 

California Association of Joint Powers Authorities:  https://www.cajpa.org 

California Association of School Business Officials:  https://www.casbo.org 

California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Occupational Safety and Health:  

https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh 

Public Agency Risk Management Association: https://www.parma.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (9/88  10/95)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 196



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 
 

Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3530(a) 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT/INSURANCE 

 

 
Note:  The following administrative regulation may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

Risk Management 

 

The Superintendent or designee, in consultation with risk management, insurance, safety, 

or other professionals as appropriate, shall  take action to: 

 

1. Identify the risks inherent in the operation of district operations and programs, 

including physical sites, educational and experiential programs, computer 

networks and systems, employment and staffing, and transportation services, 

using methods that may include, but are not limited to, physical inspections, 

surveys, staff interviews, compliance reviews, contract reviews, review of policies 

and procedures, and consultation with experts 

 

2. Assess the above risks and keep records of accidents, losses and damage Analyze, 

evaluate, and prioritize identified risks based on the frequency and likelihood of 

the risk and the potential impact to the district 

 

3. Develop strategies to reduce or mitigate identified risks, such as new or modified 

policies, processes, or procedures; training or loss prevention programs; and/or 

additional or repairs to equipment, real property, computer networks, or other 

physical assets   

 

4. Implement strategies to promote safety and prevent loss, taking into account the 

nature of the risks, the associated exposures, and the costs and benefits 

associated with the proposed response  

 

3.5. Mitigate potential risks through loss control and safety-related loss following an 

incident through activities such as effective claims management, litigation 

management, disaster recovery, or a modified duty program for workers' 

compensation 

 

4. Determine the extent to which risks should be assumed by the district or covered by 

the purchase of insurance or pooling with other districts 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 

(cf. 4157/4257/4357- Employee Safety) 

(cf. 5142 - Safety) 

 

Page 197



 AR 3530(b) 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT/INSURANCE  (continued) 

 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall advise the Governing Board of any needed action 

requiring Board approval. 

 

Following any incident resulting in potential or actual harm or injury to a person or 

damage to property, staff shall promptly document the date and time of the incident, a 

description of the incident, and any persons present. 

 

Employees are expected to take reasonable precautions for the care and safety of the school 

equipment with which they have been entrusted.  Employees may be held responsible for 

recurring damage or losses that occur due to their negligence or lack of supervision.  

Responsibilities related to safety and loss control shall be included in employee job 

descriptions. 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 

(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts) 

(cf. 3430 - Investing) 

(cf. 3440 - Inventories) 

(cf. 3512 - Equipment) 

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 

(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 

(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 

(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies) 

(cf. 4112.42/4212.42/4312.43 - Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus Drivers) 

(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 

(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 

(cf. 4157/4257/4357- Employee Safety) 

(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check) 

(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 

(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 

(cf. 5142 - Safety) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips) 

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection) 

 

Insurance 

 
Note:  California law requires districts to maintain liability insurance, property fire insurance, workers' 

compensation insurance, and fidelity bond insurance.  Property insurance for theft and damage is permissive.  

The following list may be expanded to reflect other types of insurance that the district obtains, such as 

employee health insurance and athletic team member insurance for students who are not otherwise covered. 

 

Insurance or risk pooled coverage shall include, but may not be limited to: 

Page 198



 AR 3530(c) 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT/INSURANCE  (continued) 

 

 

1. Liability insurance  (Education Code 35200-35214) 

 

2. Fire insurance for buildings, equipment, and vehicles  Insurance against fire or 

other property damage (Education Code 17565) 

 

3. Workers' compensation insurance  (Labor Code 3700) 

 

4. Fidelity bond insurance for employees whose duty includes handling district 

funds, and other employees as needed  (Education Code 41021) 

 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 

(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries) 

(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 

 

A suitable bond indemnifying the district against loss shall be purchased for employees 

responsible for handling district funds and may be purchased for employees responsible for 

handling district property.  The district shall bear the cost of this bonding.  (Education Code 

41021) 

 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 

(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 

(cf. 4156.3/4256.3/4356.3 - Employee Property Reimbursement) 

(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries) 

(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 

(cf. 9260 - Legal Protection) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (9/88  10/95)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 199



CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 

All Personnel BP 4119.11(a) 

 4219.11 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 

 

 
Note:  Education Code 231.5, 2 CCR 11023, and 34 CFR 106.8 mandate the district to have a written policy 

on sexual harassment. As part of this mandate, the district also should adopt a sexual harassment policy 

related to students; see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment and AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Complaint Procedures. 

 

Sexual harassment is prohibited pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000e-2000e-

17) and/or Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681-1688; 34 CFR 106.1-106.82), as 

well as the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code 12900-12996). Whether a 

complaint of sexual harassment is addressed through federal Title IX complaint procedures adopted pursuant 

to 34 CFR 106.44-106.45, as added by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, or procedures adopted pursuant to 2 CCR 11023 

is dependent on whether the alleged conduct meets the more stringent federal definition of sexual harassment 

or the state definition.  In order to meet the applicable timelines, in some instances it may be necessary to 

review a complaint under both procedures concurrently.  See the accompanying administrative 

regulation, AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment, and AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual 

Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 

Pursuant to 2 CCR 11034, the district may be liable for sexual harassment committed by a supervisor, 

coworker, or a third party.  Pursuant to Government Code 12940, employers may also be held liable for 

sexual harassment committed against their workers by clients, customers, or other third parties if they knew 

or should have known of the harassment and failed to take immediate and appropriate corrective action to 

stop the harassment. 

 

The following policy shall apply to all district employees, interns, volunteers, contractors, job 

applicants, and other persons with an employment relationship with the district.  

 

The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free of 

harassment and intimidation. The Board prohibits sexual harassment against district 

employees and retaliatory behavior or action against any person who complains, testifies, or 

otherwise participates in the complaint process established for the purpose of this policy. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

 
Note:  Government Code 12940 clarifies that sexual harassment includes harassment based on sex, gender, 

pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions. 

 

Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, harassment that is based on the sex, gender, 

gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation of the victim and harassment based 

on pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions. 

 

 

 

 

Page 200



 BP 4119.11(b) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 
Note:  Federal and state courts have provided guidance that may help employers avoid liability or mitigate 

damages in sexual harassment cases. In Department of Health Services v. Superior Court (McGinnis), the 

California Supreme Court outlined measures that may constitute mitigating factors in the assessment of 

damages, including establishing anti-harassment policies, communicating those policies to employees, 

consistently enforcing the policies, preserving the confidentiality of employees who report harassment, and 

preventing retaliation against reporting employees. The U.S. Supreme Court in Burlington Industries v. 

Ellerth held that, for certain claims under federal law, an employer may defend against sexual harassment 

claims by proving that (1) reasonable care was exercised to prevent and promptly correct any sexually 

harassing behavior, and (2) the employee (victim) failed to take advantage of the preventive and corrective 

opportunities provided by the employer. 

 

Pursuant to Government Code 12950.1, as amended by SB 778 (Ch. 215, Statutes of 2019), employers with 

five or more employees are required to provide sexual harassment training to supervisory and nonsupervisory 

employees. See the accompanying administrative regulation for timelines and training requirements. 

 

Items #1-4 below reflect the courts' guidance and Government Code 12950.1, and should be modified to 

reflect district practice. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 

investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 

 

1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 

 

2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to employees 

and others to whom the policy may apply 

 

3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, fair, and equitable investigation of complaints 

 

4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require 

interim separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent 

monitoring of developments 

 
Note:  The following optional paragraph reflects a recommendation of the U.S. Equal Employment 

Opportunity Commission's informal guidance Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment and may be 

revised to reflect district practice. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the district's 

strategies to prevent and address harassment. Such evaluation may involve conducting 

regular anonymous employee surveys to assess whether harassment is occurring or is 

perceived to be tolerated, partnering with researchers or other agencies with the needed 

expertise to evaluate the district's prevention strategies, and using any other effective tool for 

receiving feedback on systems and/or processes. As necessary, changes shall be made to the 

harassment policy, complaint procedures, or training. 

 

Page 201



 BP 4119.11(c) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

Sexual Harassment Reports and Complaints 

 

Note: 34 CFR 106.8, as amended by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, requires the district to designate at least one 

employee to coordinate its responsibilities under Title IX, who must be referred to as the Title IX 

Coordinator.  See the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 

34 CFR 106.44, as added by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, requires the district, when there is actual knowledge of 

sexual harassment, to respond promptly in a manner that is not unreasonable in light of the known 

circumstances and in compliance with Title IX regulations. 34 CFR 106.30, as added, defines "actual 

knowledge" as notice of sexual harassment or allegations of sexual harassment being submitted to the 

district's Title IX Coordinator, any official of the district who has authority to institute corrective measures, 

or any employee of an elementary or secondary school.  For this reason, the district should train all 

employees regarding the reporting process. 

 

In Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, one of the factors relied on by the U.S. Supreme Court in finding liability 

for harassment by a supervisor was the failure of the policy to provide an assurance to its employees that 

harassing supervisors may be bypassed in registering complaints. 

 

District employees who feel that they have been sexually harassed in the performance of their 

district responsibilities or who have knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by or 

against another employee shall immediately report the incident to their direct supervisor, a 

district administrator, or the district's Title IX Coordinator. Employees may bypass their 

supervisor in filing a complaint if the supervisor is the subject of the complaint. A supervisor 

or administrator who receives a harassment complaint shall promptly notify the Title IX 

Coordinator. 

 

Once notified, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure the complaint or allegation is addressed 

through either AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures for complaints meeting the Title IX definition of sexual harassment or AR 4030 - 

Nondiscrimination in Employment for complaints meeting the state definition, as applicable, 

and shall offer supportive measures to the complainant.  Because a complaint or allegation 

that is dismissed or denied under the Title IX complaint procedure may still be subject 

to consideration under state law, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure that any 

implementation of AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 concurrently meets the requirements of 

AR 4030. 

 
(cf. 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaints) 

 

The Title IX Coordinator and shall offer supportive measures to the complainant and 

respondent, as deemed appropriate under the circumstances.   

 
Note:  In addition to district discipline imposed on employees who engage in sexual harassment, Government 

Code 12940 provides that such employees may be held personally liable in a court of law for any damage to 

the victim(s). 

Page 202



 BP 4119.11(d) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

Upon investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any district employee found to have 

engaged or participated in sexual harassment or to have aided, abetted, incited, compelled, or 

coerced another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy shall be subject to 

disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with law and the applicable 

collective bargaining agreement. 

 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports) 

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 

12940  Prohibited discrimination 

12950  Sexual harassment; distribution of information 

12950.1  Sexual harassment training 

LABOR CODE 

1101  Political activities of employees 

1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 

11009  Employment discrimination 

11021  Retaliation 

11023  Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 

11024  Sexual harassment training and education 

11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs  

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

106.1-106.9  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 

106.51-106.82  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education programs or 

activities 

COURT DECISIONS 

Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 

Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 

Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 

Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 

Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 

 

Management Resources:  (see next page) 

Page 203



 BP 4119.11(e) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 

Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment, November 2017 

WEB SITES 

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (3/18  7/20)  10/20 
 

Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 204



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 
 

All Personnel AR 4119.11(a) 

 4219.11 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 

 

 

Note: The following administrative regulation is mandated pursuant to Education Code 231.5 and includes 

reasonable steps for preventing the occurrence of discrimination and harassment as required pursuant to 

Government Code 12940 (California Fair Employment and Housing Act). The focus of this administrative 

regulation is on sexual harassment by and of employees. Pursuant to Government Code 12940 and 2 CCR 

11009, interns, volunteers, and job applicants are entitled to the same protection against sexual harassment 

as applicable to employees. 

 

For information related to sexual harassment involving students, see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment 

and AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 

The following administrative regulation shall apply to all allegations of sexual harassment 

involving employees, interns, volunteers, and job applicants, but shall not be used to resolve 

any complaint by or against a student. 

 

Title IX Coordinator/Compliance Officer 

 

Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, districts that receive federal financial assistance are 

mandated to designate an employee to ensure district compliance with Title IX of the 

Education Amendments of 1972 and its implementing regulations. The following paragraph 

specifies that the Title IX Coordinator will be the same person(s) designated to serve as the 

coordinator for nondiscrimination in employment pursuant to AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination 

in Employment.  Districts may modify this policy to designate separate district employees to 

serve these functions. 

 

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to 

coordinate its efforts to comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as well 

as to investigate and resolve sexual harassment complaints under AR 4030 - 

Nondiscrimination in Employment.  The Title IX Coordinator(s) may be contacted at: 

 

  

(title or position) 

  

(address) 

  

(telephone number) 

  

(email) 

 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 

Page 205



 AR 4119.11(b) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

The district shall notify employees, bargaining units, and applicants for employment of the 

name or title, office address, email address, and telephone number of the district's Title IX 

Coordinator.  (34 CFR 106.8) 

 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 

Prohibited Conduct  Definitions 

 
Note:  Alleged conduct that meets the federal definition of sexual harassment in 34 CFR 106.30, as added by 

85 Fed. Reg. 30026, requires investigation and resolution through Title IX regulations; see AR 

4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.30, 

sexual harassment includes (1) a district employee conditioning the provision of a district aid, benefit, or 

service on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct; (2) unwelcome conduct determined by 

a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person 

equal access to the district's education program or activity; or (3) sexual assault, dating violence, domestic 

violence, or stalking as defined in 20 USC 1092 and 34 USC 12291) 

 

Education Code 212.5 defines sexual harassment as any unwelcome sexual advance, request for sexual 

favors, and other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature, made by someone in the educational 

setting.  Conduct that does not meet the definition of sexual harassment in 34 CFR 106.30 shall be 

investigated and resolved in accordance with AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. 

 

In Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Services, Inc., the U.S. Supreme Court held that same-sex sexual 

harassment could be actionable under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC 2000e-2000e-17). 

 

Prohibited sSexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, 

unwanted requests for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of 

a sexual nature, regardless of whether or not the conduct is motivated by sexual desire.  

Conduct is considered to be sexual harassment when made against another person of the 

same or opposite sex in the work or educational setting under any of the following 

conditions:  (Education Code 212.5; Government Code 12940; 2 CCR 11034) 

 

1. Submission to the conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of the 

individual's employment. 

 

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for an employment 

decision affecting the individual. 

 

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact upon the 

individual's work performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 

work environment. 

 

 

 

Page 206



 AR 4119.11(c) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 
 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for any decision 

affecting the individual regarding benefits, services, honors, programs, or activities 

available at or through the district. 

 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

 

For purposes of applying the complaint procedures specified in Title IX of the 

Education Amendments of 1972, sexual harassment is defined as any of the following 

forms of conduct that occurs in an education program or activity in which a district 

school exercises substantial control over the context and respondent:  (34 CFR 106.30, 

106.44)  

 

1. A district employee conditioning the provision of a district aid, benefit, or service 

on the student's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct 

 

2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, 

pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal 

access to the district's education program or activity 

 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 20 

USC 1092 or 34 USC 12291 

 
(cf. 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaints) 

 

Examples of Sexual Harassment 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 12940, the district may be held liable for sexual harassment committed 

against employees by clients, customers, or other third parties if the district knew, or should have known, of 

the harassment and failed to take immediate and appropriate corrective action to stop the harassment. The 

following paragraph clarifies that sexual harassment may include acts by supervisors, co-workers, or other 

parties and should be modified to reflect district practice. 

 

Examples of actions that might constitute sexual harassment under state or federal law in 

accordance with the definitions above, in the work or educational setting, whether 

committed by a supervisor, a co-worker, or a non-employee, include, but are not limited to: 

 

1. Unwelcome verbal conduct such as sexual flirtations or propositions; graphic 

comments about an individual's body; overly personal conversations or pressure for 

sexual activity; sexual jokes or stories; unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, 

innuendoes, derogatory comments, sexually degrading descriptions, or the spreading 

of sexual rumors 

 

Page 207



 AR 4119.11(d) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

2. Unwelcome visual conduct such as drawings, pictures, graffiti, or gestures; sexually 

explicit emails; displaying sexually suggestive objects 

 

3. Unwelcome physical conduct such as massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or 

brushing the body; touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way; 

cornering, blocking, leaning over, or impeding normal movements 

 

Title IX Coordinator/Compliance Officer 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, districts that receive federal financial assistance are mandated to designate 

an employee to ensure district compliance with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 and its 

implementing regulations. The following paragraph specifies that the Title IX Coordinator will be the same 

person(s) designated to serve as the coordinator for nondiscrimination in employment pursuant to AR 4030 - 

Nondiscrimination in Employment.  Districts may modify this policy to designate separate district employees 

to serve these functions. 

 

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to 

coordinate its efforts to comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 in 

accordance with AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures, as well as to oversee, investigate, and resolve sexual harassment complaints 

processed under AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment.  The Title IX Coordinator(s) 

may be contacted at: 

 

  

(title or position) 

  

(address) 

  

(telephone number) 

  

(email) 

 
Note:  Government Code 12950.1, as amended by SB 778 (Ch. 215, Statutes of 2019), requires districts with 

five or more employees to provide sexual harassment training and education to supervisory and 

nonsupervisory employees by January 1, 2021 (or two years after a training provided in 2019) and once 

every two years thereafter. As amended, Government Code 12950.1 requires that new nonsupervisory 

employees be provided the training within six months of hire, consistent with the requirement for all newly 

hired supervisors or employees promoted to a supervisory position. Compliance with this law does not 

insulate the district from any liability for harassment. 

 

 

 

 

Page 208



 AR 4119.11(e) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 
Governing Board members, as elected officials, are not usually considered "supervisors"; however, since 

Board members have the authority to hire, reward, or discipline the Superintendent and other employees, 

Board members may also be required to receive sexual harassment training. Districts should consult with 

legal counsel to ensure that the appropriate individuals receive training. 

 

Every two years, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that supervisory employees 

receive at least two hours, and nonsupervisory employees receive at least one hour, of 

classroom or other effective interactive training and education regarding sexual harassment. 

All newly hired employees and employees promoted to a supervisory position shall receive 

training within six months of their assumption of the new position.  (Government Code 

12950.1) 

 

A supervisory employee is any employee having the authority, in the interest of the district, 

to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other 

employees, or the responsibility to direct them, adjust their grievances, or effectively 

recommend such action, when the exercise of the authority is not of a merely routine or 

clerical nature, but requires the use of independent judgment.  (Government Code 12926) 

 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 

 

Such training may be completed by employees individually or as part of a group 

presentation, may be completed in shorter segments as long as the applicable hourly 

requirement is met, and may be provided in conjunction with other training provided to the 

employees. The training shall be presented by trainers or educators with knowledge and 

expertise in the prevention of harassment, discrimination, and retaliation.  (Government Code 

12950.1) 

 

The district's sexual harassment training and education program shall include, but is not 

limited to, the following:  (Government Code 12950.1; 2 CCR 11024) 

 

1. Information and practical guidance regarding federal and state laws concerning the 

prohibition, prevention, and correction of sexual harassment 

  

2. The types of conduct that constitute sexual harassment  

 

3. Remedies available for victims in civil actions, and potential employer/individual 

exposure/liability 

 

4. Strategies to prevent harassment in the workplace 

 

5. Supervisors' obligation to report sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation of 

which they become aware  

Page 209



 AR 4119.11(f) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

6. Practical examples which illustrate sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation 

using training modalities such as role plays, case studies, and group discussions, 

based on factual scenarios taken from case law, news and media accounts, and 

hypotheticals based on workplace situations and other sources 

 

7. The limited confidentiality of the complaint process 

 

8. Resources for victims of unlawful harassment, such as to whom they should report 

any alleged harassment 

 

9. Steps necessary to take appropriate remedial measures to correct harassing behavior, 

which includes the district's obligation to conduct an effective workplace 

investigation of a harassment complaint 

 

10. What to do if the supervisor is personally accused of harassment 

 

11. The essential elements of the district's anti-harassment policy, and how to use the 

policy if a harassment complaint is filed 

 

 Employees shall receive a copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and 

administrative regulations, which they shall read and acknowledge that they have 

received. 

 

12.  Information, including practical examples, of harassment based on gender identity, 

gender expression, and sexual orientation 

 

13. Prevention of abusive conduct, including a review of the definition and elements of 

abusive conduct pursuant to Government Code 12950.1, the negative effects that 

abusive conduct has on the victim and other in the workplace, the detrimental 

consequences of this conduct on employee productivity and morale, and that a single 

act does not constitute abusive conduct unless the act is severe or egregious 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall retain for at least two years the records of any training 

provided to supervisory employees. Such records shall include the names of trained 

employees, date of the training, the type of training, and the name of the training provider.  (2 

CCR 11024) 
 

Notifications 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees that the district does not discriminate 

on the basis of sex as required by Title IX, that the Title IX nondiscrimination requirement  

 

Page 210



 AR 4119.11(g) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

extends to employment, and that inquiries about the application of Title IX to the district may 

be referred to the district's Title IX Coordinator and/or to the Assistant Secretary for Civil 

Rights, U.S. Department of Education.  (34 CFR 106.8) 

 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 

The district shall notify employees, bargaining units, and applicants for employment of the 

name or title, office address, email address, and telephone number of the district's Title IX 

Coordinator.  (34 CFR 106.8) 

 

A copy of the Board policy and this administrative regulation shall:  (Education Code 231.5) 

 

1. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building, district 

office, or other area of the school where notices of district rules, regulations, 

procedures, and standards of conduct are posted  (Education Code 231.5) 

 

2. Be provided to every district employee at the beginning of the first quarter or 

semester of the school year or whenever a new employee is hired  (Education Code 

231.5) 

 

3. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's 

comprehensive rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct (Education 

Code 231.5) 

 

4. Be posted, along with the name or title and contact information of the Title IX 

Coordinator, in a prominent location on the district's web site  (34 CFR 106.8) 

 

5. Be included, along with the name or title and contact information of the Title IX 

Coordinator, in any handbook provided to employees or employee organizations  

(34 CFR 106.8) 

 
Note:  Government Code 12950 requires the Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) to 

develop an information sheet on employment discrimination and the illegality of sexual harassment and a 

poster regarding the rights of transgender employees. These documents are available on DFEH's web site. 

 

All employees shall receive a copy of an information sheet prepared by the California 

Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) or the district that contains, at a 

minimum, components on:  (Government Code 12950) 

 

1. The illegality of sexual harassment 

 

2. The definition of sexual harassment under applicable state and federal law 
Page 211



 AR 4119.11(h) 

 4219.11 

 4319.11 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

3. A description of sexual harassment, with examples 

 

4. The district's complaint process available to the employee 

 

5. The legal remedies and complaint process available through DFEH and the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) 

 

6. Directions on how to contact DFEH and the EEOC 

 

7. The protection against retaliation provided by 2 CCR 11021 for opposing harassment 

prohibited by law or for filing a complaint with or otherwise participating in an 

investigation, proceeding, or hearing conducted by DFEH and the EEOC 

 

In addition, the district shall post, in a prominent and accessible location, the DFEH poster on 

discrimination in employment and the illegality of sexual harassment and the DFEH poster 

regarding transgender rights.  (Government Code 12950) 

 

Complaint Procedures 

 

All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment by and against employees shall be 

investigated and resolved in accordance with law and district procedures.  The Title IX 

Coordinator shall review the allegations to determine the applicable procedure for 

responding to the complaint.  All complaints that meet the definition of sexual 

harassment under Title IX shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with AR 

4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures.  Other 

sexual harassment complaints shall be investigated and resolved pursuant to AR 4030 - 

Nondiscrimination in Employment.  

 

If sexual harassment is found following an investigation, the Title IX Coordinator, or 

designee in consultation with the Coordinator, shall take prompt action to stop the 

sexual harassment, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (3/18  7/20)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 212



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 
 

All Personnel AR 4119.12(a) 

 4219.12 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 4319.12 

 

 

Note:  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681-1688; 34 CFR 106.1-106.82) prohibits 

discrimination based on sex, including sexual harassment, and mandates that the district adopt and publish 

complaint procedures.   

 

The following administrative regulation reflects the Title IX complaint procedure detailed in 34 CFR 

106.44-106.45, as added by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, which must be used, effective August 14, 2020, to address 

any complaint of sexual harassment that meets the definition in 34 CFR 106.30.  Pursuant to 34 CFR 

106.30, allegations of sexual harassment governed by these regulations include (1) a district employee 

conditioning the provision of a district aid, benefit, or service on an individual's participation in unwelcome 

sexual conduct; (2) unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and 

objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the district's education program or 

activity; or (3) sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 20 USC 1092 and 

34 USC 12291.  Alleged sexual harassment in employment that does not meet this definition should be 

addressed through the district's complaint procedures described in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in 

Employment.  

 

34 CFR 106.44 requires the district, when there is actual knowledge of sexual harassment, to respond 

promptly in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent. 34 CFR 106.30 defines "actual knowledge" as 

notice of sexual harassment or allegations of sexual harassment being submitted to the district's Title IX 

Coordinator, any official of the district who has authority to institute corrective measures, or any employee 

of an elementary or secondary school.  A district is deliberately indifferent only if its response to Title IX 

sexual harassment is clearly unreasonable in light of the known circumstances. 

 

Application of the Title IX complaint procedures to the facts of a specific complaint may implicate 

complicated questions about the intersection of state law, federal law, and, in cases involving employees, the 

applicable collective bargaining agreement.  Districts with questions about specific complaints are strongly 

encouraged to consult legal counsel. 

 

Also see BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment for information about prohibited conduct, 

training, required notifications, and processes for reporting sexual harassment. 

 

The complaint procedures described in this administrative regulation shall be used to address 

any complaint governed by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 alleging that a 

district employee, while in an education program or activity in which a district school 

exercises substantial control over the context and respondent, was subjected to one or 

more of the following forms of sexual harassment:  (34 CFR 106.30, 106.44) 

 

1. A district employee conditioning the provision of a district aid, benefit, or service on 

a person's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct 

 

2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, 

and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the 

district's education program or activity 

 

Page 213



 AR 4119.12(b) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 20 USC 

1092 or 34 USC 12291 

 
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 

 

All other sexual harassment complaints or allegations shall be investigated and responded to 

pursuant to resolved in accordance with AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. The 

determination of whether the allegations meet the definition of sexual harassment 

under Title IX shall be made by the district's Title IX Coordinator.   

 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 

 

Because the complainant has a right to pursue a complaint under AR 4030 for any 

allegation that is dismissed or denied under the Title IX complaint procedure, the Title 

IX Coordinator shall ensure that all requirements and timelines for AR 4030 are 

concurrently met while implementing the Title IX procedure. 

 

Reporting Allegations/Filing a Formal Complaint 

 
Note: Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.30, the timeline for resolving a sexual harassment complaint begins 

when the district has actual knowledge of sexual harassment, defined as the receipt of a report by the 

Title IX Coordinator or other employee of an elementary or secondary school.  The following 

paragraph reflects the requirement for any employee to forward the report to the Title IX 

Coordinator as stated in AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment and may be revised to 

reflect district practice. 

 

A report of sexual harassment shall be submitted directly to or forwarded An employee who 

is the alleged victim of sexual harassment may submit a report of sexual harassment to 

the district's Title IX Coordinator using the contact information listed in AR 

4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment or to the employee's direct supervisor or 

other district administrator, who shall forward the report to the Title IX Coordinator 

within one day of receiving the report.  

 

Upon receiving such a report, the Title IX Coordinator shall inform the complainant of the 

right to file a formal complaint and the process for filing a formal complaint. 

 

A formal complaint, with the complainant's physical or digital signature, may be filed with 

the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, by email, or by any other method authorized by 

the district.  (34 CFR 106.30) 

 

 

 

Page 214



 AR 4119.12(c) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 
Note: Given the district's duty pursuant to 34 CFR 106.44 to respond to reports of sexual harassment in a 

manner that is not deliberately indifferent, the Title IX Coordinator should file a complaint in certain 

situation seven when the victim chooses not to do so, including, but not limited to, when a safety threat 

exists. 

 

In such cases, the Title IX Coordinator and the alleged victim is not a party are not named parties to the 

case, but the alleged victim must will receive notices as required by the Title IX regulations at specific 

points in the complaint process. 

 

Even if the alleged victim chooses not to file a formal complaint, the Title IX Coordinator 

shall file a formal complaint in situations in which when a safety threat exists.  In addition, 

the Title IX Coordinator may file a formal complaint in other situations as permitted under 

the Title IX regulations, including as part of the district's obligation to not be 

deliberately indifferent to known allegations of sexual harassment.  In such cases, the 

Title IX Coordinator shall provide the alleged victim alleged victim is not a party to the 

case, but will receive notices as required by the Title IX regulations at specific points in the 

complaint process. 

 

A formal complaint, with the complainant's physical or digital signature, may be filed with 

the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, by email, or by any other method authorized by 

the district.  (34 CFR 106.30) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, 

decision-maker, or a facilitator of an informal resolution process does shall not have a 

conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or an 

individual complainant or respondent., and that sSuch persons shall receive training in 

accordance with 34 CFR 106.45.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

Supportive Measures 

 

Upon receipt of a report of Title IX sexual harassment, even if a formal complaint is not 

filed, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly contact the complainant to discuss the 

availability of supportive measures which are nondisciplinary, nonpunitive, and do not 

unreasonably burden the other party. and shall consider the complainant's wishes with respect 

to the supportive measures implemented. Supportive measures shall be offered as 

appropriate, as reasonably available, and without charge to the complainant or the 

respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint or where no formal 

complaint has been filed.  Such measures shall be nondisciplinary, nonpunitive, and not 

unreasonably burden the other party, including measures designed to protect the safety 

of all parties or the district's educational environment or to deter sexual harassment. 

Such Supportive measures may include, but are not limited to, counseling, extensions of  

 

Page 215



 AR 4119.12(d) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

deadlines, modifications of work schedules, mutual restrictions on contact, changes in work 

locations, leaves of absence, increased security, and monitoring of certain areas of the 

campus. The Title IX Coordinator shall consider the complainant's wishes with respect to 

supportive measures.  (34 CFR 106.30, 106.44) 

 

The district shall maintain as confidential any supportive measures provided to the 

complainant or respondent, to the extent that maintaining such confidentiality would 

not impair the district's ability to provide the supportive measures.  (34 CFR 106.30) 

 

Emergency Removal 

 

If a district employee is the respondent, the employee may be placed on administrative leave 

during the pendency of the formal complaint process.  (34 CFR 106.44) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48900.2, a student in grades 4-12 may be suspended and/or expelled from 

school for sexual harassment.  Districts should also note that Education Code 48915(c) requires the 

Superintendent or designee to recommend expulsion for any student, irrespective of grade, who commits 

sexual assault or battery as defined in the Penal Code. See AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due 

Process. 

 

34 CFR 106.44 allows a student to be removed in emergency situations as described below, but requires that a 

student should not be "disciplined" prior to a finding being made pursuant to the grievance process 

established by 34 CFR 106.45. Due to this inconsistency in state and federal law, districts are advised to 

consult legal counsel as to the manner of imposing an emergency removal. 

 

If the respondent is a student, the district may, on an emergency basis, remove the student 

from the district's education program or activity, provided that the district conducts an 

individualized safety and risk analysis, determines that removal is justified due to an 

immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arising 

from the allegations, and provides the student with notice and an opportunity to challenge the 

decision immediately following the removal. This authority to remove a student does not 

modify a student's rights under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act or Section 504 

of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  (34 CFR 106.44) 

 

Dismissal of Complaint 

 

The Title IX Coordinator shall dismiss a formal complaint if the alleged conduct would not 

constitute sexual harassment as defined in 34 CFR 106.30 even if proved.  The Title IX 

Coordinator shall also dismiss any complaint that in which the alleged conduct did not 

occur in the district's education program or activity or did not occur against a person in the 

United States, and may dismiss a formal complaint if the complainant notifies the district in 

writing that the complainant would like to withdraw the complaint or any allegations in the  

 
Page 216



 AR 4119.12(e) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

complaint, the respondent is no longer employed by the district, or sufficient circumstances 

prevent the district from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination with regard to 

the complaint.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

Upon dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly, and simultaneously to the parties, 

send written notice of the dismissal and the reasons for the dismissal simultaneously to the 

parties, and shall inform them of their right to appeal the dismissal of a formal 

complaint or any allegation in the complaint in accordance with the appeal procedures 

described in the section "Appeals" below.   (34 CFR 106.45)  

 

If a complaint is dismissed on the grounds that the alleged conduct does not constitute sexual 

harassment as defined in 34 CFR 106.30, the conduct may still be addressed pursuant to AR 

4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment as applicable. 

 

Informal Resolution Process 

 

When a formal complaint of sexual harassment is filed, the district may offer an informal 

resolution process, such as mediation, at any time prior to reaching a determination regarding 

responsibility. The district shall not require a party to participate in the informal resolution 

process or to waive the right to an investigation and adjudication of a formal complaint.  (34 

CFR 106.45) 

 

The district may facilitate an informal resolution process provided that the district:  (34 CFR 

106.45) 

 

1. Provides the parties with written notice disclosing the allegations, the requirements of 

the informal resolution process, the right to withdraw from the informal process and 

resume the formal complaint process, and any consequences resulting from 

participating in the informal resolution process, including that records will be 

maintained or could be shared. 

 

2. Obtains the parties' voluntary, written consent to the informal resolution process 

 

Formal Complaint Process Written Notice 

 

If a formal complaint is filed, the Title IX Coordinator shall provide the known parties with 

written notice of the following:  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

1. The district's complaint process, including any informal resolution process 

 

 

Page 217



 AR 4119.12(f) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

2. The allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment with sufficient details 

known at the time, including the identity of parties involved in the incident if known, 

the conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment, and the date and location of the 

alleged incident if known. Such notice shall be provided with sufficient time for the 

parties to prepare a response before any initial interview. 

 

If, during the course of the investigation, the district investigates allegations new 

Title IX allegations arise about the complainant or respondent that are not included 

in the initial notice, the Title IX Coordinator shall provide notice of the additional 

allegations to the parties. 

 

3. A statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct 

and that a determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the 

complaint process 

 

4. The opportunity for the parties to have an advisor of their choice who may be, but is 

not required to be, an attorney, and the ability to inspect and review evidence 

 

5. The prohibition against knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting 

false information during the complaint process 

 
Note: The following paragraph is optional.  Although not required by law, a best practice is to provide 

notice to the parties of the name of the investigator, facilitator, and decision-maker in order to give the 

parties an opportunity to raise concerns of conflict of interest or bias as prohibited by 34 CFR 106.45. 

 

The above notice shall also include the name of the investigator, facilitator of an informal 

process, and decision-maker and shall provide either party with no less than three calendar 

days to raise concerns of conflict of interest or bias regarding any of these persons and shall 

inform the parties that, if at any time a party has concerns regarding conflict of interest 

or bias regarding any of these persons, the party should immediately notify the Title IX 

Coordinator.  

 

Investigation Procedures 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.45, when investigating a formal complaint, the burden of proof rests on the 

district and not on the parties.  However, the district must obtain the party's voluntary, written consent to 

access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party's records that are maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, 

psychologist, or other recognized professional or paraprofessional, which are made and maintained in 

connection with the provision of treatment to the party. 

 

 

 

 

Page 218



 AR 4119.12(g) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 
34 CFR 106.45 authorizes, but does not require, the district to conduct a live hearing at which each party's 

advisor may ask the other party and any witnesses all relevant questions and follow-up questions.  If the 

district chooses to include such a hearing as a component of its complaint procedure, the following list 

should be modified to include requirements for the hearing in accordance with 34 CFR 106.45. 

 

During the investigation process, the district's designated investigator shall:  (34 CFR 

106.45) 

 

1. Provide an equal opportunity for the parties to present witnesses, including fact and 

expert witnesses, and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence 

 

2. Not restrict the ability of either party to discuss the allegations under investigation or 

to gather and present relevant evidence 

 

3. Provide the parties with the same opportunities to have others present during any 

grievance proceeding, including the opportunity to be accompanied to any related 

meeting or proceeding by the advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required 

to be, an attorney 

 

4. Not limit the choice or presence of an advisor for either the complainant or 

respondent in any meeting or grievance proceeding, although the district may 

establish restrictions regarding the extent to which the advisor may participate in the 

proceedings as long as the restrictions apply equally to both parties 

 

5. Provide, to a party whose participation is invited or expected, written notice of the 

date, time, location, participants, and purpose of all investigative interviews or other 

meetings, with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate 

 

6. Send in an electronic format or hard copy to both parties and their advisors, if any, the 

evidence obtained as part of the investigation that is directly related to the 

allegations raised in the complaint, and provide the parties at least 10 days to submit a 

written response for the investigator to consider prior to the completion of the 

investigative report 

 

7. Objectively evaluate all relevant evidence, including both inculpatory and 

exculpatory evidence, and determine credibility in a manner that is not based on a 

person's status as a complainant, respondent, or witness 

 

8. Create an investigative report that fairly summarizes relevant evidence and, at least 

10 days prior to the determination of responsibility, send to the parties and their 

advisors, if any, the investigative report in an electronic format or a hard copy, for 

their review and written response 

Page 219



 AR 4119.12(h) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

9. After sending the investigative report to the parties and before reaching a 

determination regarding responsibility, afford each party the opportunity to submit 

written, relevant questions that the party wants asked of any party or witness, provide 

each party with the answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions 

from each party 

 

Questions and evidence about the complainant's sexual predisposition or prior sexual 

behavior are not relevant, unless such questions and evidence are offered to prove that 

someone other than the respondent committed the conduct alleged by the complainant or if 

the questions and evidence concern specific incidents of the complainant's prior sexual 

behavior with respect to the respondent and are offered to prove consent. (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

Privacy rights of all parties to the complaint shall be maintained in accordance with 

applicable state and federal laws. 

 
Note:  Districts with questions about the application of a collective bargaining agreement in the context of a 

Title IX investigation should consult legal counsel. 

 

If the complaint is against an employee, rights conferred under an applicable collective 

bargaining agreement shall be applied to the extent they do not conflict with the Title IX 

requirements. 

 

Written Decision 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.45, the person designated as the decision-maker of the determination of 

responsibility cannot be the same person designated as the Title IX Coordinator, an investigator, or the 

person who considers appeals. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the position designated by 

the district to provide a written determination of responsibility. While designation decisions will depend on 

the size of the district, a best practice is to designate an upper-level administrator as the decision-maker and 

designate the Superintendent as the person to consider appeals. 

 

The Superintendent shall designate an employee as the decision-maker to determine 

responsibility for the alleged conduct, who shall not be the Title IX Coordinator or a person 

involved in the investigation of the matter.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

After sending the investigative report to the parties and the investigative report has been 

sent to the parties but before reaching a determination regarding responsibility, the 

decision-maker shall afford each party the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions 

that the party wants asked of any party or witness, provide each party with the answers, and 

allow for additional, limited follow-up questions from each party 

 

 

Page 220



 AR 4119.12(i) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

The decision-maker shall issue, and simultaneously provide to both parties, a written decision 

as to whether the respondent is responsible for the alleged conduct.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 
Note:  34 CFR 106.45 requires that the district's complaint process include a "reasonably prompt" timeframe 

for concluding the complaint process, but does not specify the number of days within which the final 

decision must be issued.  Districts may revise the following paragraph to include a different timeline as long 

as it would satisfy the requirement to act promptly.  

 

The written decision shall be issued within 45 60 calendar days of the receipt of the 

complaint. 

 

The timeline may be temporarily extended for good cause with written notice to the 

complainant and respondent of the extension and the reasons for the action.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 
Note: 34 CFR 106.45 mandates that the district's complaint procedures state whether the district's 

determination of responsibility will be based on a "preponderance of evidence" standard or "clear and 

convincing evidence" standard.  The following paragraph reflects the "preponderance of evidence" standard, 

which is a less stringent standard to prove misconduct, and should be revised if the district chooses to use a 

"clear and convincing evidence" standard. The standard selected by the district must be applied uniformly 

for all Title IX sexual harassment complaints.  The district should consult with legal counsel in determining 

which standard to use. 

 

In making this determination, the district decision-maker shall use the "preponderance of the 

evidence" standard for all formal complaints of sexual harassment.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

The written decision shall include the following:  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

1. Identification of the allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment as defined 

in 34 CFR 106.30 

 

2. A description of the procedural steps taken from receipt of the formal complaint 

through the written decision, including any notifications to the parties, interviews 

with parties and witnesses, site visits, methods used to gather other evidence, and 

hearings held if the district includes hearings as part of the grievance process 

 

3. Findings of fact supporting the determination 

 

4. Conclusions regarding the application of the district’s code of conduct or policies to 

the facts 

 

 

 

Page 221



 AR 4119.12(j) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

5. A statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a decision 

regarding responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions the district imposes on the 

respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the 

district’s educational program or activity will be provided by the district to the 

complainant 

 

6. The district’s procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent to 

appeal 

 

Appeals 

 
Note: 34 CFR 106.45 allows either the complainant or respondent to appeal the district's decision.  The 

district may revise the following section to reflect applicable timelines established by the district.  

 

The following section should also be revised to identify the person who has been designated as the decision-

maker(s) for the appeal.  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.45, the decision-maker for the appeal cannot be the same 

person as the decision-maker that reached the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal, the 

investigator(s), or the Title IX Coordinator. 

 

Either party may appeal the district's decision or dismissal of a formal complaint or any 

allegation in the complaint, if the party believes that a procedural irregularity affected the 

outcome, new evidence is available that could affect the outcome, or a conflict of interest or 

bias by the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or decision-maker(s) affected the outcome.  

If an appeal is filed, the district shall:  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

1. Notify the other party in writing when an appeal is filed and implement appeal 

procedures equally for both parties 

 

2. Ensure that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal is trained in accordance with 34 CFR 

106.45 and is not the same decision-maker(s) who reached the determination 

regarding responsibility or dismissal, the investigator(s), or the Title IX Coordinator 

 

3. Give both parties a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in 

support of, or challenging, the outcome 

 

4. Issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the 

result 

 

5. Provide the written decision simultaneously to both parties 

 

 

 

Page 222



 AR 4119.12(k) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

An appeal must be filed in writing within 10 calendar days of receiving the determination 

notice of the decision or dismissal, stating the grounds for the appeal and including any 

relevant documentation in support of the appeal.  Appeals submitted after this deadline are 

not timely and shall not be considered.  Either party has the right to file a complaint with the 

U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights. 

 

A written decision shall be provided to the parties within 20 calendar days from the receipt of 

the appeal. 

 

Either party has the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education's Office 

for Civil Rights within 180 days of the date of the most recently alleged misconduct. 

 

The complainant shall be advised of any civil law remedies, including, but not limited 

to, injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available 

under state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable.   

 

Remedies 

 
Note: 34 CFR 106.45 mandates that the district's Title IX complaint process list, or describe the range of 

possible remedies that the district may implement following any determination of responsibility. The 

following section may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

When a determination of responsibility for sexual harassment has been made against the 

respondent, the district shall provide remedies to the complainant.  Such remedies may 

include the same individualized services described above in the section "Supportive 

Measures," but need not be nondisciplinary or nonpunitive and need not avoid burdening the 

respondent.  (34 CFR 106.45) 
 

Disciplinary Actions 
 

The district shall not impose any disciplinary sanctions or other actions against a respondent, 

other than supportive measures as described above in the section "Supportive Measures," 

until the complaint procedure has been completed and a determination of responsibility has 

been made.  (34 CFR 106.44) 
 

When an employee is found to have committed sexual harassment or retaliation, the district 

shall take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with 

applicable law and collective bargaining agreement. 

 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Report) 

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

Page 223



 AR 4119.12(l) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

Record-Keeping 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain, for a period of seven years:  (34 CFR 

106.45) 

 

1. a A record of all reported cases and Title IX investigations of sexual harassment, any 

determinations of responsibility, any audio or audiovisual recording and transcript if 

applicable, any disciplinary sanctions imposed, any remedies provided to the 

complainant, and any appeal or informal resolution and the results therefrom, and 

responses made pursuant to 34 CFR 106.44.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

2. A record of any actions, including supportive measures, taken in response to a 

report or formal complaint of sexual harassment, including the district's basis 

for its conclusion that its response was not deliberately indifferent, the measures 

taken that were designed to restore or preserve equal access to the education 

program or activity, and, if no supportive measures were provided to the 

complainant, the reasons that such a response was not unreasonable in light of 

the known circumstances 

 

3. The Superintendent or designee shall also maintain for a period of seven years all All 

materials used to train the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), decision-maker(s), 

and any person who facilitates an informal resolution process. The district shall make 

such training materials publicly available on its web site, or if the district does not 

maintain a web site, available upon request by members of the public.  (34 CFR 

106.45) 

 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 

(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 224



 AR 4119.12(n) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 

48900  Grounds for suspension or expulsion 

48900.2  Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment 

48985  Notices, report, statements and records in primary language 

CIVIL CODE 

51.9  Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional relationships 

1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12950.1  Sexual harassment training 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1092  Definition of sexual assault 

1221 Application of laws 

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 34 

12291  Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1983  Civil action for deprivation of rights 

2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 

2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy 

106.1-106.82  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs 

COURT DECISIONS 

Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 

Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130 

Reese v. Jefferson School District, (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736 

Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, (1999) 526 U.S. 629 

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 524 U.S. 274 

Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey, (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473 

Doe v. Petaluma City School District, (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
 

 (7/20)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 225



CSBA Sample 

Exhibit 
 

All Personnel E 4119.12(a) 

 4219.12 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 4319.12 

 

  

Note:  34 CFR 106.8 requires the district to provide notice to employees, bargaining units, and job 

applicants of its policy prohibiting sexual harassment and its grievance procedures that provide for 

the prompt and equitable resolution of sexual harassment complaints.  The following exhibit presents 

a sample notification that meets these requirements and may be modified to reflect district practice.  

For a sample notice for students and parents/guardians, see E 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Complaint Procedures. 

 

Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, the district must provide the Title IX Coordinator's contact information 

on its web site and in any employee handbook. In addition, state law (Education Code 231.5) requires 

that the district's sexual harassment policy be provided to employees at the beginning of the school 

year and when newly hired, displayed in district and school offices, and included in any publication 

that sets forth standards of employee conduct.  

 

NOTICE OF TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

 

The Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, Section 106.8 requires the district to issue 

the following notification to employees, job applicants, and employee organizations: 

 

The district does not discriminate on the basis of sex in any education program or 

activity that it operates.  The prohibition against discrimination on the basis of sex is 

required by federal law (20 USC 1681-1688; 34 CFR Part 106) and extends to 

employment. The district also prohibits retaliation against any employee for filing a 

complaint or exercising any right granted under Title IX.  

 

Title IX requires a school district to take immediate and appropriate action to address 

any potential Title IX violations that are brought to its attention. Any inquiries about 

the application of Title IX, this notice, and who is protected by Title IX may be referred 

to the district’s Title IX Coordinator, to the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights of the 

U.S. Department of Education, or both.  

 

Note:  The district should enter the name/title and contact information of the district's Title IX 

Coordinator below.  Such information should be consistent with the person/position identified in AR 

5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 

The district has designated and authorized the following employee as the district's Title 

IX Coordinator, to address concerns or inquiries regarding discrimination on the basis 

of sex, including sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, 

and stalking:  

 

 

 

Page 226



 E 4119.12(b) 

 4219.12 

 4319.12 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

(name and/or title/position) 

________________________________________________________________ 

(address) 

________________________________________________________________ 

(telephone number) 

________________________________________________________________ 

(email address) 

 

Note:  The district may expand the following paragraph to include other means of contact or 

reporting methods available in the district, such as online submission forms or mobile applications.  

 

Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, the district must provide notice to employees, bargaining units, and job 

applicants of the district’s grievance procedures, and process, including how to report or file a formal 

complaint of sexual discrimination and/or harassment, and how the district will respond.  

 

Any individual may report sex discrimination, including sexual harassment, to the Title 

IX Coordinator or any other school employee at any time, including during non-

business hours, by mail, phone, or email.  During district business hours, reports may 

also be made in person.  Upon receiving an allegation of sexual harassment, the Title IX 

Coordinator will promptly notify the parties, in writing, of the applicable district 

complaint procedure. 

 

To view an electronic copy of the district's policies and administrative regulations on 

sexual harassment, including the grievance process that complies with 34 CFR 106.45, 

please see BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment and AR 

4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures on the 

district's web site at ____________(insert website link)________________. 

 

To inspect or obtain a copy of the district's sexual harassment policies and 

administrative regulations, please contact:_________(insert location/phone/email of 

contact person) ______. 

 

Materials used to train the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), decision-maker(s), and 

any person who facilitates an informal resolution process are also publicly available on 

the district's web site or at the district office upon request. 

 

 

 10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 227



CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 

All Personnel BP 4157(a) 

 4257 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY 4357 

 

 

Note: The following optional policy and accompanying administrative regulation may be subject to 

collective bargaining agreements and should be modified to reflect district practice.  Pursuant to 

Government Code 3543.2, safety conditions of employment are within the scope of bargaining. 

 

The Governing Board is committed to maximizing employee safety and believes that 

workplace safety is every employee's the responsibility of every employee. Working 

conditions and equipment shall comply with standards prescribed by federal, state, and local 

laws and regulations. 

 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

 

No employee shall be required or permitted to be in any place of employment which is 

unsafe or unhealthful.  (Labor Code 6402) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall promote safety and correct any unsafe work practices 

through education and enforcement. 

 

The Board expects a All employees are expected to use safe work practices and, to the 

extent possible, correct any unsafe conditions which may occur. If an employee is unable to 

correct an unsafe condition, he/she the employee shall immediately report the problem to the 

Superintendent or designee. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall promote safety and correct any unsafe work practices 

through education and enforcement. 

 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

 

Note:  Labor Code 6401.7 requires the district every employer to establish, implement, and maintain an 

effective injury prevention program.  See the accompanying administrative regulation for required program 

elements. 

 

8 CCR 3203, as amended by Register 2020, No. 10, requires the district to provide employees with 

access to the district's injury and illness prevention program. See the accompanying administrative 

regulation for specific requirements. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and implement a written injury and illness 

prevention program, and provide employees with access to such program, in accordance 

with law.  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 CCR 3203) 

 
(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 

Page 228



 BP 4157(b) 

 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 

(cf. 4119.41/4219.41/4319.41 - Employees with Infectious Disease) 

(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 

(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions) 

(cf. 4157.2/4257.2/4357.2 - Ergonomics) 

(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 

 

Note: 8 CCR 3400, as amended by Register 2009, No. 35, requires districts all employers to make 

provisions in advance to ensure that employees receive prompt medical treatment for serious injury or 

illness.  See the accompanying administrative regulation for specific requirements. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the ready availability of make first aid materials 

readily available at district workplaces and shall make effective provisions, in advance, to 

prepare for prompt medical treatment in the event of an employee's serious injury or illness.  

(8 CCR 3400) 

 

No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against for exercising any right 

regarding employee safety or health specified in Labor Code 6310, including:   

 

1. Mmaking a report or complaints,  

 

2. Iinstituting proceedings or causing proceedings to be instituted, or  

 

3. Ttestifying with regard to employee safety or health or for  

 

4. Pparticipating in any occupational health and safety committee established pursuant 

to Labor Code 6401.7 (Labor Code 6310) 

 

5. Requesting access to injury or illness reports and records 

 

6. Exercising any other right protected by the Occupational Safety and Health Act   

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 229



 BP 4157(c) 

 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

32030-32034  Eye safety 

32225-32226  Communications devices in classrooms 

32280-32289.5  School safety plans 

44984  Required rules for industrial accident and illness leave of absence 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

3543.2  Scope of bargaining 

LABOR CODE 

132a  Workers' compensation; nondiscrimination 

3300  Definitions of employer 

6305  Occupational safety and health standards; special order 

6310  Retaliation for filing complaint prohibited 

6400-6413.5  Responsibilities and duties of employers and employees, especially: 

6401.7  Injury and illness prevention program 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 

3203  Injury and illness prevention program 

3204  Access to employee exposure and medical records 

3400  Medical services and first aid 

5095-5100  Control of noise exposure 

5193  Bloodborne pathogens 

14000-14316  Occupational injury or illness reports and records 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 

2508  Reporting of communicable diseases 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 

651-678  Occupational safety and health 

1910.95  Occupational  Nnoise exposure standards 

1910.1030  Bloodborne pathogens 

 

Management Resources: 

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS PUBLICATIONS 

Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention Program, rev. August 201105 

WEB SITES 

California Department of Industrial Relations, Occupational Safety and Health: 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/occupational_safety.html 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov 

National Hearing Conservation Association: http://www.hearingconservation.org 

National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health: http://www.cdc.gov/niosh 

U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration: http://www.osha.gov 

 

 

 

 (7/99  3/10)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service  

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 230



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 

 

All Personnel AR 4157(a) 

 4257 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY 4357 

 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide and implement safety devices, and implement 

safeguards, methods, and processes that are reasonably necessary for the safety and health 

of employees in the workplace adequate to render the employment and place of 

employment safe and healthful.  (Labor Code 6401) 

 
(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries) 

(cf. 4157.2/4257.2/4357.2 - Ergonomics) 

(cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 

 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program 

 

Note: The following section reflects the requirements of Labor Code 6401.7 and 8 CCR 3203 for a written 

injury and illness prevention program.  When developing such a program, districts are encouraged to review 

the Department of Industrial Relations' Guide to Developing Your Workplace Injury and Illness Prevention 

Program. 

 

The district's injury and illness prevention program shall cover all district employees and all 

other workers whom the district controls or directs and directly supervises on the job to the 

extent that the workers are exposed to hazards specific to their worksite and job assignment. 

The obligation of contractors or other employers who control or direct and supervise their 

own employees on the job shall not be affected by the district's injury and illness prevention 

program.  (Labor Code 6401.7) 

 

The district's injury and illness prevention program shall include:  (Labor Code 6401.7; 8 

CCR 3203) 

 

1. The name/position of the person(s) with authority and responsibility for implementing 

the program. 

 

2. A system for ensuring that employees comply with safe and healthful work practices, 

which may include, but not be limited to: 

 

a. Recognition of employees who follow safe and healthful work practices 

 
(cf. 4156.2/4256.2/4356.2 - Awards and Recognition) 

 

b. Training and retraining programs 

 

c. Disciplinary actions 

 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

Page 231



 AR 4157(b) 

 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

 

Note:  Pursuant to 8 CCR 3203, districts with fewer than 10 employees may fulfill the communication 

requirements of item #3 below by providing oral instruction in general safe work practices and the hazards 

unique to the employees' assignments. 

 

3. A system for communicating with employees, in a form readily understandable by all 

employees, on matters related to occupational health and safety, including provisions 

designed to encourage employees to report hazards at the worksite without fear of 

reprisal.  The communications system may include, but not be limited to: 

 

a. Meetings 

 

b. Training programs 

 

c. Posting 

 

d. Written communications 

 

e. A system of anonymous notification by employees about hazards 

 

Note:  Districts may use a labor/management safety and health committee to communicate the contents of 

the injury and illness prevention program, as long as the committee satisfies the requirements specified 

below in the section on "Labor/Management Safety and Health Committee." 

 

f. A labor/management safety and health committee 

 

4. Procedures for identifying and evaluating workplace hazards, including scheduled 

periodic inspections to identify unsafe conditions and work practices. Such 

inspections shall be made: 

 

Note:  Pursuant to 8 CCR 3203, districts should have identified and evaluated workplace hazards when the 

program was first established in 1991.  Hazards should be reevaluated under the conditions specified below. 

 

a. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment that 

represents a new occupational safety or health hazard is introduced into the 

workplace 

 

b. Whenever the district is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized 

hazard 

 

 

Page 232



 AR 4157(c) 

 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 

 

5. A procedure for investigating occupational injury or illness. 

 

6. Methods and/or procedures for correcting unsafe or unhealthful conditions, work 

practices, and work procedures in a timely manner, based on the severity of the 

hazard, when the hazard is observed or discovered. 

 

When an imminent hazard exists which cannot be immediately abated without 

endangering employee(s) and/or property, these procedures shall call for the removal 

of all exposed staff from the area except those necessary to correct the hazardous 

condition.  Employees needed to correct the condition shall be provided necessary 

safeguards. 

 

7. Provision of training and instruction as follows: 

 

Note:  Pursuant to 8 CCR 3203, districts should have provided training and instruction when the program 

was first established in 1991.  Additional training and instruction should be provided under the conditions 

specified below. 

 

a. To all new employees 

 

b. To all employees given new job assignments for which training has not 

previously been received 

 

c. Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment is introduced 

into the workplace and represents a new hazard 

 

d. Whenever the district is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized 

hazard 

 

e. To supervisors, to familiarize them with the safety and health hazards to 

which employees under their immediate direction and control may be exposed 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 

 

 

 

 

Page 233



 AR 4157(d) 

 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 8 CCR 3203, as amended by Register 2020, No. 10, employees or their designated 

representatives have the right to examine and receive a copy of the district's injury and illness 

prevention program, and districts are required to provide access as described below. 8 CCR 3203 

defines "designated representative" as any individual or organization to whom an employee gives 

written authorization to exercise a right of access. A recognized or certified collective bargaining 

agent is, by definition, treated automatically as a designated representative.  

 

Districts are not required to include records of steps taken to implement and maintain the injury and 

illness prevention program. However, access to such information, or any other information in 

addition to that required by 8 CCR 3203, may be subject to collective bargaining.  

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees, or their representative 

designated pursuant to 8 CCR 3203, with either of the following:   (8 CCR 3203) 

 

1. Access to the district's injury and illness prevention program in a reasonable 

time, place, and manner, but in no event later than five business days after the 

request for access is received from an employee or a designated representative of 

the employee 

 

 When an employee or designated representative requests a copy of the district's 

injury and illness prevention program, the Superintendent or designee shall 

provide the requester a printed copy unless the employee or designated 

representative agrees to receive an electronic copy. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide one printed copy free of charge. If 

the employee or designated representative requests additional copies within one 

year of the previous request and the district's injury and illness prevention 

program has not been updated with new information since the prior copy was 

provided, the district may charge reasonable reproduction costs pursuant to 8 

CCR 3204 for the additional copies.  

 
Note:  Pursuant to 8 CCR 3203, an employee has unobstructed access if, as part of the employee's 

regular work duties, the employee predictably and routinely uses the electronic means to 

communicate with management or coworkers. 

 

2. Unobstructed access to the district's injury and illness prevention program 

through the district's server or web site, which allows an employee to review, 

print, and email the current version of the district's injury and illness prevention 

program 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the right and procedure to access 

the district's injury and illness prevention program to all employees.  (8 CCR 3203) 

 AR 4157(e) 

Page 234



 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 

Labor/Management Safety and Health Committee 

 
Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to use a labor/management safety 

and health committee to comply with the requirements of 8 CCR 3203 regarding communication with 

employees as specified in item #3 above in the section title "Injury and Illness Prevention Program."  

Pursuant to 8 CCR 3203, if the committee adheres to the following practices, the district shall be deemed to 

be in substantial compliance with the communications requirements of the law. 

 

The district's labor/management safety and health committee shall:  (8 CCR 3203) 

 

1. Meet regularly, but not less than quarterly. 

 

2. Prepare and make available to affected employees written records of the safety and 

health issues discussed at committee meetings and maintained for review by the 

California Department of Industrial Relations' Division of Occupational Safety and 

Health (Cal/OSHA) upon request.  These records shall be maintained for at least one 

year. 

 

3. Review results of the periodic, scheduled worksite inspections. 

 

4. Review investigations of occupational accidents and causes of incidents resulting in 

occupational injury or illness or exposure to hazardous substances.  As appropriate, 

the committee may submit suggestions to the Superintendent or designee regarding 

the prevention of future incidents. 

 

5. Review investigations of alleged hazardous conditions brought to the attention of any 

committee member. When determined necessary by the committee, it may conduct its 

own inspection and investigation to assist in remedial solutions. 

 

6. Submit recommendations to assist in the evaluation of employee safety suggestions. 

 

7. Upon request of Cal/OSHA, verify abatement action taken by the district to abate 

citations issued by Cal/OSHA. 

 

Hearing Protection 

 

Whenever employee noise exposure equals or exceeds the standards specified in law, the 

Superintendent or designee shall implement a hearing conservation program in accordance  

 

 

 AR 4157(f) 

Page 235



 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 

with state and federal regulations, including, when required, monitoring of sound levels, 

audiogram evaluation and audiometric testing of affected employees, the provision of 

hearing protectors, and employee training.  (8 CCR 5095-5100; 29 CFR 1910.95) 

 

Eye Safety Devices 

 

Eye safety devices shall be worn by employees whenever they are engaged in or observing 

an activity involving hazards or hazardous substances likely to cause injury to the eyes.  

(Education Code 32030-32034) 

 

First Aid and Medical Services 

 

Note: The following optional section reflects requirements of 8 CCR 3400, as amended by Register 2009, 

No. 35. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the ready availability of medical personnel for 

advice and consultation on matters of industrial health or injury.  Whenever a district facility 

or district grounds are workplace is not in close proximity to an infirmary, clinic, or 

hospital where all injured employees may be treated, the Superintendent or designee shall 

ensure that at least one employee is adequately trained to provide first aid.  (8 CCR 3400) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 8 CCR 3400, if ambulance service is not available within 30 minutes under normal 

conditions, the district may be required by the California Department of Industrial Relations' 

Division of Occupational Safety and Health to provide stretchers, blankets, or other adequate warm 

covering. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall make adequate first aid materials readily available for 

employees at every worksite. Such materials shall be approved by a consulting physician and 

shall be kept in a sanitary and usable condition.  The Superintendent or designee shall 

frequently inspect all first aid materials and replenish them as necessary.  (8 CCR 3400) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that suitable facilities for quick drenching 

or flushing of the eyes and body are provided within the work area for immediate 

emergency use when the eyes or body or any person may be exposed to injurious 

corrosive materials.  (8 CCR 3400) 

 

Note: 8 CCR 3400, as amended by Register 2009, No. 35, requires districts all employers to make 

provisions in advance, using one or a combination of the provisions specified in items #1-3 below, to ensure 

that employees receive prompt medical treatment for serious injury or illness. The d Districts should select 

the provision(s) that will be used by the reflect district practice. 

 

 

 AR 4157(g) 

Page 236



 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 

To avoid unnecessary delay in medical treatment in the event of an employee's serious injury 

or illness, the Superintendent or designee shall use one or more of the following:  (8 CCR 

3400) 

 

1. A communication system for contacting a physician or emergency medical service, 

such as access to 911 or equivalent telephone system.  The communication system or 

the employees using the system shall have the ability to direct emergency services to 

the location of the injured or ill employee. 

 

2. Readily accessible and available on-site treatment facilities suitable for treatment of 

reasonably anticipated injury and illness. 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

 

3. Proper equipment for prompt medical transport when transportation of injured or ill 

employees is necessary and appropriate. 

 

Protection from Communicable Diseases and Infections 

 
Note:  The following section contains general information in regard to bloodborne pathogens and 

infectious diseases as it relates to employee safety. For more information regarding bloodborne 

pathogens, see BP/AR 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens 

and BP/AR 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions. For more information regarding 

infectious diseases, see BP 4119.41/4219.41/4319.41 - Employees with Infectious Disease.  

 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop an exposure control plan for bloodborne 

pathogens that is consistent with the district's injury and illness prevention program.  

The plan shall include a determination of which job classifications have occupational 

exposure to blood or other potentially infectious materials; precautions to be 

implemented, including universal precautions, engineering and work practice controls, 

and personal protective equipment; availability of the hepatitis B vaccination; provision 

of information and training to employees; and follow-up actions to be taken if exposure 

occurs.  The district shall ensure that a copy of the exposure control plan is accessible to 

employees in accordance with law.  (8 CCR 5193; 29 CFR 1910.1030)  

 
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 

(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions) 

 

Strategies to prevent and mitigate the outbreak or spread of infectious diseases shall be 

followed for diseases that are communicated through airborne transmission, skin-to-

skin contact, foodborne transmission, or other casual or noncasual means. Such  

 

 AR 4157(h) 

Page 237



 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 

strategies shall include, but are not limited to, communication and training about the 

disease(s); campus closures and alternative means of instruction when necessary; 

preventative measures, such as social distancing, personal protective equipment, 

temperature checks, and/or any other health screening allowed by law; and cleaning 

and sanitization of district facilities and equipment. 

 
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 

 

The Superintendent of designee shall immediately report to the local health officer the 

presence or suspected presence of any communicable disease.  (17 CCR 2508)   

 

COVID-19 Exposure 

 

Note:  Pursuant to Labor Code 6409.6, as added by AB 685 (Ch. 84, Statutes of 2020), the district is 

required to take the following actions whenever it receives notice of potential exposure to COVID-19. 

 

If the district receives notice of potential exposure to COVID-19, the Superintendent or 

designee shall, within one business day of the notice, take all of the following actions:  

(Labor Code 6409.6) 

 

1. Provide a written notice to all employees, and the employers of subcontracted 

employees, who were on the premises at the same worksite as the qualifying 

individual within the infectious period that they may have been exposed to 

COVID-19.  The notice shall be provided in a manner normally used to 

communicate employment-related information, which may include, but is not 

limited to, personal service, email, or text message if it can reasonably be 

anticipated to be received by the employee within one business day of sending. 

 

2. Provide a written notice to the exclusive representative, if any, of employees who 

were on the premises within the infectious period 

 

3. Provide all employees who may have been exposed and the exclusive 

representative, if any, with information regarding: 

 

a. COVID-19-related benefits to which the employee may be entitled under 

applicable federal, state, or local laws, including, but not limited to, 

workers’ compensation 

 

b. Available leave options for exposed employees 

 

c. Antiretaliation and antidiscrimination protections of the employee 

 AR 4157(i) 

Page 238



 4257 

 4357 

 

 

EMPLOYEE SAFETY  (continued) 

 

 

4. Notify all employees, and the employers of subcontracted employees and the 

exclusive representative, if any, of the disinfection and safety plan that the 

district plans to complete in accordance with Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention guidelines 

 

The above notifications shall be maintained for a period of at least three years.  (Labor 

Code 6409.6) 

 

Note:  Labor Code 6409.6, as amended by AB 685, requires the district to provide specified 

information to the local health agency when a COVID-19 outbreak occurs, as provided below.  This 

notice must contain the same information as would be required in an incident report to the California 

Department of Industrial Relations' Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) Form 

300 injury and illness log unless inapplicable or unknown. 

 

If the district is notified of the number of cases that meet the definition of a COVID-19 

outbreak, as defined by the California Department of Public Health, within 48 hours, 

the Superintendent or designee shall, within 48 hours of the notice, notify the local 

public health agency of the names, number, occupation, and worksite of employees who 

meet the definition of a qualifying individual. The Superintendent or designee shall 

continue to give notice to the local health department of any subsequent laboratory-

confirmed cases of COVID-19 at the worksite.  (Labor Code 6409.6) 

 

Note:  Pursuant to Labor Code 6325, as amended by AB 685, until January 1, 2023, Cal/OSHA may 

prohibit entry into a place of employment when, in its opinion, the place of employment exposes 

employees to the risk of COVID-19 infection and constitutes an imminent hazard to employees.  In 

such cases, CalOSHA will provide a notice that must be posted in a conspicuous place at the place of 

employment. 

 

In the event that Cal/OSHA prohibits entry into any district workplace or performance 

of a district operation or process based on a determination that the workplace exposes 

employees to the risk of COVID-19 infection and constitutes an imminent hazard to 

employees, the district shall post a notice thereof provided by Cal/OSHA in a 

conspicuous place at the work site.  This notice shall not be removed except by an 

authorized representative of Cal/OSHA and only when the place of employment, 

operation, or process is made safe and the required safeguards or safety appliances or 

devices are provided.  (Labor Code 6325) 

 

 

 (7/99  3/10)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service  

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 239



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 
 

All Personnel AR 4157.1(a) 

 4257.1 

WORK-RELATED INJURIES 4357.1 

 

 

In order to provide medical benefits, temporary or permanent disability benefits, wage 

replacement, retraining or skill enhancement, and/or death benefits in the event that an 

employee becomes injured or ill in the course of employment, the district shall provide all 

employees with insurance and workers' compensation benefits in accordance with law. The 

Superintendent or designee shall develop an efficient claims handling process that reduces 

costs and facilitates employee recovery. 

 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 

(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 

(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 

(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 

(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 

(cf. 4157.2/4257.2/4357.2 - Ergonomics) 

(cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify every new employee, at the time of hire or by the 

end of the first pay period, of the employee's his/her right to receive workers' compensation 

benefits if injured at work.  (Labor Code 3551; 8 CCR 15596) 

 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 

 

In addition, a notice regarding workers' compensation benefits shall be posted in a 

conspicuous location frequented by employees, where the notice may be easily read during 

the workday.  (Labor Code 3550)  

 

In the event that an employee is injured or becomes ill in the course of employment, the 

employee he/she shall report the work-related injury or illness to the Superintendent or 

designee as soon as practicable. The employee and appropriate district staff shall also 

promptly document the date and time of any incident, a description of the incident, and 

any persons present.  

 

Within one working day of receiving notice or knowledge of any injury to an employee in the 

course of employment, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a claim form and notice 

of potential eligibility for workers' compensation benefits to the employee or, in the case of 

the employee's death, to the employee's his/her dependents. The claim form and notice shall 

be provided personally or by first class mail.  (Labor Code 5401)  

 

The Superintendent or designee shall additionally ensure that any employee who is a victim 

of a crime that occurred at the place of employment is given written notice personally or by 

first class mail within one working day of the crime, or when the district reasonably should  

 

Page 240



 AR 4157.1(b) 

 4257.1 

 4357.1 

 

 

WORK-RELATED INJURIES  (continued) 

 

 

have known of the crime, that the employee is eligible for workers' compensation benefits for 

injuries, including psychiatric injuries, that may have resulted from the crime.  (Labor Code 

3553) 

 

Note: Pursuant to Labor Code 3550, 3551, and 5401, all employee notices described above (i.e., the notice 

that must be posted in a conspicuous place, the notice provided to all employees at the time of hire, the 

notice that must be posted in a conspicuous place, and the notice and claim form provided when an 

employee is injured) must be in a form prescribed by the California Department of Industrial Relations 

(DIR) Division of Workers' Compensation (DWC). These notices are available on the DWC's web site or 

through the district's insurer. For districts that employ Spanish-speaking employees, the information must be 

made available in English and Spanish. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employee notices described above are in 

the form prescribed by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), Division of Workers 

Compensation.  

 

Note: Pursuant to Labor Code 6409.1, the district must file a report concerning any injury or illness which 

has, or is alleged to have, arisen out of and in the course of employment. The report is required to be filed 

with the DIR or, if the district is insured through a third party insurer, with the insurer. The district should 

select the option below that corresponds to the manner in which it insures for workers' compensation. The 

following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

OPTION 1:  (Districts insured for workers' compensation through a third party 

insurer) 

 

Upon learning of a work-related injury or illness, or injury or illness alleged to have arisen 

out of and in the course of employment, the Superintendent or designee shall report the 

incident to the district's insurance carrier or DIR, as applicable, within five days after 

obtaining knowledge of the injury or illness. If a subsequent death arises as a result of the 

reported injury or illness, an amended report indicating the death must shall be filed with the 

insurance carrier within five days after being notified of or learning about the death.  (Labor 

Code 6409.1) 

 

OPTION 2:  (Districts insured for workers' compensation through self-insurance) 

 

Upon learning of a work-related injury or illness, or injury or illness alleged to have arisen 

out of and in the course of employment, the Superintendent or designee shall report the 

incident to the DIR within five days after obtaining knowledge of the injury or illness. If a 

subsequent death arises as a result of the reported injury or illness, an amended report 

indicating the death must be filed with the DIR within five days after being notified of or 

learning about the death.  (Labor Code 6409.1) 

 

 

Page 241



 AR 4157.1(c) 

 4257.1 

 4357.1 

 

 

WORK-RELATED INJURIES  (continued) 

 

 
Note: The following paragraph is for use by districts that selected either Option 1 or 2 above. Pursuant to 

Labor Code 6409.1, as amended by AB 1804 (Ch. 199, Statutes of 2019), in addition to the report 

described above, a report of death or serious injury or illness is required to be immediately reported 

to the Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA) by telephone or through an online 

mechanism established by Cal/OSHA. Labor Code 6409.1 permits districts to make the report by 

telephone or email until Cal/OSHA has an online mechanism available. 

 

Labor Code 6302, as amended by AB 1805 (Ch. 200, Statutes of 2019), redefines "serious injury or 

illness" as provided below.  

 

In addition, in every case involving death or serious injury or illness, the Superintendent or 

designee shall immediately make a report to the Division of Occupational Safety and Health 

(Cal/OSHA) by telephone or through an online mechanism made available by 

Cal/OSHA  email to the Division of Occupational Safety and Health.  (Labor Code 6409.1) 

 

For the purpose of this report, serious injury or illness means any injury or illness 

occurring in a place of employment or in connection with any employment that requires 

inpatient hospitalization for other than medical observation or diagnostic testing, or in 

which an employee suffers an amputation, the loss of an eye, or any serious degree of 

permanent disfigurement.  (Labor Code 6302) 

 

Claims Related to COVID-19  

 
Note:  Until January 1, 2023, Labor Code 3212.86 and 3212.88, as added by SB 1159 (Ch. 85, Statutes 

of 2020), define "injury" for purposes of workers' compensation as including COVID-19 related 

illness or death when a positive COVID-19 diagnosis was made within 14 days after the employee 

performed labor or services at the district's place of employment. Labor Code 3212.86 applies when 

the diagnosis was made between March 19, 2020 and July 5, 2020, and confirmed by a COVID-19 test 

within 30 days of the diagnosis. Labor Code 3212.88 applies when the diagnosis was made after July 

6, 2020, and the positive test occurred during a period of an outbreak, as defined, at the employee's 

specific place of employment.  Pursuant to Labor Code 3212.86 and 3212.88, a positive diagnosis as 

specified above creates a presumption that the injury arose out of and in the course of employment.  

Unless disputed by the district within 30 or 45 days, as applicable, the Workers’ Compensation 

Appeals Board is bound to find, in accordance with the presumption, that COVID-19 was contracted 

within the course and scope of employment. 

 

Because of the large number of workers' compensation claims that districts may receive due to 

COVID-19 infection, districts are encouraged to consult legal counsel as appropriate to determine its 

impact on the district, including about the use of paid sick leave and eligibility for temporary 

disability benefits. 

 

Until January 1, 2023, an employee is presumed to be entitled to workers' compensation 

benefits for illness or death resulting from COVID-19 if the diagnosis was made within  

 

 

Page 242



 AR 4157.1(d) 

 4257.1 

 4357.1 

 

 

WORK-RELATED INJURIES  (continued) 

 

 

14 days after the employee performed labor or services at the place of employment and 

if the employee contracted COVID-19 during an outbreak at the employee's specific 

place of employment.  (Labor Code 3212.86, 3212.88)   

 

For this purpose, an outbreak means that, within 14 calendar days, one of the following 

occurs at a specific place of employment:  (Labor Code 3212.88) 

 

1. If a specific place of employment has 100 employees or fewer, four employees 

test positive for COVID-19. 

 

2. If a specific place of employment has more than 100 employees, four percent of 

the number of employees who reported to the specific place of employment test 

positive for COVID-19. 

 

3. A specific place of employment is ordered to close by a local public health 

department, the California Department of Public Health, Cal/OSHA, or the 

Superintendent due to a risk of infection with COVID-19.  

 

The Superintendent or designee may rebut a presumption that COVID-19 was 

contracted during the course and scope of employment by offering evidence to the 

Workers' Compensation Appeals Board, such as the measures that were in place at the 

employee's specific place of employment to reduce potential transmission of COVID-19 

and evidence of an employee's nonoccupational risk of contracting COVID-19.  (Labor 

Code 3212.86, 3212.88) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 243



 AR 4157.1(e) 

 4257.1 

 4357.1 

 

 

WORK-RELATED INJURIES  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

44984  Industrial accident and illness leaves, certificated employees 

45192  Industrial accident and illness leaves, classified employees 

LABOR CODE 

3200-48565  Workers' compensation, especially: 

3212.86  COVID-19: critical workers pre-July 5, 2020 

3212.88  COVID-19: critical workers post-July 5, 2020 

3550-3553  Employee notice 

3600-3605  Conditions of liability 

3760  Report of injury to insurer 

4600  Provision of medical and hospital treatment by employer 

4906  Disclosures and statements 

5400-5413  Notice of injury or death 

6302  Definition of serious injury or illness 

6409.1  Reports 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 

15596  Notice of employee rights to workers' compensation benefits 

 
Management Resources: 

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS PUBLICATIONS 

Workers' Compensation in California: A Guidebook for Injured Workers, 2016 

Notice to Employees -- Injuries Caused by Work  

Time of Hire Pamphlet 

Workers' Compensation Claim Form (DWC 1) & Notice of Potential Eligibility  

WEB SITES 

California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Occupational Safety and Health: 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh 

California Department of Industrial Relations, Division of Workers Compensation: 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/dwc 

California Department of Public Health: https://www.cdph.ca.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (7/02  10/16)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service  

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 244



CSBA Sample 

Board Policy 
 

Students BP 5113.1(a) 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY 

 

 

Note:  The following optional policy addresses both chronic absence, which refers to students missing an 

excessive number of school days for any reason, whether excused or unexcused, and truancy, which refers 

to students missing school and/or being tardy without a valid excuse. Education Code 48260 defines a "valid 

excuse" for purposes of classifying students as truants; see the accompanying administrative regulation. 

Also see BP/AR 5113 - Absences and Excuses for information about methods of verification of student 

absences. 

 

The Governing Board believes that absenteeism, whatever the cause, may be an early 

warning sign of poor academic achievement and may put students at risk of dropping out of 

school. The Board desires to ensure that all students attend school in accordance with the 

state's compulsory education law and take full advantage of educational opportunities 

provided by the district. 

 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision) 

 

Note:  The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Districts must track student 

attendance for the purpose of reporting chronic absenteeism for the state accountability system (the 

California School Dashboard) and  monitor unexcused absences for the purpose of identifying students 

who are classified as truants pursuant to Education Code 48260-48273.  In addition, Education Code 52060 

requires districts to include the rates of school attendance, chronic absence, dropout, and graduation, as 

applicable, in their local control and accountability plan (LCAP) (see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and 

Accountability Plan.), and chronic absence will be one of the state accountability indicators in the California 

School Dashboard beginning in the fall of 2018 (see BP 0500 - Accountability). Pursuant to the LCAP 

template adopted by the State Board of Education, "chronic absence" is the number of students who are 

absent on 10 percent or more of the school days in the academic year (July 1 through June 30) divided by 

the total enrollment during the academic year.  Other tTools to calculate chronic absence are available, such 

as the District Attendance Tracking Tool and School Attendance Tracking Tool, are available from 

Attendance Works. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a system to accurately track student 

attendance in order to identify individual students who are chronic absentees and truants, as 

defined in law and administrative regulation, and to identify patterns of absence throughout 

the district. He/she shall provide the Board with data on school attendance, chronic absence, 

and truancy rates districtwide, for each school, and disaggregated for each numerically 

significant student subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052.  Such data shall be used in 

the development of annual goals and specific actions for student attendance and engagement 

to be included in the district's local control and accountability plan and other applicable 

school and district plans. 

 

 

 

Page 245



 BP 5113.1(b) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

 

Note:  In developing strategies for addressing chronic absence and truancy, districts may consider reasons 

for absences given by individual students as well as survey data using tools such as the California Healthy 

Kids Survey and/or the California School Climate, Health, and Learning Survey System available from 

WestEd. 

 

The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall consult with students, 

parents/guardians, school staff, and community agencies, as appropriate, to identify factors 

contributing to chronic absence and truancy. 

 

The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall develop strategies that a 

tiered approach to reducing chronic absence. focus on prevention of Such an approach 

shall include strategies for preventing attendance problems, which may include, but are not 

limited to, efforts to provide a safe and positive school environment, relevant and engaging 

learning experiences, school activities that help develop students' feelings of connectedness 

with the school, school-based health services, letters alerting parents/guardians to the 

value of regular school attendance, and incentives and rewards to recognize students who 

achieve excellent attendance or demonstrate significant improvement in attendance.  

 

The Superintendent or designee also shall develop strategies that enable The tiered 

approach shall also provide for early outreach to students as soon as they show signs of 

poor attendance or if they were chronically absent in the prior school year.  Early 

intervention may include personalized outreach, individual attendance plans, and/or 

mentoring to students with moderate levels of chronic absence, with additional 

intensive, interagency wrap-around services for students with the highest level of 

absence. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

 

Note:  In developing strategies for addressing chronic absence and truancy, districts may consider reasons 

for absences given by individual students as well as survey data using tools such as the California Healthy 

Kids Survey and/or the California School Climate, Health, and Learning Survey System available from 

WestEd. 

 

 

Page 246



 BP 5113.1(c) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with students, parents/guardians, school staff, 

and community agencies, as appropriate, to identify factors contributing to chronic absence 

and truancy. 

 

Interventions for sStudents with serious attendance problems shall be provided with 

interventions specific to their needs, which designed to meet the specific needs of the 

student and may include, but are not limited to, health care referrals, transportation 

assistance, counseling for mental or emotional difficulties, academic supports, efforts to 

address school or community safety concerns, discussions with the student and 

parent/guardian about their attitudes regarding schooling, or other strategies to remove 

identified barriers to school attendance. The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or 

designee may collaborate with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public health 

care agencies, other government agencies, and/or medical, mental health, and oral health care 

providers to make alternative educational programs and support services available for 

students and families. 

 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 

(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 

(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that staff assigned to fulfill attendance-

related duties are trained in implementing a trauma-informed approach to chronic 

absence and receive information about the high correlation between chronic absence 

and exposure to adverse childhood experiences. 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)  

 
Note:  State law establishes a series of interventions that the district is required or authorized to impose 

depending on the number of truancies committed by a student; see the accompanying administrative 

regulation. Habitually truant students, as defined in Education Code 48262, may be referred to a school 

attendance review board (SARB) if established by the county office of education or to a SARB established 

by the district Governing Board pursuant to Education Code 48321; see BP/AR 5113.12 - District School  

 

 

Page 247



 BP 5113.1(c) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 
Attendance Review Board. Instead of the SARB process, students may be referred to a truancy mediation 

program operated by the county's district attorney or probation officer pursuant to Education Code 48260.6. 

Education Code 48264.5 authorizes, but does not require, students who continue to be truant after receiving 

these interventions to be referred to a juvenile court. Parents/guardians of students who are identified as 

truant may be subject to penalties pursuant to Education Code 48293, Penal Code 270.1, and/or Penal Code 

272. 

 

Students who are identified as chronically absent or truant shall be subject to the 

interventions specified in law and administrative regulation. 

 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 

 

Note:  Education Code 48900 expresses legislative intent that alternatives to suspension or expulsion be 

used with students who are truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from assigned school activities; see BP 5144 - 

Discipline and BP 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process. 

 

A student's truancy, tardiness, or other absence from school shall not be the basis for his/her 

suspension or expulsion. Alternative strategies and positive reinforcement for attendance 

shall be used whenever possible. 

 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

 
Note:  Education Code 52060 requires districts to include the rates of school attendance, chronic absence, 

dropout, and graduation, as applicable, in their local control and accountability plan (LCAP); see BP/AR 

0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan. 

 

The California School Dashboard includes measures of district and school performance in each 

priority area addressed in the LCAP, including chronic absence for grades K-8.  The Dashboard 

reports the degree to which districts and schools meet performance criteria as well as changes in 

performance from year to year.  See BP 0500 - Accountability.  For grades 9-12, chronic absence rates 

are available through the California Department of Education's DataQuest. 

 

The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall periodically report to the 

Board regarding student attendance patterns in the district, including rates of chronic 

absence and truancy districtwide and for each school, grade level, and numerically 

significant student subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052. the district's progress 

in improving student attendance rates for all students and for each numerically significant 

student population. Such information shall be used to evaluate the effectiveness of strategies 

implemented to reduce chronic absence and truancy and to make changes as needed  develop 

annual goals and specific actions for student attendance and engagement to be included in the 

district's local control and accountability plan and other applicable school and district plans. 

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall engage school staff in program 

evaluation and improvement and in the determination of how to best allocate available 

community resources. 

 

Page 248



 BP 5113.1(d) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

1740-1742  Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 

37223  Weekend classes 

46000  Records (attendance) 

46010-46014  Absences 

46110-46119  Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 

46140-46147  Attendance in junior high and high schools 

48200-48208  Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 

48225.5  Work permits, entertainment and allied industries 

48240-48246  Supervisors of attendance 

48260-48273  Truants 

48290-48297 Failure to comply; complaints against parents 

48320-48325  School attendance review boards 

48340-48341  Improvement of student attendance 

48400-48403  Compulsory continuation education 

48900  Suspension and expulsion 

49067  Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade 

52052  Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 

60901  Chronic absence 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act 

PENAL CODE 

270.1  Chronic truancy; parent/guardian misdemeanor 

272  Parent/guardian duty to supervise and control minor child; criminal liability for truancy 

830.1  Peace officers 

VEHICLE CODE 

13202.7  Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

256-258  Juvenile hearing officer 

601-601.4  Habitually truant minors 

11253.5   Compulsory school attendance 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

306  Explanation of absence 

420-421  Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 

COURT DECISIONS 

L.A. v. Superior Court of San Diego County, (2012) 209 Cal.App.4th 976 

 

 

 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 

 

Page 249



 BP 5113.1(e) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 

 
Management Resources: 

ATTENDANCE WORKS PUBLICATIONS 

District Attendance Tracking Tool 

For School Board Members: Frequently Asked Questions About Chronic Absence 

School Attendance Tracking Tool 

Bringing Attendance Home:  Engaging Parents in Preventing Chronic Absence, 2015 

Count Us In! Working Together to Show that Every School Day Matters, 2014 

The Power of Positive Connections:  Reducing Chronic Absence Through PEOPLE:  Priority Early 

Outreach for Positive Linkages and Engagement, 2014 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

School Attendance Review Board Handbook:  A Road Map for Improved School Attendance and 

Behavior, 2015 rev. 2018 

School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

Attendance Works:  http://www.attendanceworks.org 

California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance:  http://www.cascwa.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

California Healthy Kids Survey:  http://chks.wested.org 

California School Climate, Health, and Learning Survey System:  http://www.cal-schls.wested.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (4/15  10/17)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 250



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 

 

Students AR 5113.1(a) 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY 

 

 
Note:  The following administrative regulation may be revised to reflect the district personnel responsible 

for duties related to attendance supervision and matters related to chronic absence and truancy. Pursuant to 

Education Code 48240-48246, the district may appoint an attendance supervisor, join a consortium of 

districts to employ an attendance supervisor, or contract with the County Superintendent of Schools to 

supervise the attendance of district students. See AR 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision. 

 

Education Code 48273 mandates that the district adopt rules and regulations related to reports of district 

referrals to a school attendance review board (SARB). See the section on "Reports" below for language 

fulfilling this mandate. 

 

Definitions 

 

Note:  The following definition of "chronic absentee" is provided in Education Code 60901 for purposes of 

reporting student attendance within the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System. This 

definition is also used in the template adopted by the State Board of Education to assist districts in 

completing the local control and accountability plan. Chronic absence includes absence for any reason (i.e., 

excused and/or unexcused absences). 

 

Chronic absentee means a student who is absent for any reason on 10 percent or more of the 

school days in the school year, when the total number of days the student is absent is divided 

by the total number of days the student is enrolled and school was actually taught in the 

regular schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.  (Education Code 60901) 

 

Truant means a student who is absent from school without a valid excuse three full days in 

one school year, or tardy or absent for more than any 30-minute period during the school day 

without a valid excuse on three occasions in one school year, or any combination thereof.  

(Education Code 48260) 

 

Habitual truant means a student who has been reported as a truant three or more times within 

the same school year, provided the district has made a conscientious effort to hold at least 

one conference with the student and his/her the student's parent/guardian after either of the 

two previous reports.  (Education Code 48262, 48264.5) 

 

Chronic truant means a student who has been absent from school without a valid excuse for 

10 percent or more of the school days in one school year, from the date of enrollment to the 

current date, provided the district has met the requirements of Education Code 48260, 

48260.5, 48261, 48262, 48263, and 48291.  (Education Code 48263.6) 

 
Note:  As provided above, definitions of the various categories of truancy are based on the number of 

absences from school without a valid excuse. Education Code 48260 defines a "valid excuse," for purposes 

of  

 

Page 251



 AR 5113.1(b) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 
classifying a student as a truant, as any of the reasons specified in Education Code 48205 (i.e., illness, 

quarantine, health services appointments, funeral service attendance, jury duty, illness or medical 

appointment of student's child, justifiable personal reasons, service on precinct board, time with family 

member called to active duty or on leave from active duty, and religious exercises), Education Code 48225.5 

(i.e., entertainment or allied industries work permits and nonprofit organization performances), or other 

reasons at the discretion of school administrators.  AR 5113 - Absences and Excuses reflects the reasons that 

students may be excused from school pursuant to Education Code 48205 and provides information about 

methods of verification of student absences. 

 

For purposes of classifying a student as a truant, valid excuse includes, but is not limited to, 

the reasons for which a student shall be excused from school pursuant to Education Code 

48205 and 48225.5 and AR 5113 - Absences and Excuses.  A valid excuse may include 

other reasons that are within the discretion of school administrators and, based on the facts of 

the student's circumstances, are deemed to constitute a valid excuse.  (Education Code 

48260) 

 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits) 

 

Addressing Chronic Absence 

 

Note:  The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

For further information about strategies to address chronic absence, see CSBA's policy brief Improving 

Student Achievement by Addressing Chronic Absence and the California Department of Education's (CDE) 

School Attendance Improvement Handbook. Also see AR 5113 - Absences and Excuses for language 

requiring students with frequent absences due to illness to provide written verification from a health care 

practitioner. 

 

When a student is identified as a chronic absentee, the Superintendent, attendance 

supervisor, or designee shall communicate with the student and his/her the student's 

parents/guardians to determine the reason(s) for the excessive absences, ensure the student 

and parents/guardians are aware of the adverse consequences of poor attendance, and jointly 

develop a plan for improving the student's school attendance. 

 
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

The student may be referred to a student success team or school-site attendance review team 

to assist in evaluating his/her the student's needs and identifying strategies and programs to 

assist him/her the student.  When necessary, the student may be referred to a school 

attendance review board (SARB) program, a truancy mediation program established 

by the district attorney or the probation officer, or a comparable program deemed 

acceptable by the Superintendent or designee, in accordance with Education Code 

48263 and item #3 in the section "Addressing Truancy" below. 

 

Page 252



 AR 5113.1(c) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 

(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 

 

A student who is struggling academically may be offered tutoring or other supplemental 

instruction, extended learning opportunities, and/or alternative educational options as 

appropriate. 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 49067, the Governing Board may authorize teachers to assign 

failing grades to students with excessive unexcused absences, with the threshold number of absences 

established by the Board. See BP 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement.  However, 

CSBA's governance brief Research-Supported Strategies to Improve the Accuracy and Fairness of 

Grades recommends that student absences be dealt with separately from grading and that absences 

should not be considered in determining a student's level of understanding of course content.  The 

following paragraph is consistent with that recommendation and may be revised to reflect district 

practice. 

 

Students who are absent shall be given an opportunity to make up missed assignments 

or assessments and shall receive full credit for satisfactory completion of the work.  

Students with excessive absences shall be supported to the extent possible to limit the 

impact of absences on the student's grades. 

 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 

(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 

(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 

(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

 

Whenever chronic absenteeism is linked to a health issue or, social-emotional, family, or 

other nonschool condition issue, the Superintendent or designee may recommend school or 

community resources and/or collaborate with community agencies and organizations to 

address the needs of the student and the student's his/her family. 

 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

 

 

 

 

Page 253



 AR 5113.1(d) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 

Addressing Truancy 

 

An attendance supervisor or designee, peace officer, probation officer, or school 

administrator or designee may, as applicable, arrest or assume temporary custody during 

school hours of any minor student found away from his/her home who is absent from school 

without a valid excuse.  Any person arresting or assuming temporary custody of a minor 

student shall deliver the student and make reports in accordance with Education Code 48265 

and 48266.  (Education Code 48264, 48265, 48266) 

 
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 

 

The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall investigate a complaint from 

any person that a parent/guardian has violated the state compulsory education laws contained 

in Education Code 48200-48341.  (Education Code 48290) 

 

When a student has been identified as a truant as defined above, the following steps shall be 

implemented based on the number of truancies he/she the student has committed: 

 

1. Initial truancy 

 

a. The student shall be reported to the Superintendent, attendance supervisor, 

or designee.  (Education Code 48260) 

 
Note:  When a student is classified as truant, Education Code 48260.5 requires notification of his/her the 

student's parents/guardians by the most cost-effective method possible, which may include email or a 

telephone call. The CDE's web site and School Attendance Improvement Handbook The California 

Department of Education's (CDE) School Attendance Review Board: A Road Map for Improved 

School Attendance and Behavior provides sample letters. 

 

b. The student's parent/guardian shall be notified by the most cost-effective 

method possible, which may include email or a telephone call, that:  

(Education Code 48260.5) 

 

(1) The student is truant. 

 

(2) The parent/guardian is obligated to compel the student to attend school 

and, Iif the parent/guardian fails to meet this obligation, he/she the 

parent/guardian may be guilty of an infraction of the law and subject 

to prosecution pursuant to Education Code 48290-48296. 

 

(3) Alternative educational programs are available in the district. 

 

 

 

Page 254



 AR 5113.1(e) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 

(4) The parent/guardian has the right to meet with appropriate school 

personnel to discuss solutions to the student's truancy. 

 

(5) The student may be subject to arrest or held in temporary custody by a 

probation officer, a peace officer, a school administrator or designee, 

or attendance supervisor or designee pursuant to Education Code 

48264 if found away from home and absent from school without a 

valid excuse. 

 

(6) If the student is at least 13 years of age but under age 18, tThe 

student may be subject to the suspension, restriction, or delay of 

his/her driving privilege pursuant to Vehicle Code 13202.7. 

 

(7) It is recommended that the parent/guardian accompany the student to 

school and attend classes with the student for one day. 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

c. The student may be required to attend makeup classes on one day of a 

weekend pursuant to Education Code 37223.  (Education Code 48264.5) 

 

d. The student and, as appropriate, his/her the student's parent/guardian may be 

requested to attend a meeting with a school counselor or other school designee 

to discuss the root causes of the attendance issue and develop a joint plan to 

improve the student's attendance.  (Education Code 48264.5) 

 

Note:  The following optional item is for use by districts in which there is no county SARB and the county's 

district attorney or probation officer has elected to participate in a truancy mediation program pursuant to 

Education Code 48260.6. 

 

e. The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee may notify the 

district attorney and/or probation officer of the student's name and the name 

and address of his/her the student's parents/guardians.  (Education Code 

48260.6) 

 

2. Second truancy 

 

a. Any student who has once been reported as a truant shall again be reported to 

the Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee as a truant if he/she 

the student is absent from school without a valid excuse one or more days or 

is tardy on one or more days during the school year.  (Education Code 48261) 

 

 

Page 255



 AR 5113.1(f) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 

b. The student may be required to attend makeup classes on one day of a 

weekend pursuant to Education Code 37223.  (Education Code 48264.5) 

 

c. The student may be assigned to an after-school or weekend study program 

within the county. If the student fails to successfully complete this study 

program, he/she the student shall be subject to item #3 below.  (Education 

Code 48264.5) 

 

Note:  Education Code 48262 provides that a student cannot be classified as a habitual truant (item #3 

below) until the district has made a conscientious effort to hold at least one conference with the student and 

his/her parent/guardian after the attendance supervisor has been notified of either the first or second truancy. 

Education Code 48262 defines "conscientious effort," for purposes of this section, as attempting to 

communicate with the parent/guardian at least once using the most cost-effective method possible, which 

may include email or a telephone call. Thus, the following paragraph requires such communication in the 

event of the second truancy. 

 

d. An appropriate district staff member shall make a conscientious effort to hold 

at least one conference with the student and his/her the student's 

parent/guardian by communicating with the parent/guardian at least once 

using the most cost-effective method possible, which may include email or a 

telephone call.  (Education Code 48262) 

 

e. The student may be given a written warning by a peace officer. A record of 

that warning may be kept at the school for not less than two years or until the 

student graduates or transfers from the school. If the student transfers, the 

record may be forwarded to the new school.  (Education Code 48264.5) 
 

Note:  The following optional item is for use by districts in which there is no county SARB and the county's 

district attorney or probation officer has elected to participate in a truancy mediation program. Pursuant to 

Education Code 48260.6, if the district notifies the district attorney and/or probation officer that a student 

continues to be classified as a truant after proper notification to the parents/guardians as described in item 

#1b above, the district attorney or probation officer may request a meeting with the student and his/her the 

student's parents/guardians to discuss the possible legal consequences of the student's truancy. 

 

f. The Superintendent or designee may notify the district attorney and/or 

probation officer when the student continues to be classified as a truant after 

the parents/guardians have been notified in accordance with item #1b above.  

(Education Code 48260.6) 
 

3. Third truancy (habitual truancy) 

 

Note:  Education Code 48263 and 48264.5 authorize the district to refer habitual truants, chronic absentees, 

and students who are habitually insubordinate or disorderly to a SARB, a county truancy mediation 

program, or a comparable program for services. The district should revise the following items to reflect the 

option(s) available in the district. 

 

Page 256



 AR 5113.1(g) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 
According to the CDE's School Attendance Improvement Handbook Review Board: A Road Map for 

Improved School Attendance and Behavior, prior to referring a truant student to a SARB or county 

truancy mediation program, some districts initiate an intermediate step, such as a school-site attendance 

review team or student success team.  Districts that have established such an intermediate step may revise 

the following item accordingly. 

 

a. A student who is habitually truant, irregular in school attendance a chronic 

absentee, or habitually insubordinate or disorderly during attendance at 

school may be referred to, and required to attend, a school attendance review 

board (SARB) program, a truancy mediation program established by the 

district attorney or the probation officer, or a comparable program deemed 

acceptable by the Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 48263, 

48264.5) 

 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 

 

b. Upon making a referral to the SARB or the probation department, the 

Superintendent, or designee attendance supervisor, or other person 

designated to make the referral shall provide the student, the student's and 

parent/guardian, and SARB or probation department with documentation 

of the interventions undertaken at the school. The attendance supervisor 

or designee shall also provide the student and the student's 

parent/guardian, in writing, the name and address of the SARB or probation 

department and the reason for the referral. This notice shall indicate that the 

student and the student's parent/guardian shall be required, along with the 

district staff person making the referral, to meet with the SARB or a probation 

officer to consider a proper disposition of the referral.  (Education Code 

48263) 

 

c. If the student does not successfully complete the truancy mediation program 

or other similar program, he/she the student shall be subject to item #4 

below.  (Education Code 48264.5) 

 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48263, the SARB or probation officer may direct a student and/or the 

student's parents/guardians to make use of available community services and may require satisfactory 

evidence of participation.  If the SARB or probation officer determines that available community resources 

cannot resolve the problem, or if the student and/or the student's parents/guardians have failed to respond 

to the directives of the SARB or probation officer, the SARB may so notify the district attorney and/or 

probation officer, or the probation officer may notify the district attorney provided the district attorney or 

probation officer participates in a truancy mediation program.  If the county has not established a SARB, the 

district may make this finding and notification. 

 

The following paragraph is for use by districts in which the county has not established a SARB and the 

county's district attorney or probation officer has elected to participate in a truancy mediation program. 

 

 

Page 257



 AR 5113.1(h) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 

d. If the Superintendent or designee determines that available community 

services cannot resolve the problem of the truant or insubordinate student or if 

the student and/or his/her the student's parents/guardians have failed to 

respond to the directives of the district or to services provided, the 

Superintendent or designee may so notify the district attorney and/or the 

probation officer.  (Education Code 48263) 

 

4. Fourth truancy 

 

a. Upon his/her the fourth truancy within the same school year, the student may 

be referred to the jurisdiction of the juvenile court.  (Education Code 48264.5; 

Welfare and Institutions Code 601) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48264.5 and Welfare and Institutions Code 601, a student coming within 

the jurisdiction of the juvenile court may be adjudged a ward of the court and required to perform 

community service, pay a fine, attend a court-approved truancy prevention program, and/or lose driving 

privileges. 

 

In L.A. v. Superior Court of San Diego County, a court of appeal held that juvenile court judges have the 

authority to imprison a truant as a last resort if the student commits an egregious violation of a court order, 

less restrictive alternatives have proved ineffective, and the student is confined separately from youths held 

for criminal violations. 

 

b. If a student has been adjudged by the county juvenile court to be a habitual 

truant, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the juvenile court and the 

student's probation or parole officer whenever the student is truant or tardy on 

one or more days without a valid excuse in the same or succeeding school 

year, or is habitually insubordinate or disorderly at school.  The juvenile court 

and probation or parole officer shall be notified within 10 days of the 

violation.  (Education Code 48267) 

 

Note:  Item #5 below is for use by districts that offer any of grades K-8. Penal Code 270.1 states that a 

parent/guardian of a "chronic truant" who is at least six years old and is in any of grades K-8 is guilty of a 

misdemeanor punishable by a fine and/or imprisonment if he/she the parent/guardian has failed to 

reasonably supervise and encourage the student's school attendance and has been offered language-

accessible support services to address the student's truancy. Pursuant to Penal Code 270.1, a parent/guardian 

found guilty of a misdemeanor may participate in a program established by a superior court, if available, 

which includes periodic meetings with district representatives and service referrals. 

 

5. Chronic truancy (unexcused absence for 10 percent of school days) 

 

a. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the student's 

parents/guardians are offered language-accessible support services to address 

the student's truancy. 

 

Page 258



 AR 5113.1(i) 

 

 

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 

 

 

b. If a chronically truant student is at least age six years and is in any of grades 

K-8, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's 

parents/guardians that failure to reasonably supervise and encourage the 

student's school attendance may result in the parent/guardian being found 

guilty of a misdemeanor pursuant to Penal Code 270.1. 

 

Records 

 

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. The CDE's School 

Attendance Review Board Handbook:  A Road Map for Improved School Attendance and Behavior 

cautions that it is important to keep accurate and complete records of any violations of compulsory school 

attendance laws because such records may ultimately be introduced as evidence in a trial for truancy. 

 

The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall maintain accurate attendance 

records for students identified as habitual or chronic truants.  The Superintendent or designee 

also In addition, the attendance supervisor, designee, and/or the staff persons who have 

direct contact with the student or parent/guardian shall document all their contacts with 

a student and his/her parent/guardian regarding the student's attendance, including a 

summary of all conversations and a record of all intervention efforts. 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

 

Note:  Education Code 48273 mandates that the district adopt rules and regulations for the purpose of 

gathering data and making a report to the County Superintendent of Schools regarding SARB referrals.  The 

CDE's web site provides a model annual summary report form. 

 

The Superintendent, attendance supervisor, or designee shall gather and transmit to the 

County Superintendent of Schools the number and types of referrals made to the SARB and 

of requests for petitions made to the juvenile court.  (Education Code 48273) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (11/12  10/17)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 259



CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 

Students AR 5113.11(a) 

 

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION 

 

 
Note:  The following optional administrative regulation is for use by districts that appoint their own 

attendance supervisor and may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education Code 48242 and 

48243, the district may appoint an attendance supervisor or may jointly employ an attendance supervisor 

with one or more other districts. Alternatively, pursuant to Education Code 48244, the district may contract 

with the County Superintendent of Schools for the supervision of attendance of district students. AB 2815 

(Ch. 829, Statutes of 2016) amended Education Code 48244 to delete the requirement that the County Board 

of Education approve the district's contract with the County Superintendent. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall appoint an attendance supervisor and any assistant 

attendance supervisor(s) as may be necessary to supervise the attendance of district students.  

(Education Code 48240, 48242) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48241 and 48245, the following paragraph is applicable to any district 

with an average daily attendance of 1,000 of more, according to the annual school report of the last 

preceding school year. require an attendance supervisor to be certificated for the work by the County 

Board of Education.  However, it is not clear that all county boards currently provide this function.  

The following paragraph may be revised to reflect local practice. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that aAny person appointed as an attendance 

supervisor has been shall be appropriately certificated for to perform the work by the 

County Board of Education.  (Education Code 48241, 48245) 

 

Such Attendance supervisors shall perform duties related to compulsory full-time education, 

truancy, compulsory continuation education, work permits, and any additional duties 

prescribed by the Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 48240) 

 
(cf. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance) 

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 

(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits) 

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 

 
Note:  Items #1-5 below may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 48240, as amended by 

AB 2815 (Ch. 829, Statutes of 2016), states the Legislature's intent that attendance supervisors fulfill the 

following duties.  

 

The attendance supervisor shall promote a culture of attendance and establish a system to 

accurately track student attendance in order to achieve all of the following:  (Education Code 

48240) 

 

 

 

Page 260



 AR 5113.11(b) 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION  (continued) 

 

 

1. Raise the awareness of school personnel, parents/guardians, caregivers, community 

partners, and local businesses of the effects of chronic absenteeism and truancy and 

other challenges associated with poor attendance 

 

2. Identify and respond to grade level or student subgroup patterns of chronic 

absenteeism or truancy 

 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 

(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 

 

3. Identify and address factors contributing to chronic absenteeism and habitual truancy, 

including suspension and expulsion 

 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

 

4. Ensure that students with attendance problems are identified as early as possible to 

provide applicable support services and interventions 

 

5. Evaluate the effectiveness of strategies implemented to reduce chronic absenteeism 

rates and truancy rates 

 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

 

The attendance supervisor may provide support services and interventions, including, but not 

limited to, the following:  (Education Code 48240) 

 

1. A conference between school personnel, the student's parent/guardian, and the student 

 

2. Promotion of cocurricular and extracurricular activities that increase student 

connectedness to school, such as tutoring, mentoring, the arts, service learning, or 

athletics 

 
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 

(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts) 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 

 

3. Recognition of students who achieve excellent attendance or demonstrate significant 

improvement in attendance 

 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 

Page 261



 AR 5113.11(c) 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION  (continued) 

 

 

4. Referral of the student to a school nurse, school counselor, school psychologist, 

school social worker, and other student support personnel for case management and 

counseling 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

 

5. Collaboration with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public health care 

agencies, government agencies, or medical, mental health, and oral health care 

providers to receive necessary services 

 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 

 

6. Collaboration with school study teams, guidance teams, school attendance review 

teams, or other intervention-related teams to assess the attendance or behavior 

problem in partnership with the student and his/her the student's parents/guardians or 

caregivers 

 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

 

7. In schools with significantly higher rates of chronic absenteeism, identification of 

barriers to attendance that may require schoolwide strategies rather than case 

management 

 

8. Referral of the student for a comprehensive psychosocial or psychoeducational 

assessment, including for purposes of creating an individualized education program 

for a student with disabilities or creating a plan pursuant to Section 504 of the federal 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 

(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 

 

9. Referral of the student to a school attendance review board (SARB) established 

pursuant to Education Code 48321 or to the probation department pursuant to 

Education Code 48263 

 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 

 

10. Referral of the student to a truancy mediation program operated by the county's 

district attorney or probation officer pursuant to Education Code 48260.6 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48290, the Governing Board is required to investigate any 

complaint that a parent/guardian has violated compulsory education laws.  The following paragraph 

delegates this responsibility to the attendance supervisor and may be revised to reflect district 

 

Page 262



 AR 5113.11(d) 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION  (continued) 

 

 
 practice. Pursuant to Education Code 48292, it is the responsibility of the attendance supervisor to 

file a criminal complaint against a parent/guardian who continually and willfully fails to respond to 

school attendance review board directives or services. 

 

Upon receiving any complaint that a parent/guardian or other person having control or 

charge of a student has violated Education Code 48200-48341, the state compulsory 

education laws, the attendance supervisor shall investigate the matter and, if a violation 

is found, shall recommend referral to a SARB.  If the district is subsequently notified by 

the SARB that the parent/guardian continually and willfully has failed to respond to 

directives of the SARB or the services provided, the attendance supervisor shall refer 

the matter for possible prosecution in court in accordance with Education Code 48291-

48292 as applicable.  (Education Code 48290-48292) 

 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48273, the Board is required to assign appropriate officers and 

employees to provide the County Superintendent with a report of SARB referrals and requests for 

petitions to the juvenile court; see AR 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy.  The following 

paragraph is for use by districts that have delegated this responsibility to the attendance supervisor.  

 

The attendance supervisor shall gather and transmit to the County Superintendent of 

Schools the number and types of referrals made to the SARB and of requests for 

petitions made to the juvenile court.  (Education Code 48273) 

   
Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Among the primary 

roles of the attendance supervisor are the accurate tracking of student attendance and monitoring of chronic 

absence in order to identify students at risk. Pursuant to Education Code 52060, districts are required to 

include rates of school attendance, chronic absence, dropout, and graduation, as applicable, in their local 

control and accountability plan (see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan), and chronic 

absence is one of the state accountability indicators in the California School Dashboard (see BP 0500 - 

Accountability). 

 

The attendance supervisor shall annually report student attendance data to the Superintendent 

or designee and the Governing Board. Such data shall include, by school, grade level, and 

each numerically significant student subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052, rates of 

school attendance, chronic absence in which students are absent on 10 percent of more of the 

school days in the school year, and dropout. 

 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 

 

 

 
Legal References:  (see next page) 

 

 

 

 

Page 263



 AR 5113.11(e) 

 

 

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

1740  Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 

37223  Weekend classes 

46000  Records (attendance) 

46010-46014  Absences 

46110-46119  Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 

46140-46147  Attendance in junior high and high schools 

48200-48208  Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 

48240-48246  Supervisors of attendance 

48260-48273  Truants 

48290-48297  Failure to comply; complaints against parents 

48320-48325  School attendance review boards 

48340-48341  Improvement of student attendance 

48400-48403  Compulsory continuation education 

52052  Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups  

52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 

60901  Chronic absence 

PENAL CODE 

270.1  Chronic truancy; parent/guardian misdemeanor 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

601-601.4  Habitually truant minors 

11253.5   Compulsory school attendance 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

306  Explanation of absence 

420-421  Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 

 

Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

School Attendance Review Board Handbook, 2015 

School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

Attendance Works:  http://www.attendanceworks.org 

California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance:  http://www.cascwa.org 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (10/17)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 264



CSBA Sample 
Board Policy 
 

Students BP 5145.7(a) 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

 

 

Note: Education Code 231.5 and 34 CFR 106.8 mandate the district to have written policies on sexual 

harassment. The following policy addresses harassment by and of students in the school setting. As part of 

this mandate, the district should also adopt a sexual harassment policy related to employees; see BP/AR 

4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment and AR 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual 

Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 

Both federal law (Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972) (20 USC 1681-1688; 34 CFR 106.1-

106.82) and state law (Education Code 220, 231.5) prohibit sexual harassment and require districts to 

establish procedures for the prompt and equitable resolution of sexual harassment complaints.  Whether a 

complaint is addressed through the federal Title IX complaint procedures adopted pursuant to 34 CFR 

106.44-106.45, as added by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, or the state uniform complaint procedures adopted pursuant 

to 5 CCR 4600-4670 is dependent on whether the alleged conduct meets the more stringent federal 

definition or the state definition of sexual harassment.  In order to meet the applicable timelines, in some 

instances it may be necessary to review a complaint under both procedures concurrently.  See the 

accompanying administrative regulation, BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures, and AR 5145.71 

- Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 

A district can be held liable for civil damages for the sexual harassment of students pursuant to Title IX if 

the district is found to have been "deliberately indifferent" in its response to known sexual harassment.  

Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.30, a district is deliberately indifferent if its response to Title IX sexual harassment 

is clearly unreasonable in light of the known circumstances. 

 

In addition to filing a private civil lawsuit, an alleged victim of sexual harassment may file a complaint with 

the California Department of Education (CDE) and/or the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil 

Rights (OCR), the federal agency responsible for administrative enforcement of federal laws and regulations 

that prohibit discrimination in programs and activities that receive federal financial assistance from the U.S. 

Department of Education.   

 

The Governing Board is committed to maintaining a safe school environment that is free 

from harassment and discrimination. The Board prohibits, at school or at school-sponsored or 

school-related activities, sexual harassment targeted at any student by anyone. The Board 

also prohibits retaliatory behavior or action against any person who reports, files a complaint 

or testifies about, or otherwise supports a complainant in alleging sexual harassment. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 

Note: 34 CFR 106.44, as added by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, requires the district, when there is actual knowledge 

of sexual harassment in an education program or activity, to respond promptly in a manner that is not 

unreasonable in light of the known circumstances. 34 CFR 106.30, as added, defines "actual knowledge" as 

notice of sexual harassment or allegations of sexual harassment being submitted to the district's Title IX 

Coordinator, any official of the district who has authority to institute corrective measures, or any employee 

of an elementary or secondary school.  
Page 265



 BP 5145.7(b) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 
It is important to note that a referral to law enforcement does not relieve a school district of its responsibility 

to investigate the complaint as a matter of sex discrimination. 

 

The district strongly encourages students who feel that they are being or have been sexually 

harassed on school grounds or at a school-sponsored or school-related activity by another 

student or an adult, or who have experienced off-campus sexual harassment that has a 

continuing effect on campus, to immediately contact their teacher, the principal, the district's 

Title IX Coordinator, or any other available school employee. Any employee who receives a 

report or observes an incident of sexual harassment shall notify the Title IX Coordinator.  

 

Once notified, the Title IX Coordinator shall ensure the complaint or allegation is addressed 

through Title IX complaint procedures or uniform complaint procedures AR 5145.71 - Title 

IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures or BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 

Procedures, as applicable, and shall offer supportive measures to the complainant.  Because 

a complaint or allegation that is dismissed or denied under the Title IX complaint 

procedure may still be subject to consideration under state law, the Title IX 

Coordinator shall ensure that any implementation of AR 5145.71 concurrently meets 

the requirements of BP/AR 1312.3. 

 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 

 

The Title IX Coordinator and shall offer supportive measures to the complainant and 

respondent, as deemed appropriate under the circumstances.   

 

Note:  Education Code 234.6, as added by AB 34 (Ch. 282, Statutes of 2019), requires districts, beginning in 

the 2020-21 school year, to post the district's written policy on sexual harassment in a prominent location on 

the district's web site in a manner that is easily accessible to parents/guardians and students. 

 

Education Code 231.6, as added by AB 543 (Ch. 428, Statutes of 2019), requires districts serving students in 

grades 9-12 to create a poster that notifies students of the district's sexual harassment policy, and to display 

it prominently and conspicuously in each bathroom and locker room on campus. 

 

Education Code 231.5, as amended by AB 543, requires the district to provide a copy of the district's sexual 

harassment policy as part of any orientation program conducted for new and continuing students.  

 

Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, the district is required to notify students, parents/guardians, employees, and 

bargaining units of its policy to not discriminate on the basis of sex as well as its complaint procedures and 

processes, and to post this information in a prominent location on the district's web site and in student and 

staff handbooks. 

 

Requirements related to the dissemination of the district's sexual harassment policy and procedures and best 

practices for reinforcing the policy are addressed in the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 

 

Page 266



 BP 5145.7(c) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall inform students and parents/guardians of the district's 

sexual harassment policy by disseminating it through parent/guardian notifications, 

publishing it on the district's web site, and including it in student and staff handbooks.  All 

district staff shall be trained regarding the policy. 

 

Instruction/Information 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district students receive age-appropriate 

information on sexual harassment. Such instruction and information shall include: 

 

1. What acts and behavior constitute sexual harassment, including the fact that sexual 

harassment could occur between people of the same sex and could involve sexual 

violence 

 

2. A clear message that students do not have to endure sexual harassment under any 

circumstance 

 

3. Encouragement to report observed incidents of sexual harassment even when the 

alleged victim of the harassment has not complained 

 

Note: Where sexual harassment or violence occurs in the context of other possible rule violations, students 

may be reluctant to report sexual harassment or violence.  For example, a student who is sexually harassed 

while away from school without permission may be reluctant to file a complaint if the student believes 

discipline will be imposed for the violation.  As such, item #4 below clarifies that any other rule violation 

will be addressed separately from the sexual harassment complaint in order to encourage students to report 

the harassment. 

 

4. A clear message that student safety is the district's primary concern, and that any 

separate rule violation involving an alleged victim or any other person reporting a 

sexual harassment incident will be addressed separately and will not affect the 

manner in which the sexual harassment complaint will be received, investigated, or 

resolved 

 

5. A clear message that, regardless of a complainant's noncompliance with the writing, 

timeline, or other formal filing requirements, every sexual harassment allegation that 

involves a student, whether as the complainant, respondent, or victim of the 

harassment, shall be investigated and action shall be taken to respond to harassment, 

prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students 

 

6. Information about the district's procedures for investigating complaints and the 

person(s) to whom a report of sexual harassment should be made 

 

 

 

Page 267



 BP 5145.7(d) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

7. Information about the rights of students and parents/guardians to file a civil or 

criminal complaint, as applicable, including the right to file a civil or criminal 

complaint while the district investigation of a sexual harassment complaint continues 

 

8. A clear message that, when needed, the district will implement supportive measures 

to ensure a safe school environment for a student who is the complainant or victim of 

sexual harassment and/or other students during an investigation  

 

Disciplinary Actions 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48900.2, a student in grades 4-12 may be suspended and/or expelled 

from school for sexual harassment. Education Code 48915(c) requires the Superintendent or designee to 

recommend expulsion for any student, irrespective of grade, who commits sexual assault or battery as 

defined in the Penal Code. See AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process. 

 

Upon completion of an investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any student found to 

have engaged in sexual harassment or sexual violence in violation of this policy shall be 

subject to disciplinary action. For students in grades 4-12, disciplinary action may include 

suspension and/or expulsion, provided that, in imposing such discipline, the entire 

circumstances of the incident(s) shall be taken into account. 

 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 

 

Upon investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any employee found to have engaged 

in sexual harassment or sexual violence toward any student shall be subject to disciplinary 

action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with law and the applicable collective 

bargaining agreement. 

 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Report) 

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

 

Record-Keeping 

 

In accordance with law and district policies and regulations, the Superintendent or 

designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of sexual harassment to enable the 

district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive harassing behavior in district schools. 

 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

Page 268



 BP 5145.7(e) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 

48900  Grounds for suspension or expulsion 

48900.2  Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment 

48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 

48980  Notice at beginning of term 

48985  Notices, report, statements and records in primary language 

CIVIL CODE 

51.9  Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional relationships 

1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12950.1  Sexual harassment training 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1092  Definition of sexual assault 

1221 Application of laws 

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 34 

12291  Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1983  Civil action for deprivation of rights 

2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 

2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy 

106.1-106.82  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs 

COURT DECISIONS 

Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 

Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130 

Reese v. Jefferson School District, (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736 

Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, (1999) 526 U.S. 629 

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 524 U.S. 274 

Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey, (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473 

Doe v. Petaluma City School District, (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-

Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 

Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Q&A on Campus Sexual Misconduct, September 2017 

 
Management Resources continued:  (see next page) 

 

 

Page 269



 BP 5145.7(f) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

 
Management Resources:  (continued) 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS  (continued) 

Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 

Sexual Harassment:  It's Not Academic, September 2008 

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, 

or Third Parties, January 2001 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (9/16  7/20)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 270



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 
 

Students AR 5145.7(a) 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

 

 

Note:  Education Code 231.5 and Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681-1688; 34 

CFR 106.1-106.82) prohibit discrimination based on sex, including sexual harassment, and mandate that 

the district adopt and publish complaint procedures.  Also see AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Complaint Procedures.  

 

Title IX Coordinator/Compliance Officer 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, districts that receive federal financial assistance are mandated to 

designate an employee to ensure district compliance with Title IX and its implementing regulations. The 

following paragraph specifies that the Title IX Coordinator will be the same person(s) designated to serve as 

the compliance officer(s) for the district's uniform complaint procedures pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform 

Complaint Procedures. Districts may modify this regulation to designate separate district employees to serve 

these functions. 

 

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to 

coordinate its efforts to comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as well 

as to investigate, and resolve sexual harassment complaints under AR 1312.3 - Uniform 

Complaint Procedures. The Title IX Coordinator(s) may be contacted at: 
 

  

(title or position) 

  

(address) 

  

(telephone number) 

  

(email) 

 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 

 

The district shall notify students, parents/guardians, employees, bargaining units, and 

applicants for employment of the name or title, office address, email address, and telephone 

number of the district's Title IX Coordinator.  (34 CFR 106.8) 

 

Prohibited Conduct Definitions 

 
Note: Education Code 212.5 defines sexual harassment as any unwelcome sexual advance, request for 

sexual favors, and other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature, made by someone in the 

educational setting.  For purposes of suspension and expulsion, Education Code 48900.2 defines sexual 

harassment as conduct, when considered from the perspective of a reasonable person of the same gender as  

 

Page 271



 AR 5145.7(b) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 
the victim, thatis sufficiently severe or pervasive as to have a negative impact upon the victim's academic 

performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment for the victim; see 

AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.  Conduct that meets the federal definition of sexual 

harassment in 34 CFR 106.30 (i.e., (1) a district employee conditioning the provision of a district aid, 

benefit, or service on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct; (2) unwelcome conduct 

determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively 

denies a person equal access to the district's education program or activity; or (3) sexual assault, dating 

violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 20 USC 1092 and 34 USC 12291) requires 

investigation and resolution through Title IX regulations; see AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Complaint Procedures.  

 

Prohibited sSexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, 

unwanted requests for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of 

a sexual nature made against another person of the same or opposite sex in the educational 

setting, under any of the following conditions:  (Education Code 212.5; 5 CCR 4916) 

 

1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of a 

student's academic status or progress. 

 

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by a student is used as the basis for 

academic decisions affecting the student. 

 

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the student's 

academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational 

environment. 

 

4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the student is used as the basis for any 

decision affecting the student regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or 

activities available at or through any district program or activity. 

 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 

 

Any prohibited conduct that occurs off campus or outside of school-related or school-

sponsored programs or activities will be regarded as sexual harassment in violation of district 

policy if it has a continuing effect on or creates a hostile school environment for the 

complainant or victim of the conduct. 

 

For purposes of applying the complaint procedures specified in Title IX of the 

Education Amendments of 1972, sexual harassment is defined as any of the following  

 

 

Page 272



 AR 5145.7(c) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

forms of conduct that occurs in an education program or activity in which a district 

school exercises substantial control over the context and respondent:  (34 CFR 106.30, 

106.44)  

 

1. A district employee conditioning the provision of a district aid, benefit, or service 

on the student's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct 

 

2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, 

pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a student equal 

access to the district's education program or activity 

 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 20 

USC 1092 or 34 USC 12291 

 
(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 

 

Examples of Sexual Harassment 

 

Note:  The following list contains common examples of sexual harassment from the U.S. Department of 

Education's Office for Civil Rights OCR January 2001 Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance, and 

definitions specified in 5 CCR 4916. 

 

Examples of types of conduct which are prohibited in the district and which may constitute 

sexual harassment under state and/or federal law, in accordance with the definitions 

above, include, but are not limited to: 

 

1. Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations, or propositions 

 

2. Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or 

sexually degrading descriptions 

 

3. Graphic verbal comments about an individual's body or overly personal conversation 

 

4. Sexual jokes, derogatory posters, notes, stories, cartoons, drawings, pictures, obscene 

gestures, or computer-generated images of a sexual nature 

 

5. Spreading sexual rumors 

 

6. Teasing or sexual remarks about students enrolled in a predominantly single-sex class 

 

7. Massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or brushing the body 

 

8. Touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way 

Page 273



 AR 5145.7(d) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

9. Impeding or blocking movements or any physical interference with school activities 

when directed at an individual on the basis of sex 

 

10. Displaying sexually suggestive objects 

 

11. Sexual assault, sexual battery, or sexual coercion 

 

12. Electronic communications containing comments, words, or images described above 

 

Any prohibited conduct that occurs off campus or outside of school-related or school-

sponsored programs or activities will be regarded as sexual harassment in violation of district 

policy if it has a continuing effect on or creates a hostile school environment for the 

complainant or victim of the conduct. 

 

Title IX Coordinator/Compliance Officer 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, districts that receive federal financial assistance are mandated to 

designate an employee to ensure district compliance with Title IX and its implementing regulations. The 

following paragraph specifies that the Title IX Coordinator will be the same person(s) designated to serve as 

the compliance officer(s) for the district's uniform complaint procedures pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform 

Complaint Procedures. Districts may modify this regulation to designate separate district employees to serve 

these functions. 

 

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to 

coordinate its efforts to comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 in 

accordance with AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures, as 

well as to oversee investigate, and/or resolve sexual harassment complaints processed under 

AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. The Title IX Coordinator(s) may be contacted 

at: 
 

  

(title or position) 

  

(address) 

  

(telephone number) 

  

(email) 

 

Notifications 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and parents/guardians that the 

district does not discriminate on the basis of sex as required by Title IX and that  

 

Page 274



 AR 5145.7(e) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

inquiries about the application of Title IX to the district may be referred to the 

district's Title IX Coordinator and/or to the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, U.S. 

Department of Education.  (34 CFR 106.8) 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

The district shall notify students, and parents/guardians, employees, bargaining units, and 

applicants for employment of the name or title, office address, email address, and telephone 

number of the district's Title IX Coordinator.  (34 CFR 106.8) 

 

A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and regulation shall: 

 

1. Be included in the notifications that are sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of 

each school year  (Education Code 48980; 5 CCR 4917) 

 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 

 

2. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building or other area 

where notices of district rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct are 

posted  (Education Code 231.5) 

 
Note:  Education Code 231.6, as added by AB 543 (Ch. 428, Statutes of 2019), requires districts serving 

students in grades 9-12 to create a poster that notifies students of the district's sexual harassment policy, and 

to display it, as specified below. The district may partner with local, state, or federal agencies, or nonprofit 

organizations, for the purposes of the design and content of the poster.  

 

3. Be summarized on a poster which shall be prominently and conspicuously displayed 

in each bathroom and locker room at each school.  The poster may be displayed in 

public areas that are accessible to and frequented by students, including, but not 

limited to, classrooms, hallways, gymnasiums, auditoriums, and cafeterias. The poster 

shall display the rules and procedures for reporting a charge of sexual harassment; the 

name, phone number, and email address of an appropriate school employee to contact 

to report a charge of sexual harassment; the rights of the reporting student, the 

complainant, and the respondent; and the responsibilities of the school.  (Education 

Code 231.6) 

 
Note:  Education Code 234.6, as added by AB 34 (Ch. 282, Statutes of 2019), requires districts, beginning 

in the 2020-21 school year, to post on the district's web site the district's written policy on sexual 

harassment as well as other state and federal law requirements, in the manner specified below. 34 CFR 

106.8 also requires districts that have web sites to prominently display the contact information for the Title 

IX Coordinator and the district's nondiscrimination policy on its web site. 

 

 

 

Page 275



 AR 5145.7(f) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

4. Be posted, along with the name or title and contact information of the Title IX 

Coordinator, in a prominent location on the district's web site in a manner that is 

easily accessible to parents/guardians and students This shall include the name or 

title, office address, email address, and telephone number of the employee(s) 

designated as the district's Title IX Coordinator.  (Education Code 234.6; 34 CFR 

106.8) 

 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 

 
Note:  Education Code 231.5, as amended by AB 543, requires the district to provide a copy of the district's 

sexual harassment policy as part of any orientation program conducted for new and continuing students.  

 

5. Be provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new and continuing 

students at the beginning of each quarter, semester, or summer session  (Education 

Code 231.5) 

 

6. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's 

comprehensive rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct (Education 

Code 231.5) 

 

7. Be included, along with the name or title and contact information of the Title IX 

Coordinator, in any handbook provided to students, or parents/guardians, 

employees, or employee organizations  (34 CFR 106.8) 

 
Note:  Education Code 234.6, as added by AB 34, requires a district, starting in the 2020-21 school 

year, to post the definitions specified below. Also see AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment for 

language reflecting this requirement and other notifications related to sex discrimination. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall also post the definition of sex discrimination and 

harassment as described in Education Code 230, including the rights set forth in 

Education Code 221.8, in a prominent location on the district's web site in a manner 

that is easily accessible to parents/guardians and students.  (Education Code 234.6) 

 

Reporting Complaints  

 

A student or parent/guardian who believes that the student has been subjected to sexual 

harassment by another student, an employee, or a third party or who has witnessed sexual 

harassment is strongly encouraged to report the incident to a teacher, the principal, the 

district's Title IX Coordinator, or any other available school employee. Within one school 

day of receiving such a report, the principal or other school employee shall forward the report 

to the district's Title IX Coordinator. Any school employee who observes an incident of  

 

 

Page 276



 AR 5145.7(g) 

 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 

 

 

sexual harassment involving a student shall, within one school day, report the observation to 

the principal or Title IX Coordinator,.  The report shall be made regardless of whether the 

alleged victim files a formal complaint or requests confidentiality.   

 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 

 

When a report or complaint of sexual harassment involves off-campus conduct, the Title IX 

Coordinator shall assess whether the conduct may create or contribute to the creation of a 

hostile school environment. If the Title IX Coordinator determines that a hostile environment 

may be created, the complaint shall be investigated and resolved in the same manner as if the 

prohibited conduct occurred at school. 

 

When a verbal or informal report of sexual harassment is submitted, the Title IX Coordinator 

shall inform the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in 

accordance with applicable district complaint procedures.  

 

Complaint Procedures 

 

All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment by and against students shall be 

investigated and resolved in accordance with law and district procedures.  The Title IX 

Coordinator shall review the allegations to determine the applicable procedure for responding 

to the complaint.  All complaints that meet the definition of sexual harassment under Title IX 

shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual 

Harassment Complaint Procedures.  Other sexual harassment complaints shall be 

investigated and resolved pursuant to BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  

 

If sexual harassment is found following an investigation, the Title IX Coordinator, or 

designee in consultation with the Coordinator, shall take prompt action to stop the 

sexual harassment, prevent recurrence, implement remedies, and address any 

continuing effects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (9/16  7/20)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 277



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 
 

Students AR 5145.71(a) 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

 

 

Note:  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681-1688; 34 CFR 106.1-106.82) prohibits 

discrimination based on sex, including sexual harassment, and mandates that the district adopt and publish 

complaint procedures.   

 

The following administrative regulation reflects the Title IX complaint procedure detailed in 34 CFR 

106.44-106.45, as added by 85 Fed. Reg. 30026, which must be used, effective August 14, 2020, to address 

any complaint of sexual harassment that meets the definition in 34 CFR 106.30.  Pursuant to 34 CFR 

106.30, allegations of sexual harassment governed by these regulations include (1) a district employee 

conditioning the provision of a district aid, benefit, or service on an individual's participation in unwelcome 

sexual conduct; (2) unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and 

objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the district's education program or 

activity; or (3) sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 20 USC 1092 and 

34 USC 12291.  Alleged sexual harassment that does not meet this definition should be addressed through 

the district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP); see BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 

 

34 CFR 106.44 requires the district, when there is actual knowledge of sexual harassment in an education 

program or activity, to respond promptly in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent. 34 CFR 106.30 

defines "actual knowledge" as notice of sexual harassment or allegations of sexual harassment being 

submitted to the district's Title IX Coordinator, any official of the district who has authority to institute 

corrective measures, or any employee of the district.  A district is deliberately indifferent only if its response 

to Title IX sexual harassment is clearly unreasonable in light of the known circumstances. 

 

Application of the Title IX complaint procedures to the facts of a specific complaint may implicate 

complicated questions about the intersection of state law, federal law, and, in cases involving employees, the 

applicable collective bargaining agreement.  Districts with questions about specific complaints are strongly 

encouraged to consult legal counsel. 

 

See BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment for information about prohibited conduct, student instruction, 

required notifications, and processes for reporting sexual harassment. 

 

The complaint procedures described in this administrative regulation shall be used to address 

any complaint governed by Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 alleging that a 

student, while in an education program or activity in which a district school exercises 

substantial control over the context and respondent, was subjected to one or more of the 

following forms of sexual harassment:  (34 CFR 106.30, 106.44)  

 

1. A district employee conditioning the provision of a district aid, benefit, or service on 

the student's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct 

 

2. Unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, 

and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a student equal access to the 

district's education program or activity 

 

 

Page 278



 AR 5145.71(b) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking as defined in 20 USC 

1092 or 34 USC 12291 

 

All other sexual harassment complaints or allegations brought by or on behalf of students 

shall be investigated and responded to pursuant to resolved in accordance with BP/AR 

1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. The determination of whether the allegations 

meet the definition of sexual harassment under Title IX shall be made by the district's 

Title IX Coordinator.   

 

Because the complainant has a right to pursue a complaint under BP/AR 1312.3 for any 

allegation that is dismissed or denied under the Title IX complaint procedure, the Title 

IX Coordinator shall ensure that all requirements and timelines for BP/AR 1312.3 are 

concurrently met while implementing the Title IX procedure.  

 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

Reporting Allegations/Filing a Formal Complaint 

 

Note: Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.30, the timeline for resolving a sexual harassment complaint begins 

when the district has actual knowledge of sexual harassment, defined as the receipt of a report by the 

Title IX Coordinator or other employee of an elementary or secondary school.  The following 

paragraph reflects the requirement for any employee to forward the report to the Title IX 

Coordinator as stated in AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment and may be revised to reflect district 

practice. 

 

A report of sexual harassment shall be submitted directly to or forwarded A student who is 

the alleged victim of sexual harassment or the student's parent/guardian may submit a 

report of sexual harassment to the district's Title IX Coordinator using the contact 

information listed in AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment or to any other available school 

employee, who shall forward the report to the Title IX Coordinator within one day of 

receiving the report. 

 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

 

Upon receiving such a report, the Title IX Coordinator shall inform the complainant of the 

right to file a formal complaint and the process for filing a formal complaint.  (34 CFR 

106.44)   

 

A formal complaint, with the complainant's physical or digital signature, may be filed with 

the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, by email, or by any other method authorized by 

the district.  (34 CFR 106.30) 

 

 

 

Page 279



 AR 5145.71(c) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 
Note: Given the district's duty pursuant to 34 CFR 106.44 to respond to reports of sexual harassment in a 

manner that is not deliberately indifferent, the Title IX Coordinator should file a complaint in certain 

situations even when the victim chooses not to do so, including, but not limited to, when a safety threat 

exists.  In such cases, the Title IX Coordinator and the alleged victim is not a party are not named 

parties to the case, but the alleged victim must will receive notices as required by the Title IX regulations 

at specific points in the complaint process. 

 

Even if the alleged victim chooses not to file a formal complaint, the Title IX Coordinator 

shall file a formal complaint in situations in which when a safety threat exists.  In addition, 

the Title IX Coordinator may file a formal complaint in other situations as permitted under 

the Title IX regulations, including as part of the district's obligation to not be 

deliberately indifferent to known allegations of sexual harassment.  In such cases, the 

Title IX Coordinator shall provide the alleged victim alleged victim is not a party to the 

case, but will receive notices as required by the Title IX regulations at specific points in the 

complaint process. 

 

A formal complaint, with the complainant's physical or digital signature, may be filed with 

the Title IX Coordinator in person, by mail, by email, or by any other method authorized by 

the district.  (34 CFR 106.30) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, 

decision-maker, or a facilitator of an informal resolution process does shall not have a 

conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents generally or an 

individual complainant or respondent., and that sSuch persons shall receive training in 

accordance with 34 CFR 106.45.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

Supportive Measures 

 

Upon receipt of a report of Title IX sexual harassment, even if a formal complaint is not 

filed, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly contact the complainant to discuss the 

availability of supportive measures which are nondisciplinary, nonpunitive, and do not 

unreasonably burden the other party. and shall consider the complainant's wishes with respect 

to the supportive measures implemented. Supportive measures shall be offered as 

appropriate, as reasonably available, and without charge to the complainant or the 

respondent before or after the filing of a formal complaint or where no formal 

complaint has been filed.  Such measures shall be nondisciplinary, nonpunitive, and 

designed to restore or preserve equal access to the district's education program or 

activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed 

to protect the safety of all parties or the district's educational environment or to deter 

sexual harassment. Such Supportive measures may include, but are not limited to, 

counseling, course-related adjustments, modifications of class schedules, mutual restrictions 

on contact, increased security, and monitoring of certain areas of the campus. The Title IX 

Coordinator shall consider the complainant's wishes with respect to supportive measures.  (34 

CFR 106.30, 106.44) 

Page 280



 AR 5145.71(d) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

The district shall maintain as confidential any supportive measures provided to the 

complainant or respondent, to the extent that maintaining such confidentiality would 

not impair the district's ability to provide the supportive measures.  (34 CFR 106.30) 

 

Emergency Removal from School 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48900.2, a student in grades 4-12 may be suspended and/or expelled 

from school for sexual harassment.  Districts should also note that Education Code 48915(c) requires the 

Superintendent or designee to recommend expulsion for any student, irrespective of grade, who commits 

sexual assault or battery as defined in the Penal Code. See AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due 

Process. 
  
34 CFR 106.44 allows a student to be removed in emergency situations as described below, but requires that 

a student should not be "disciplined" prior to a finding being made pursuant to the grievance process 

established by 34 CFR 106.45. Due to this inconsistency in state and federal law, districts are advised to 

consult legal counsel as to the manner of imposing an emergency removal. 

 

A student shall not be disciplined for alleged sexual harassment under Title IX until the 

investigation has been completed.  However, oOn an emergency basis, the district may 

remove a student from the district's education program or activity, provided that the district 

conducts an individualized safety and risk analysis, determines that removal is justified due 

to an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual 

arising from the allegations, and provides the student with notice and an opportunity to 

challenge the decision immediately following the removal. This authority to remove a 

student does not modify a student's rights under the Individuals with Disabilities Education 

Act or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  (34 CFR 106.44) 
 

If a district employee is the respondent, the employee may be placed on administrative leave 

during the pendency of the formal complaint process.  (34 CFR 106.44) 
 

Dismissal of Complaint 
 

The Title IX Coordinator shall dismiss a formal complaint if the alleged conduct would not 

constitute sexual harassment as defined in 34 CFR 106.30 even if proved.  The Title IX 

Coordinator shall also dismiss any complaint that in which the alleged conduct did not 

occur in the district's education program or activity or did not occur against a person in the 

United States, and may dismiss a formal complaint if the complainant notifies the district in 

writing that the complainant would like to withdraw the complaint or any allegations in the 

complaint, the respondent is no longer enrolled or employed by the district, or sufficient 

circumstances prevent the district from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination 

with regard to the complaint. (34 CFR 106.45) 
 

Upon dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly, and simultaneously to the parties, 

send written notice of the dismissal and the reasons for the dismissal simultaneously to the 

parties, and shall inform them of their right to appeal the dismissal of a formal  

 

Page 281



 AR 5145.71(e) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

complaint or any allegation in the complaint in accordance with the appeal procedures 

described in the section "Appeals" below.   (34 CFR 106.45)  

 

If a complaint is dismissed on the grounds that the alleged conduct does not constitute sexual 

harassment as defined in 34 CFR 106.30, the conduct may still be addressed pursuant to 

BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as applicable. 

 

Informal Resolution Process 

 
Note: As part of an informal resolution, the parties may agree upon discipline, including suspension 

or expulsion, without the need for an investigation (Analysis of Comments and Changes, 85 Fed. Reg. 

30026, pages 30232, 30406-30407).  This is an exception to the general rule provided in 34 CFR 106.44 

which prohibits the district from imposing discipline on a respondent for sexual harassment until the 

full investigation process is complete.  Also see the section "Stipulated Expulsion" in AR 5144.1 - 

Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process. 

 

When a formal complaint of sexual harassment is filed, the district may offer an informal 

resolution process, such as mediation, at any time prior to reaching a determination regarding 

responsibility. The district shall not require a party to participate in the informal resolution 

process or to waive the right to an investigation and adjudication of a formal complaint.  (34 

CFR 106.45) 

 

The district may facilitate an informal resolution process provided that the district:  (34 CFR 

106.45) 

 

1. Provides the parties with written notice disclosing the allegations, the requirements of 

the informal resolution process, the right to withdraw from the informal process and 

resume the formal complaint process, and any consequences resulting from 

participating in the informal resolution process, including that records will be 

maintained or could be shared. 

 

2. Obtains the parties' voluntary, written consent to the informal resolution process 

 

3. Does not offer or facilitate an informal resolution process to resolve allegations that 

an employee sexually harassed a student 

 

Formal Complaint Process  Written Notice 

 

If a formal complaint is filed, the Title IX Coordinator shall provide the known parties with 

written notice of the following:  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

1. The district's complaint process, including any informal resolution process 

 

 

Page 282



 AR 5145.71(f) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

2. The allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment with sufficient details 

known at the time, including the identity of parties involved in the incident if known, 

the conduct allegedly constituting sexual harassment, and the date and location of the 

alleged incident if known. Such notice shall be provided with sufficient time for the 

parties to prepare a response before any initial interview. 

 

If, during the course of the investigation, the district investigates allegations new 

Title IX allegations arise about the complainant or respondent that are not included 

in the initial notice, the Title IX Coordinator shall provide notice of the additional 

allegations to the parties. 

 

3. A statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct 

and that a determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the 

complaint process 

 

4. The opportunity for the parties to have an advisor of their choice who may be, but is 

not required to be, an attorney, and the ability to inspect and review evidence 

 

5. The prohibition against knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting 

false information during the complaint process 

 
Note: The following paragraph is optional.  Although not required by law, a best practice is to provide 

notice to the parties of the name of the investigator, facilitator, and decision-maker in order to give the 

parties an opportunity to raise concerns of conflict of interest or bias as prohibited by 34 CFR 106.45. 

 

The above notice shall also include the name of the investigator, facilitator of an informal 

process, and decision-maker and shall provide either party with no less than three calendar 

days to raise concerns of conflict of interest or bias regarding any of these persons and shall 

inform the parties that, if at any time a party has concerns regarding conflict of interest 

or bias regarding any of these persons, the party should immediately notify the Title IX 

Coordinator.  

 

Investigation Procedures 

 
Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.45, when investigating a formal complaint, the burden of proof rests on the 

district and not on the parties.  However, the district must obtain the party's voluntary, written consent to 

access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party's records that are maintained by a physician, psychiatrist, 

psychologist, or other recognized professional or paraprofessional, which are made and maintained in 

connection with the provision of treatment to the party. 

 

34 CFR 106.45 authorizes, but does not require, the district to conduct a live hearing at which each party's 

advisor may ask the other party and any witnesses all relevant questions and follow-up questions.  If the 

district chooses to include such a hearing as a component of its complaint procedure, the following list 

should be modified to include requirements for the hearing in accordance with 34 CFR 106.45. 

 

Page 283



 AR 5145.71(g) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

During the investigation process, the district's designated investigator shall:  (34 CFR 

106.45) 

 

1. Provide an equal opportunity for the parties to present witnesses, including fact and 

expert witnesses, and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence 

 

2. Not restrict the ability of either party to discuss the allegations under investigation or 

to gather and present relevant evidence 

 

3. Provide the parties with the same opportunities to have others present during any 

grievance proceeding, including the opportunity to be accompanied to any related 

meeting or proceeding by the advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required 

to be, an attorney 

 

4. Not limit the choice or presence of an advisor for either the complainant or 

respondent in any meeting or grievance proceeding, although the district may 

establish restrictions regarding the extent to which the advisor may participate in the 

proceedings as long as the restrictions apply equally to both parties 

 

5. Provide, to a party whose participation is invited or expected, written notice of the 

date, time, location, participants, and purpose of all investigative interviews or other 

meetings, with sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate 

 

6. Send in an electronic format or hard copy to both parties and their advisors, if any, the 

evidence obtained as part of the investigation that is directly related to the 

allegations raised in the complaint, and provide the parties at least 10 days to submit a 

written response for the investigator to consider prior to the completion of the 

investigative report 

 

7. Objectively evaluate all relevant evidence, including both inculpatory and 

exculpatory evidence, and determine credibility in a manner that is not based on a 

person's status as a complainant, respondent, or witness 

 

8. Create an investigative report that fairly summarizes relevant evidence and, at least 

10 days prior to the determination of responsibility, send to the parties and their 

advisors, if any, the investigative report in an electronic format or a hard copy, for 

their review and written response 

 

9. After sending the investigative report to the parties and before reaching a 

determination regarding responsibility, afford each party the opportunity to submit 

written, relevant questions that the party wants asked of any party or witness, provide 

each party with the answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions 

from each party 

Page 284



 AR 5145.71(h) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

Questions and evidence about the complainant's sexual predisposition or prior sexual 

behavior are not relevant, unless such questions and evidence are offered to prove that 

someone other than the respondent committed the conduct alleged by the complainant or if 

the questions and evidence concern specific incidents of the complainant's prior sexual 

behavior with respect to the respondent and are offered to prove consent.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

Privacy rights of all parties to the complaint shall be maintained in accordance with 

applicable state and federal laws. 

 
Note:  Districts with questions about the application of a collective bargaining agreement in the context of a 

Title IX investigation should consult legal counsel. 

 

If the complaint is against an employee, rights conferred under an applicable collective 

bargaining agreement shall be applied to the extent they do not conflict with the Title IX 

requirements. 
 

Written Decision 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.45, the person designated as the decision-maker of the determination of 

responsibility cannot be the same person designated as the Title IX Coordinator, an investigator, or the 

person who considers appeals. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the position designated by 

the district to provide a written determination of responsibility. While designation decisions will depend on 

the size of the district, a best practice is to designate an upper-level administrator as the decision-maker and 

designate the Superintendent as the person to consider appeals. 

 

The Superintendent shall designate an employee as the decision-maker to determine 

responsibility for the alleged conduct, who shall not be the Title IX Coordinator or a person 

involved in the investigation of the matter.  (34 CFR 106.45) 
 

After sending the investigative report to the parties and the investigative report has been 

sent to the parties but before reaching a determination regarding responsibility, the 

decision-maker shall afford each party the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions 

that the party wants asked of any party or witness, provide each party with the answers, and 

allow for additional, limited follow-up questions from each party 
 

The decision-maker shall issue, and simultaneously provide to both parties, a written decision 

as to whether the respondent is responsible for the alleged conduct.  (34 CFR 106.45) 
 

Note:  34 CFR 106.45 requires that the district's complaint process include a "reasonably prompt" timeframe 

for concluding the complaint process, but does not specify the number of days within which the final 

decision must be issued.  The following paragraph specifies a 45 60-day period so that, in the event it is 

determined that the alleged conduct does not meet the definition of sexual harassment pursuant to Title IX 

regulations, there will be time for the district to complete the resolution of the complaint through uniform 

complaint procedures within the required 60-day period for that process in order to align with the 

requirements of the UCP which are simultaneously triggered when a complaint of sexual harassment 

is received. Districts may revise the following paragraph to include a different timeline as long as it would 

satisfy the requirement to act promptly.  

Page 285



 AR 5145.71(i) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

The written decision shall be issued within 45 60 calendar days of the receipt of the 

complaint. 

 

The timeline may be temporarily extended for good cause with written notice to the 

complainant and respondent of the extension and the reasons for the action.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 
Note: 34 CFR 106.45 mandates that the district's complaint procedures state whether the district's 

determination of responsibility will be based on a "preponderance of evidence" standard or "clear and 

convincing evidence" standard.  The following paragraph reflects the "preponderance of evidence" standard, 

which is a  less stringent standard to prove misconduct, and should be revised if the district chooses to use a 

"clear and convincing evidence" standard. The standard selected by the district must be applied uniformly 

for all Title IX sexual harassment complaints.  The district should consult with legal counsel in determining 

which standard to use. 

 

In making this determination, the district decision-maker shall use the "preponderance of the 

evidence" standard for all formal complaints of sexual harassment. The same standard of 

evidence shall be used for formal complaints against students as for complaints against 

employees.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

The written decision shall include the following:  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

1. Identification of the allegations potentially constituting sexual harassment as defined 

in 34 CFR 106.30 

 

2. A description of the procedural steps taken from receipt of the formal complaint 

through the written decision, including any notifications to the parties, interviews 

with parties and witnesses, site visits, methods used to gather other evidence, and 

hearings held if the district includes hearings as part of the grievance process 

 

3. Findings of fact supporting the determination 

 

4. Conclusions regarding the application of the district’s code of conduct or policies to 

the facts 

 

5. A statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a decision 

regarding responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions the district imposes on the 

respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the 

district’s educational program or activity will be provided by the district to the 

complainant 

 

6. The district’s procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent to 

appeal 

 

 

Page 286



 AR 5145.71(j) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

Appeals 

 
Note: 34 CFR 106.45 allows either the complainant or respondent to appeal the district's decision.  The 

district may revise the following section to reflect applicable timelines established by the district.  

 

The following section should also be revised to identify the person who has been designated as the decision-

maker(s) for the appeal.  Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.45, the decision-maker for the appeal cannot be the same 

person as the decision maker that reached the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal, the 

investigator(s), or the Title IX Coordinator. 

 

Either party may appeal the district's decision or dismissal of a formal complaint or any 

allegation in the complaint, if the party believes that a procedural irregularity affected the 

outcome, new evidence is available that could affect the outcome, or a conflict of interest or 

bias by the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or decision-maker(s) affected the outcome.  

If an appeal is filed, the district shall:  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

1. Notify the other party in writing when an appeal is filed and implement appeal 

procedures equally for both parties 

 

2. Ensure that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal is trained in accordance with 34 CFR 

106.45 and is not the same decision-maker(s) who reached the determination 

regarding responsibility or dismissal, the investigator(s), or the Title IX Coordinator 

 

3. Give both parties a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome 

 

4. Issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the 

result 

 

5. Provide the written decision simultaneously to both parties 

 

An appeal must be filed in writing within 10 calendar days of receiving the determination 

notice of the decision or dismissal, stating the grounds for the appeal and including any 

relevant documentation in support of the appeal.  Appeals submitted after this deadline are 

not timely and shall not be considered.  Either party has the right to file a complaint with the 

U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights. 

 

A written decision shall be provided to the parties within 20 calendar days from the receipt of 

the appeal. 

 

Note:  5 CCR 4632-4633 provide that complainants may appeal to CDE if they disagree with the 

district's decision on any matter within the scope of the UCP.  As amended by Register 2020, No. 21, 5 

CCR 4632 changes the timeline for filing an appeal with CDE from 15 calendar days to 30 calendar 

days. 

 

Page 287



 AR 5145.71(k) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

The district's decision may be appealed to the California Department of Education 

within 30 days of the written decision in accordance with BP/AR 1312.3. 

 

Either party has the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education's Office 

for Civil Rights within 180 days of the date of the most recently alleged misconduct. 

 
Note:  The following paragraph is consistent with requirements under Education Code 262.3, 5 CCR 

4622, and the California Department of Education's Federal Program Monitoring instrument to 

provide notice regarding civil law remedies in the annual UCP notice and in the final written decision 

in the UCP process.   

 

The complainant shall be advised of any civil law remedies, including, but not limited 

to, injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available 

under state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable.   

 

Remedies 

 
Note: 34 CFR 106.45 mandates that the district's Title IX complaint process list, or describe the range of, 

possible remedies that the district may implement following any determination of responsibility. The 

following section may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 

When a determination of responsibility for sexual harassment has been made against the 

respondent, the district shall provide remedies to the complainant.  Such remedies may 

include the same individualized services described above in the section "Supportive 

Measures," but need not be nondisciplinary or nonpunitive and need not avoid burdening the 

respondent.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

Corrective/Disciplinary Actions 

 

The district shall not impose any disciplinary sanctions or other actions against a respondent, 

other than supportive measures as described above in the section "Supportive Measures," 

until the complaint procedure has been completed and a determination of responsibility has 

been made.  (34 CFR 106.44) 

 

For students in grades 4-12, discipline for sexual harassment may include suspension and/or 

expulsion.  After the completion of the complaint procedure, if it is determined that a student 

at any grade level has committed sexual assault or sexual battery at school or at a school 

activity off school grounds, the principal or Superintendent shall immediately suspend the 

student and shall recommend expulsion. (Education Code 48900.2, 48915) 

 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

 

 

Page 288



 AR 5145.71(l) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

Other actions that may be taken with a student who is determined to be responsible for sexual 

harassment include, but are not limited to: 

 

1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law 

 

2. Parent/guardian conference 

 

3. Education of the student regarding the impact of the conduct on others 

 

4. Positive behavior support 

 

5. Referral of the student to a student success team 

 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 

 

6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or cocurricular activities or other privileges 

as permitted by law 

 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

 

When an employee is found to have committed sexual harassment or retaliation, the district 

shall take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with 

applicable law and collective bargaining agreement. 

 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Report) 

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 

(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 

Record-Keeping 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain, for a period of seven years:  (34 CFR 

106.45) 
 

1. a A record of all reported cases and Title IX investigations of sexual harassment, any 

determinations of responsibility, any audio or audiovisual recording and transcript if 

applicable, any disciplinary sanctions imposed, any remedies provided to the 

complainant, and any appeal or informal resolution and the results therefrom, and 

responses made pursuant to 34 CFR 106.44.  (34 CFR 106.45) 

 

2. A record of any actions, including supportive measures, taken in response to a 

report or formal complaint of sexual harassment, including the district's basis 

for its conclusion that its response was not deliberately indifferent, the measures 

taken that were designed to restore or preserve equal access to the education  

 

Page 289



 AR 5145.71(m) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

 program or activity, and, if no supportive measures were provided to the 

complainant, the reasons that such a response was not unreasonable in light of 

the known circumstances 

  

3. The Superintendent or designee shall also maintain for a period of seven years all All 

materials used to train the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), decision-maker(s), 

and any person who facilitates an informal resolution process. The district shall make 

such training materials publicly available on its web site, or if the district does not 

maintain a web site, available upon request by members of the public.  (34 CFR 

106.45) 

 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 

(cf. 3580 - District Records) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 

48900  Grounds for suspension or expulsion 

48900.2  Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment 

48985  Notices, report, statements and records in primary language 

CIVIL CODE 

51.9  Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional relationships 

1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12950.1  Sexual harassment training 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1092  Definition of sexual assault 

1221 Application of laws 

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 34 

12291  Definition of dating violence, domestic violence, and stalking 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

1983  Civil action for deprivation of rights 

2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 

2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy 

106.1-106.82  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs 

COURT DECISIONS 

Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 

Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003, 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130 

 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 

Page 290



 AR 5145.71(n) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES (continued) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

COURT DECISIONS  (continued) 

Reese v. Jefferson School District, (2000, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736 

Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, (1999) 526 U.S. 629 

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 524 U.S. 274 

Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey, (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473 

Doe v. Petaluma City School District, (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-

Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 

Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

FEDERAL REGISTER 

Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal 

Financial Assistance, May 19, 2020, Vol. 85, No. 97, pages 30026-30579 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Q&A on Campus Sexual Misconduct, September 2017 

Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 

Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 

Sexual Harassment:  It's Not Academic, September 2008 

Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, 

or Third Parties, January 2001 

WEB SITES 

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (7/20)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 291



CSBA Sample 

Exhibit 
 

Students E 5145.71(a) 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

 

  

Note:  34 CFR 106.8 requires the district to provide notice to students and parents/guardians of its 

policy prohibiting sexual harassment and its grievance procedures that provide for the prompt and 

equitable resolution of sexual harassment complaints.  The following exhibit presents a sample 

notification that meets these requirements and may be modified to reflect district practice.  For a 

sample notice for employees, bargaining units, and applicants for employment, see E 

4119.12/4219.12/4319.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures. 

 

Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, the district must provide the Title IX Coordinator's contact information 

on its web site and in any handbook for students or parents/guardians. In addition, state law 

(Education Code 231.5, 231.6, 234.6, and 48980) requires distribution of the district's sexual 

harassment policy through the parental notification at the beginning of the school year, in any 

orientation program for new and continuing students, in any publication of rules of student conduct, 

and by posting the policy on the district's web site, in school offices, and in a poster displayed in 

locker rooms and bathrooms. 

 

NOTICE OF TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

 

The Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, Section 106.8 requires the district to issue 

the following notification to students at all grade levels and their parents/guardians: 

 

The district does not discriminate on the basis of sex in any education program or 

activity that it operates.  The prohibition against discrimination on the basis of sex is 

required by federal law (20 USC 1681-1688; 34 CFR Part 106) and extends to 

employment. The district also prohibits retaliation against any student for filing a 

complaint or exercising any right granted under Title IX. 

 

Title IX requires a school district to take immediate and appropriate action to address 

any potential Title IX violations that are brought to its attention. Any inquiries about 

the application of Title IX, this notice, and who is protected by Title IX may be referred 

to the district’s Title IX Coordinator, to the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights of the 

U.S. Department of Education or both.  

 

Note:  The district should enter the name/title and contact information of the district's Title IX 

Coordinator below.  Such information should be consistent with the person/position identified in AR 

5145.7 - Sexual Harassment. 

 

The district has designated and authorized the following employee as the district's Title 

IX Coordinator to address concerns or inquiries regarding discrimination on the basis 

of sex, including sexual harassment, sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, 

and stalking:  

 

 

Page 292



 E 5145.71(b) 

 

 

TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 

 

 

_______________________________________________________ 

(name and/or title/position) 

_______________________________________________________ 

(address) 

_______________________________________________________ 

(telephone number) 

_______________________________________________________ 

(email address) 

 

Note:  The district may expand the following paragraph to include other means of contact or 

reporting methods available in the district, such as online submission forms or mobile applications. 

 

Pursuant to 34 CFR 106.8, the district must provide notice to employees, bargaining units, and job 

applicants of the district’s grievance procedures and process, including how to report or file a formal 

complaint of sexual discrimination and/or harassment, and how the district will respond.  

 

Any individual may report sex discrimination, including sexual harassment, to the Title 

IX Coordinator or any other school employee at any time, including during non-

business hours, by mail, phone, or email.  During district business hours, reports may 

also be made in person.  Upon receiving an allegation of sexual harassment, the Title IX 

Coordinator will promptly notify the parties, in writing, of the applicable district 

complaint procedure. 

 

To view an electronic copy of the district's policies and administrative regulations on 

sexual harassment, including the grievance process that complies with 34 CFR 106.45, 

please see BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment and AR 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual 

Harassment Complaint Procedures on the district's web site at ____________(insert 

website link)________________. 

 

To inspect or obtain a copy of the district's sexual harassment policies and 

administrative regulations, please contact:_________(insert location/phone/email of 

contact person) ______. 

 

Materials used to train the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), decision-maker(s), and 

any person who facilitates an informal resolution process are also publicly available on 

the district's web site or at the district office upon request. 

 

 

 

 

 10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 
Page 293



CSBA Sample 

Board Policy 
 

Instruction BP 6161.1(a) 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 60200 and 60400, the Governing Board is responsible for the adoption of 

textbooks and other instructional materials, as defined in Education Code 60010, for use in district schools. 

See the accompanying administrative regulation for required and optional criteria for the selection of 

instructional materials. See BP 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials and BP 6163.1 - Library 

Media Centers for selection processes regarding supplementary materials. 

 

The Governing Board desires that district instructional materials, as a whole, present a broad 

spectrum of knowledge and viewpoints, reflect and value society's diversity, and enhance 

instructors' ability to educate all students through the use of multiple teaching strategies 

and technologies. The Board shall adopt instructional materials based on a determination that 

such materials are an effective learning resource to help students achieve grade-level 

competency and that the materials meet criteria specified in law. Textbooks, technology-

based materials, and other educational materials shall be aligned with academic content 

standards and the district's curriculum to ensure that they effectively support the district's 

adopted courses of study. 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

(cf. 0415 - Equity) 

(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 

(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process by which instructional materials 

shall will be reviewed for recommendation to the Board. 

 
Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain any of grades K-8 and may be revised to 

reflect the grade levels offered by the district. Pursuant to Education Code 60200, the State Board of 

Education (SBE) is required to adopt basic instructional materials in specified subjects that districts may 

select for use in grades K-8.  As amended by AB 575 (Ch. 550, Statutes of 2016), Education Code 60200 

provides that the SBE may adopt materials in any of the specified subject areas at least once, but not more 

than twice, every eight years. Education Code 60210 authorizes the Board to select materials that have not 

been approved by the SBE, provided they are aligned with state academic content standards or Common Core 

State Standards. In addition, if the district uses materials not adopted by the SBE, the majority of participants 

in the review process must be teachers assigned to the subject area or grade level for which the materials will 

be used; see section below entitled "Review Process." 

 

 

Page 294



 BP 6161.1(b) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

The Board shall select instructional materials for use in grades K-8 that have been approved 

by the State Board of Education (SBE) or that have, during the district's review process, 

otherwise been determined to be aligned with the state academic content standards adopted 

pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to 

Education Code 60605.8 by SBE.  (Education Code 60200, 60210)  

 
Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools. 

 

The Board shall adopt instructional materials for grades 9-12 upon determining that the 

materials meet the criteria specified in law and the accompanying administrative regulation.  

(Education Code 60400) 

 

In selecting or adopting instructional materials, the Board shall consider the 

recommendation of the Superintendent or designee and/or an advisory committee 

established to review the materials. 

 

Review Process 

 
Note: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice.  

 

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process by which instructional materials 

shall be reviewed for recommendation to the Board. Toward that end, he/she may establish 

an instructional materials review committee to evaluate and recommend instructional 

materials. 

 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 60002, the Board must provide for "substantial" teacher involvement in the 

selection of instructional materials and must promote the involvement of parents/guardians and other 

members of the community in the selection of instructional materials. The Education Code does not define 

"substantial." 

 

The review process shall involve teachers in a substantial manner and shall encourage the 

participation of parents/guardians and community members.  (Education Code 60002) 

 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

In addition, the instructional materials committee may include administrators, other staff who 

have subject-matter expertise, and students as appropriate. 

 
Note: The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain any of grades K-8.  

 

 

 

Page 295



 BP 6161.1(c) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

If the district chooses to use instructional materials for grades K-8 that have not been adopted 

by the SBE, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a majority of the participants in 

the district's review process are classroom teachers who are assigned to the subject area or 

grade level of the materials.  (Education Code 60210) 

 

Individuals who participate in the selection or review of instructional materials shall not have 

a conflict of interest, as defined in administrative regulation, in the materials being reviewed. 

 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 

 

The committee shall review instructional materials using criteria provided in law and 

administrative regulation, and shall provide the Board with documentation supporting its 

recommendations. 

 

All recommended instructional materials shall be available for public inspection at the 

district office. 

 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 

 

Note:  SBE Policy on Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials provides a sample 

process for piloting instructional materials that addresses the selection of materials to pilot, a chronology of 

the process, and additional considerations, such as conflict of interest, contacts with publishers, and 

consideration of standards maps. 

 

The district may pilot instructional materials, using a representative sample of classrooms for 

a specified period of time during a school year, in order to determine how well the materials 

support the district's curricular goals and academic standards. Feedback from teachers 

piloting the materials shall be made available to the Board before the materials are adopted. 

 

Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 

 
Note:  As a condition of receiving funds for instructional materials from any state source, Education Code 

60119 requires the Board to annually hold a public hearing to determine whether each student in the district 

has sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials in English/language arts (including 

English language development), mathematics, science, and history-social science that are consistent with the 

content and cycles of the curriculum framework adopted by the SBE. As clarified in the California 

Department of Education's (CDE) Instructional Materials FAQ, state funding sources for instructional 

materials include local control funding formula funds and Proposition 20 (2000) lottery funds. The Board 

must also make a written determination during the hearing as to the sufficiency of textbooks or instructional 

materials in foreign world language and health courses, as well as the availability of science laboratory 

equipment in science laboratory courses although the provision of the materials or the equipment in these 

courses is not a condition for receipt of state funding. 

 

Pursuant to Education Code 60010, as amended by SB 820 (Ch. 110, Statutes of 2020), "technology-

based materials" include the electronic equipment required to make use of those materials, including,  

 

 

Page 296



 BP 6161.1(d) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 
but not limited to, laptop computers and devices that provide Internet access.  Thus, when districts 

provide technology-based materials to students, such equipment is subject to the determination of 

sufficiency pursuant to Education Code 60119. 

 

Education Code 1240 requires the County Superintendent of Schools to review the textbooks and 

instructional materials of underperforming schools and, if he/she the County Superintendent determines 

that a school does not have sufficient materials, to prepare a report outlining the noncompliance and give the 

district a chance to remedy the deficiency. If the deficiency is not remedied by the second month of the 

school year, the County Superintendent may request that the CDE purchase textbooks or materials for the 

district, and the cost must be repaid by the district. The CDE will issue a public statement at an SBE meeting 

indicating the district's failure to provide instructional materials. 

 

The Board shall annually conduct one or more public hearings on the sufficiency of the 

district's textbooks and other instructional materials, including textbooks, technology-based 

materials, other educational materials, and tests.  Technology-based materials include, 

but are not limited to, software programs, video disks, compact disks, optical disks, 

video and audio tapes, lesson plans, databases, and the electronic equipment required to 

make use of those materials by students and teachers as a learning resource.  (Education 

Code 60010, 60119) 

 
Note:  Education Code 60119 specifies that the hearing must be held within eight weeks of the beginning of 

the school year. Option 1 is for use by districts without any schools on a multitrack year-round calendar.  

Option 2 is for use by districts with schools on a multitrack year-round calendar. Pursuant to Education 

Code 60119, for a district that operates schools on a multitrack, year-round calendar, the timeline 

begins with the first day students attend school in any track that begins in August or September.  

 

OPTION 1:  The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first 

day students attend school for that year.  (Education Code 60119) 

 

OPTION 2:  The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first 

day of the school year of any district school that operates on a multitrack year-round calendar 

that begins its school year in August or September.  (Education Code 60119) 

 
Note:  The remainder of this policy applies to all districts. 

 

The Board encourages participation by parents/guardians, teachers, interested community 

members, and bargaining unit leaders at the hearing. Ten days prior to the hearing, the 

Superintendent or designee shall post a notice in three public places within the district 

containing the time, place, and purpose of the hearing. The hearing shall not take place 

during or immediately following school hours.  (Education Code 60119) 

 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 

 
Note:  Education Code 60119 requires the Board to adopt a resolution indicating whether or not each student 

in each school has sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials for the subjects specified 

in items #1-6 below.  See the accompanying Exhibit for a sample resolution. 

Page 297



 BP 6161.1(e) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

At the hearing(s), the Board shall determine, through a resolution, whether each student in 

each school, including each English learner, has sufficient textbooks or other instructional 

materials that are aligned to the content standards adopted by SBEand consistent with 

the content and cycles of the curriculum framework adopted by SBE which are aligned 

to the state content standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the Common 

Core State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8 and which are consistent 

with the content and cycles of the state's curriculum frameworks. Sufficiency of instructional 

materials shall be determined in each of the following subjects:  (Education Code 60119) 

 

1. Mathematics 

 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 

 

2. Science 

 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 

 

3. History-social science 

 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

 

4. English language arts, including the English language development component of an 

adopted program 

 
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading- English/Language Arts Instruction) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 

 

5. World/foreign language 

 
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 

 

6. Health 

 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 

 
Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain any of grades 9-12. 

 

The Board shall also determine the availability of science laboratory equipment, as 

applicable to science laboratory courses offered in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 60119) 

 

In making these determinations, the Board shall consider whether each student has sufficient 

textbooks and/or other instructional materials to use in class and to take home. However, 

tThis does not require that each student have two sets of materials. The materials may be in a  

 

Page 298



 BP 6161.1(f) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

digital format as long as each student, at a minimum, has and can access the same materials 

in the class and to take home as all other students in the same class or course in the district 

and has the ability to use and access them at home. However, the materials shall not be 

considered sufficient if they are photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or 

instructional materials copied to address a shortage.  (Education Code 60119) 

 

If materials are in a digital format, they shall be considered sufficient as long as each student, 

at a minimum, has and can access the same materials in the class and to take home as all 

other students in the same class or course in the district, and has the ability to use and access 

them at home.  (Education Code 60119) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 60119, if the Board makes a determination that there are insufficient 

textbooks or other instructional materials, the Board must take action to ensure that the materials are 

provided within two months of the beginning of the school year. The CDE's Instructional Materials FAQ 

states that, if a district has submitted purchase orders to the publisher to purchase materials to remedy the 

insufficiency, these materials should be received and made available to students by the end of the second 

month of the school year.  Thus, districts are strongly encouraged to hold the public hearing as early in the 

school year as possible in order to provide sufficient time to correct any deficiencies. 

 

If the Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks or other instructional materials, 

it the district shall provide information to classroom teachers and to the public setting forth, 

for each school in which an insufficiency exists, the percentage of students who lack 

sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area and the 

reasons that each student does not have sufficient textbooks or instructional materials. The 

Board shall take any action, except an action that would require reimbursement by the 

Commission of State Mandates, to ensure that each student has sufficient materials within 

two months of the beginning of the school year in which the determination is made.  

(Education Code 60119) 

 

The degree to which every student has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional 

materials shall be included in the district's local control and accountability plan.  (Education 

Code 52060) 

 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

 

Complaints 

 
Note:  Complaints regarding the contents of instructional materials are addressed in BP/AR 1312.2 - 

Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials.  See AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures 

for language regarding complaints about deficiencies in instructional materials. 

 

Complaints concerning instructional materials shall be handled in accordance with law 

BP/AR 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials or AR 1312.4 - 

Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, as applicable.   

Page 299



 BP 6161.1(g) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 

 

 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

220  Prohibition against discrimination 

1240  County superintendent, general duties 

33050-33053  General waiver authority 

33126  School accountability report card 

35272  Education and athletic materials 

44805  Enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and regulations 

49415  Maximum textbook weight 

51501  Nondiscriminatory subject matter 

52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 

60000-60005  Instructional materials, legislative intent 

60010  Definitions 

60040-60052  Instructional requirements and materials 

60060-60063.5  Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 

60070-60076  Prohibited acts (re instructional materials) 

60110-60115  Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education 

60119  Public hearing on sufficiency of materials 

60200-60210  Elementary school materials 

60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 

60350-60352  Core reading program instructional materials 

60400-60411  High school textbooks 

60510-60511  Donation for sale of obsolete instructional materials 

60605  State content standards 

60605.8  Common Core State Standards 

60605.86-60605.88  Supplemental instructional materials aligned with Common Core State Standards 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

9505-9530  Instructional materials 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 

Instructional Materials FAQ 

01-05  Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials, rev. January 2015 

Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2013 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

Association of American Publishers:  http://www.publishers.org 

California Academic Content Standards Commission, Common Core State Standards: 

http://www.scoe.net/castandards 

California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 

 (11/12  7/17)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service  

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 300



CSBA Sample 
Administrative Regulation 
 

Instruction AR 6161.1(a) 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

 

 

Review Process 

 

Note: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.  Pursuant to Education Code 60002, 

the district must provide for "substantial" teacher involvement in the selection of instructional materials and 

must promote the involvement of parents/guardians and other members of the community in the selection of 

instructional materials. The Education Code does not define "substantial." 

 

The district's review process for evaluating instructional materials shall involve teachers 

in a substantial manner and shall encourage the participation of parents/guardians and 

community members.  ( in accordance with Education Code 60002).  In addition, the 

instructional materials The review committee process may also include involve 

administrators, other staff who have subject-matter expertise, and students as appropriate. 

The Superintendent or designee shall seek input from stakeholders with diverse 

backgrounds and perspectives. 

 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain any of grades K-8.  

 

If the district chooses to is considering the use of instructional materials for grades K-8 that 

have not been adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE), the Superintendent or 

designee shall ensure that a majority of the participants in the district's review process are 

classroom teachers who are assigned to the subject area or grade level of the materials.  

(Education Code 60210) 

 

Note:  The following paragraph is optional. The use of review committees is recommended as a best 

practice, but is not required by law. 

 

Toward that end, he/she The Superintendent or designee may establish an advisory an 

instructional materials review committee to evaluate and recommend instructional materials  

conduct the review of instructional materials. 

 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Governing Board recommendations 

for instructional materials and documentation that supports the recommendations. 

 

All recommended instructional materials shall be available for public inspection at the 

district office. 

 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 

Page 301



 AR 6161.1(b) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 
 

Note:  State Board of Education (SBE) policy on Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional 

Materials provides a sample process for piloting instructional materials that addresses the selection of 

materials to pilot, a chronology of the process, and additional considerations, such as conflict of interest, 

contacts with publishers, and consideration of standards maps. 

 

When possible, tThe district may pilot instructional materials, using in a representative 

sample of classrooms for a specified period of time during a school year, in order to 

determine how well the extent to which the materials support the district's curricular goals 

and academic standards. Feedback from teachers piloting the materials shall be made 

available to the Board before the materials are adopted. 

 

Criteria for Selection and Adoption of Instructional Materials 

 

In recommending textbooks or other instructional materials for adoption by the Governing 

Board, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that such the materials: 

 

1. Are aligned to the content standards adopted by SBE and consistent with the 

content and cycles of the curriculum framework adopted by SBE pursuant to 

Education Code 60605 and/or Common Core Standards adopted pursuant to 

Education Code 60605.8  

 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

 
Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that offer any of grades K-8.  Pursuant to Education 

Code 60200, the State Board of Education (SBE) is responsible for adopting at least five basic instructional 

materials for grades K-8 in specified core subjects and any other subject for which SBE determines that the 

adoption of instructional materials is necessary or desirable.   

 

Education Code 60210 authorizes the Governing Board to select instructional materials for grades K-8 that 

have not been approved by SBE, provided they are aligned with state academic content standards adopted 

by SBE pursuant to Education Code 60605 or Common Core Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 

60605.8 and have been reviewed through a process that requires a majority of  the participants in the process 

to be classroom teachers who are assigned to the subject area or grade level for which the materials will be 

used; also see the accompanying Board policy.  

 

For grades K-8, the Superintendent or designee shall select only instructional 

materials from among on the list of materials adopted by the SBE and/or other 

instructional materials that have not been adopted by the SBE but are aligned with 

the state academic content standards and/or the Common Core State Standards may 

be recommended for selection.  (Education Code 60200, 60210) 
 

(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 
 

Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts offering any of grades 9-12 and may be 

revised to reflect district practice.  One way to ensure that instructional materials in core courses for grades 

9-12 are aligned to state standards is through a review of standards maps created by the CDE.  A template of  

 

Page 302



 AR 6161.1(c) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 
the standards map is available on the CDE's web site.  The California Department of Education provides 

standards map templates on its web site for reference in determining alignment of instructional 

materials for grade 9-12 core courses. 

 

For grades 9-12, the Superintendent or designee shall review instructional materials in 

history-social science, mathematics, English/language arts, and science shall be 

reviewed using a standards map in order to determine the extent to which the 

materials are aligned to state academic content standards. 

 

Note:  Item #2 below is for use by districts that offer any of grades 9-12. 

 

2. For grades 9-12, are provided by publishers that comply with the requirements of 

Education Code 60040-60052, 60060-60062, and 60226  (Education Code 60400) 

 

3.2. Do not reflect adversely upon persons because of any characteristic specified in law 

and BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities  their race 

or ethnicity, gender, religion, disability, nationality, sexual orientation, occupation, or 

other characteristic listed in Education Code 220, nor contain any sectarian or 

denominational doctrine or propaganda contrary to law  (Education Code 51501, 

60044) 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 

 

4.3. To the satisfaction of the Board, are accurate, objective, current, and suited to the 

needs and comprehension of district students at their respective grade levels  

(Education Code 60045) 

 

5.4. With the exception of literature and tradebooks, use proper grammar and spelling 

(Education Code 60045) 

 

Note:  Education Code 60048 and 60200 require that the Board not adopt basic instructional materials that 

provide unnecessary exposure to a commercial brand name, product, or corporate or company logo, unless  

it makes specific findings that the use has an educational purpose or is incidental to the general nature of an 

illustration, as provided in item #6 below. SBE's publication Standards for Evaluating Instructional 

Materials for Social Content details standards for the use of brand names and corporate logos in instructional 

materials. 

 

6.5. Do not expose students to a commercial brand name, product, or corporate or 

company logo unless the Board makes a specific finding that the use is appropriate 

based on one of the following:  (Education Code 60048, 60200) 

 

a. The commercial brand name, product, or corporate or company logo is used in 

text for an educational purpose as defined in guidelines or frameworks 

adopted by the SBE. 

Page 303



 AR 6161.1(d) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

b. The appearance of a commercial brand name, product, or corporate or 

company logo in an illustration is incidental to the general nature of the 

illustration. 

 
(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 

 

7. If the materials are technology-based materials, are both available and comparable to 

other, equivalent instructional materials  (Education Code 60052) 

 
Note:  Education Code 60040-60043 require that specific subject matter be included in the district's 

instructional materials.  Education Code 60040 requires that instructional materials include accurate 

portrayals of the cultural and racial diversity of society as specified.  Education Code 60041 requires (1) 

accurate portrayal of humanity's place in ecological systems and the need to protect the environment and (2) 

the effects of tobacco, alcohol, and other drug use on the human system.  Education Code 60042 requires the 

Board to adopt materials as it deems necessary to encourage thrift, fire prevention, and the humane 

treatment of animals and people.  Education Code 60043 requires that the Board, when appropriate to the 

comprehension of students, adopt textbooks for social science, history, or civics classes that contain the 

Declaration of Independence and the Constitution of the United States.  If desired, the district may expand 

item #8 6 below to list these specific requirements. 

 

8.6. Meet the requirements of Education Code 60040-60043 for specific subject content, 

including, but not limited, accurately portraying society's cultural and racial 

diversity 

 

Note:  Items #9-18 7-14 below are optional and may be revised to reflect district practice.  The district may 

choose to develop subject-specific criteria as well as general criteria. 

 

9.7. Support the district's adopted courses of study and curricular goals 

 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 

(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 

(cf. 6142.91 - English Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 

(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 

(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 

(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

 

10.8. Contribute to a comprehensive, balanced curriculum 

 

11.9. Demonstrate reliable quality of scholarship as evidenced by: 

 

a. Accurate, up-to-date, and well-documented information 

 

b. Objective presentation of diverse viewpoints  
 

Page 304



 AR 6161.1(e) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 
 

c. Clear, concise writing and appropriate vocabulary 

 

d. Thorough treatment of subject matter 

 

12.10. Provide for a wide range of materials at all levels of difficulty, with appeal to students 

of varied interests, abilities, and developmental levels 

 

13.11. Include materials that Stimulate discussion of contemporary issues and improve 

students' thinking and decision-making skills 

 

14. Contribute to the proper articulation of instruction through grade levels 

 

15.12. As appropriate, have corresponding versions available in languages other than 

English 

 

16.13. Include high-quality teacher's guides 

 

17. Meet high standards in terms of the quality, durability, and appearance of paper, 

binding, text, and graphics 

 

Note:  5 CCR 9517.2 sets the following maximum weight standards for each student textbook:  three pounds 

for grades K-4, four pounds for grades 5-8, and five pounds for grades 9-12.  5 CCR 9517.2 requires 

publishers submitting textbooks to SBE that exceed those weight standards to provide lighter weight 

alternatives, such as split volumes or electronic editions, soft cover editions, or other alternate physical 

formats.  For materials for grades 9-12, publishers must disclose the availability of lighter weight 

alternatives.  Item #18  14 below includes textbook weight as one of the criteria for Board consideration. 

 

18.14. When available, include options for lighter weight materials in order to help minimize 

any injury to students by the combined weight of instructional materials 

 

In addition to meeting the above criteria as applicable, technology-based materials 

shall: 

 

1. If the materials are technology-based materials, are Be both available and comparable to other, equivalent instructional materials  (Education Code 60052) 

 

2. Be accessible to all students, including economically disadvantaged students, 

students with disabilities, and English learners 

 

3. Protect the privacy of student data  

 
(cf. 6157 - Distance Learning) 

 

 

 

Page 305



 AR 6161.1(e) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

Conflict of Interest 

 

Note:  The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to require individuals who will 

participate in the review process to first complete a disclosure statement which provides an opportunity to 

disclose any conflict of interest or appearance of conflict of interest. 

 

The following conflict of interest rules are not applicable to "public officials" (including Board members 

and designated staff) who are subject to the district's conflict of interest code pursuant to the Political 

Reform Act.  Such persons who are making decisions concerning instructional materials must comply with 

the more stringent conflict of interest requirements described in BB 9270 - Conflict of Interest. 

 

To ensure integrity and impartiality in the evaluation and selection of instructional materials, 

any district employee individuals who is are participating in the evaluation of instructional 

materials and are not otherwise designated in the district's conflict of interest code shall sign 

a disclosure statement indicating that he/she they: 

 

Note:  Education Code 60061 requires publishers to provide instructional materials free of charge within 

California to the same extent that they provide free materials to other states or school districts; see Price List 

of Adopted Instructional Materials on CDE's web site.  However, Education Code 60071 forbids publishers 

from offering "valuable thing(s)" to school officials for the purpose of influencing the purchase of 

instructional materials.  CDE's Instructional Materials FAQ clarifies that, in accordance with the definition 

of "technology-based materials" in Education Code 60010, districts may accept electronic equipment 

necessary to make use of technology-based materials provided that such equipment is used by students and 

teachers as a learning resource, not to replace computers or related equipment in an existing computer lab or 

to establish a new computer lab. 

 

1. Shall Will not accept any emolument, money, or other valuable thing or inducement 

to directly or indirectly introduce, recommend, vote for, or otherwise influence the 

adoption or purchase of any instructional material  (Education Code 60072) 

 

 Sample copies of instructional materials are excepted from this prohibition.  

(Education Code 60075) 

 

Note:  Items # 2-4 below are optional and should be modified to reflect district practice. 

 

2. Is Are not employed by nor receive compensation from the publisher or supplier of 

the instructional materials or any person, firm, organization, subsidiary, or controlling 

entity representing it 

 

3. Does not have and will not negotiate a contractual relationship with the publisher or 

supplier of the instructional materials or any person, firm, organization, subsidiary, or 

controlling entity representing it 

 

 

 

Page 306



 AR 6161.1(f) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

4.3. Does not have an interest as a contributor, author, editor, or consultant in any 

textbook or other instructional material submitted to the district 

 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (11/11  11/12)  10/20 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service  

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 307



CSBA Sample 
Exhibit 
 

Instruction E 6161.1(a) 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

 

 

RESOLUTION ON SUFFICIENCY OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

 

Note:  Education Code 60119 requires that the Governing Board hold an annual public hearing regarding the 

sufficiency of textbooks or other instructional materials and determine through a resolution whether each 

student has sufficient materials; see the accompanying Board policy. "Sufficient textbooks or instructional 

materials," as defined in Education Code 60119, means that each student in the district, including each 

English learner, has a standards-aligned textbook or instructional materials, which may include technology-

based materials in a digital format under specified conditions, to use in class and to take home. 

 

The following sample resolution is based on the 2008 sample resolution developed by the California 

Department of Education (CDE) but has been updated to reflect new current law.  This resolution may be 

used to certify compliance with Education Code 60119. 

 

Whereas, the Governing Board of the (name of school district), in order to comply with the 

requirements of Education Code 60119, held a public hearing on (date), at (time) o'clock, 

which is on or before the eighth week of school (between the first day that students attend 

school and the end of the eighth week from that day) and which did not take place during or 

immediately following school hours, and; 

 

Whereas, the Board provided at least 10 days' notice of the public hearing by posting it in at 

least three public places within the district stating the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, 

and; 

 

Whereas, the Board encouraged participation by parents/guardians, teachers, members of the 

community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 

 

Whereas, information provided at the public hearing detailed the extent to which sufficient 

textbooks or other instructional materials were provided to all students, including English 

learners, in the (name of school district), and; 

 

Whereas, the definition of "sufficient textbooks or instructional materials" means that each 

student, including each English learner, has a standards-aligned textbook or instructional 

materials to use in class and to take home, which may include materials in a digital format 

but shall not include photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional 

materials copied to address a shortage, and; 

 

Whereas, textbooks or instructional materials in core curriculum subjects should be aligned 

with state academic content standards and/or the Common Core State Standards adopted by 

the State Board of Education pursuant to Education Code 60605 and/or the Common Core 

State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8; 

 

Page 308



 E 6161.1(b) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

Finding of Sufficient Textbooks or Instructional Materials 

 
Note:  The following section is for use when the Board is making a finding that the district has "sufficient" 

materials. According to CDE, Education Code 60119 requires documentation of sufficiency of textbooks or 

instructional materials to be presented at the public hearing.  Survey forms are available on CDE's web site 

which may be used as a self-study and county office validation tool for grades K-12. 

 

Whereas, sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or other instructional materials that are 

consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks were provided to each 

student, including each English learner, in the following subjects: 

 

Note:  To provide complete information about the basis for the Board's determination of sufficiency, the 

district may wish to include the names of the textbooks or instructional materials provided to students, as 

well as the applicable state adoption cycle. 

 

 Mathematics:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for 

each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Science:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each 

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 History-social science:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this 

subject for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 English language arts, including the English language development component of an 

adopted program:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject 

for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 World/foreign language:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this 

subject for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

Page 309



 E 6161.1(c) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

 Health:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each 

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that maintain grades 9-12.  The Board may provide a 

list of the science laboratory classes offered in grades 9-12 and details on the science laboratory equipment 

available for these classes. 

 

Whereas, laboratory science equipment was available for science laboratory classes offered 

in grades 9-12, inclusive; 

 

Therefore, it is resolved that for the (year) school year, the (name of school district) has 

provided each student with sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or other instructional 

materials that are consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks. 

 

Finding of Insufficient Textbooks or Instructional Materials 

 

Note:  The following section is for use when the Board is making a finding of "insufficient" materials. 

Education Code 60119 requires that the Board's resolution list, for each school for which an insufficiency 

exists, the percentage of students at each grade level who lack sufficient materials in each of the subject 

areas listed below. 

 

Whereas, information provided at the public hearing and to the Board at the public meeting 

detailed that insufficient standards-aligned textbooks or other instructional materials were 

provided to students in the following subjects and grade levels at district schools:  (For each 

school, list the percentage of students who lack sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or 

instructional materials in mathematics, science, history-social science, English language 

arts, world/foreign language, and health.) 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Whereas, sufficient textbooks or other instructional materials were not provided at each 

school listed above due to the following reasons:  (For each school at which there is an 

insufficiency, list the reasons that each student does not have sufficient instructional 

materials in each subject and grade level listed above.) 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Therefore, it is resolved, that for the (year) school year, the (name of school district) has not 

provided each student with sufficient textbooks or other instructional materials that are 

consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum framework, and; 

 

Page 310



 E 6161.1(d) 

 

 

SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 

 

 

Be it further resolved, that the following actions will be taken to ensure that all students have 

sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or other instructional materials in all subjects that are 

consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks within two months of 

the beginning of the school year in which this determination is made.  (List actions to be 

taken to resolve insufficiency.) 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS day of at a meeting, by the following vote: 

 

 AYES:______ NOES:______ ABSENT:______ 

 

Attest: 

 

    

Secretary President 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (11/12  7/17)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service  

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 311



CSBA Sample 
Exhibit 

 

Board Bylaws E(1) 9323.2(a) 

 

ACTIONS BY THE BOARD 

 

 

ACTIONS REQUIRING A SUPER MAJORITY VOTE 

 

Note:  The following exhibit lists some of the Governing Board actions that require more than a simple 

majority vote.  Other such actions may exist and may be identified in the future. 

 

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board: 

 

Note:  For an action requiring a two-thirds vote to pass, a three-member board will need two board members 

to vote in favor of the item, a five-member board will need four board members to vote in favor of the item, 

and a seven-member board will need five board members to vote in favor of the item. 

 

1. Resolution declaring the Governing Board's intention to sell or lease real property  

(Education Code 17466) 

 
(cf. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property) 

 

2. Resolution declaring the Board's intent to convey or dedicate property to the state or 

any political subdivision for the purposes specified in Education Code 17556 

(Education Code 17557) 

 

3. Resolution authorizing and directing the Board president, or any other presiding 

officer, secretary, or member, to execute a deed of dedication or conveyance of 

property to the state or a political subdivision  (Education Code 17559) 

 

4. Lease, for up to three months, of school property which has a residence on it and 

which cannot be developed for district purposes because funds are unavailable  

(Education Code 17481) 

 

Note:  Item #5 below is different from temporary borrowing pursuant to Government Code 53850-53858 

which requires only a majority vote of the Board. 

 

5. Request for temporary borrowing of funds needed for immediate requirements of the 

district to pay district obligations incurred before the receipt of district income for the 

fiscal year sufficient to meet the payment(s)  (Government Code 53821) 

 

6. Upon complying with Government Code 65352.2 and Public Resources Code 

21151.2, action to render city or county zoning ordinances inapplicable to a proposed 

use of the property by the district  (Government Code 53094) 

 
(cf. 7131 - Relations with Local Agencies) 

Page 312



 E(1) 9323.2(b) 

 

 

ACTIONS BY THE BOARD  (continued) 

 

 
(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 

(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 

 

7. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8, action to establish a 

community day school for any of grades K-8  (Education Code 48660) 

 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 

 

8. When the district is organized to serve only grades K-8, has an average daily 

attendance (ADA) of 2,500 or less, or desires to operate a community day school to 

serve any of grades K-6 (and no higher grades) and seeks to situate a community day 

school on an existing school site, certification that satisfactory alternative facilities 

are not available for a community day school  (Education Code 48661) 

 

9. Resolution of intent to issue general obligation bonds with the approval of 55 percent 

of the voters of the district  (Education Code 15266) 

 
(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds) 

 

10. Resolution of intent to issue bonds within a school facilities improvement district 

with the approval of 55 percent of the voters of the school facilities improvement 

district (Education Code 15266) 

 
(cf. 7213 - School Facilities Improvement Districts) 

 

11. Resolution to place a parcel tax on the ballot  (Government Code 53724) 

 
(cf. 3471 - Parcel Taxes) 

 

Note:  Code of Civil Procedure 1245.240 requires that, prior to commencing an eminent domain action, the 

Board adopt a resolution of necessity approved by a two-thirds vote of the Board unless a greater vote is 

required by statute, charter, or ordinance. In addition, if the Board desires to use the property for a different 

purpose than stated in the resolution of necessity, then pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 1245.245, the 

Board must adopt, by two-thirds vote, another resolution authorizing the different use unless a greater vote 

is required by statute, charter, or ordinance. 

 

12. Resolution of necessity to proceed with an eminent domain action and, if the Board 

subsequently desires to use the property for a different use than stated in the 

resolution of necessity, a subsequent resolution so authorizing the different use  

(Code of Civil Procedure 1245.240, 1245.245) 

 

Note:  Item #13 is for use by three-member boards. districts governed by a three-member board that 

have elected to use an alternative procedure for awarding contracts for public works projects 

pursuant to 

 

Page 313



 E(1) 9323.2(c) 

 

 

ACTIONS BY THE BOARD  (continued) 

 

 
the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA) (Public Contract Code 22000-

22045), which establishes a higher bid limit and a more informal bidding process for certain projects. 

For further information, see BP 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures. 

 

13. When the district has a three-member Board and has adopted the procedures set 

forth in the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA), 

action to respond to an emergency facilities condition without giving notice for bids 

to let contracts, including the repair or replacement of district facilities, the taking of 

any other action that is directly related to and immediately required by that 

emergency, the procurement of the necessary equipment, services, and supplies for 

those purposes, the delegation of authority to the Superintendent or designee to take 

such action, and the determination during a regular Board meeting of the need to 

continue the action  (Public Contract Code 22035, 22050) 

 
(cf. 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures) 

 

Actions Requiring a Two-Thirds Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting: 

 

1. Determination that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for 

action came to the district's attention after the posting of the agenda. If less than two-

thirds of the Board members are present at the meeting, a unanimous vote of all 

members present is required.  (Government Code 54954.2) 

 

2. Determination that a closed session is necessary during an emergency meeting.  If 

less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of all 

members present is required.  (Government Code 54956.5) 

 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 

 

Actions Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board: 

 

Note:  For an action requiring a four-fifths vote to pass, a three-member board will need a unanimous vote in 

favor of the item, a five-member board will need four board members to vote in favor of the item, and a 

seven-member board will need six board members to vote in favor of the item. 

 

1. Expenditure and transfer of necessary funds and use of district property or personnel 

to meet a national or local emergency created by war, military, naval, or air attack, or 

sabotage, or to provide for adequate national or local defense (Government Code 

53790-53792) 

 
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds) 

 

 

Page 314



 E(1) 9323.2(d) 

 

 

ACTIONS BY THE BOARD  (continued) 

 

 

2.1. Resolution for district borrowing based on issuance of notes, tax anticipation 

warrants, or other evidences of indebtedness, in an amount up to 50 percent of the 

district's estimated income and revenue for the fiscal year or the portion not yet 

collected at the time of the borrowing  (Government Code 53822, 53824) 

 

3.2. Resolution for district borrowing, between July 15 and August 30 of any fiscal year, 

of up to 25 percent of the estimated income and revenue to be received by the district 

during that fiscal year from apportionments based on ADA for the preceding school 

year  (Government Code 53823-53824) 

 

4.3. Declaration of an emergency in order to authorize the district to include a particular 

brand name or product in a bid specification  (Public Contract Code 3400) 

 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 

 
Note:  Item #5 #4 is for use by districts governed by a five-member or seven-member board.   

 

Items #4-5 are for use by districts that have elected to use an alternative procedure for awarding 

contracts for public works projects pursuant to the UPCCAA. For further information, see BP 3311.1 

- Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures. 

 

5.4. When the district has a five-member or seven-member Board and has adopted the 

procedures set forth in UPCCAA, action to respond to an emergency facilities 

condition without giving notice for bids to let contracts, including the repair or 

replacement of district facilities, the taking of any other action that is directly related 

to and immediately required by that emergency, the procurement of the necessary 

equipment, services, and supplies for those purposes, the delegation of authority to 

the Superintendent or designee to take such action, and the determination during a 

regular Board meeting of the need to continue the action  (Public Contract Code 

22035, 22050) 

 

Note: AB 2249 (Ch. 169, Statutes of 2018) amended Public Contract Code 22034 to change the thresholds 

for public works projects bid pursuant to the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act, thereby 

increasing the amount requiring board resolution, as provided in item #6. 

 

6.5. Resolution to award a contract for a public works project at $212,500 or less to the 

lowest responsible bidder, when the district is using the informal process authorized 

under the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act UPCCAA for projects 

of $200,000 or less, all bids received are in excess of $200,000, and the Board 

determines that the district's cost estimate was reasonable  (Public Contract Code 

22034) 

 
(cf. 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures) 

 

Page 315



 E(1) 9323.2(e) 

 

 

ACTIONS BY THE BOARD  (continued) 

 

 

Action Requiring a Four-Fifths Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting 

 

A four-fifths vote of the Board members present at the meeting shall be required to 

approve the expenditure and transfer of necessary funds and use of district property or 

personnel to meet a national or local emergency created by war, military, naval, or air attack, 

or sabotage, or to provide for adequate national or local defense.  (Government Code 53790-

53792) 

 
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds) 

 

Actions Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board: 

 

1. Resolution authorizing and prescribing the terms of a lease of district property for 

extraction and taking of gas not associated with oil  (Education Code 17510-17511) 

 

2. Authorization of the use of day labor or force account, or waiver of the competitive 

bid process pursuant to Public Contract Code 20111, when the Board determines that 

an emergency exists requiring the repair, alteration, work, or improvement to any 

facility to permit the continuance of existing classes or to avoid danger to life or 

property, and upon approval of the County Superintendent of Schools  (Public 

Contract Code 20113) 

 

Action Requiring a Unanimous Vote of the Board Members Present at the Meeting: 

 

1. Private sale of surplus property without advertisement in order to establish that such 

property is not worth more than $2,500.  Disposal of surplus property or donation to a 

charitable organization requires the unanimous vote of the Board members present to 

establish that the value of such property would not defray the cost of arranging its 

sale.  (Education Code 17546) 

 
(cf. 3270 - Sale and Disposal of Books, Equipment and Supplies) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 (10/16  3/19)  10/20 

 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 

Copyright 2020 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691 

All rights reserved. 

Page 316



HAMILTON UNIFIED 
S C H O O L  D I S T R I C T  
 

    
  620 Canal Street  
 P.O. Box 488, Hamilton City, CA 95951 
 TEL 530-826-3261  FAX  530-826-0440 

 
  Jeremy Powell ,  Ed.  D.  
  Superintendent  

 

 
  BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Gabriel Leal, President Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk 
Rod Boone, Trustee Ray Odom, Trustee Genaro Reyes, Trustee 

December 4, 2020 

Notice of Public Hearing  

Hamilton Unified School District Governing Board 

Posted at Hamilton High School, Hamilton Elementary School, and on the District website at 

www.husdschools.org 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Governing Board of the Hamilton Unified School District will hold a 

public hearing as required by Education Code section 42603.1 at its regular board meeting on 

Wednesday, December 9, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. in regards to the following matter: 

Resolution No. 20-21-105 

Resolution to Approve Temporary Interfund Transfers 

Members of the public wishing to give comments at the public hearing will be given an opportunity to 

do so and may submit comments in accordance with District policies and procedures. 

Meeting Time and Location: 

Time: December 9, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86857369649?pwd=ZlhWUHExSW5vSXVIZk1JWmJBZjNvdz09 

 

Meeting ID: 868 5736 9649 

Passcode: board 

 

Dial in by phone: 

        +1 669 900 6833  

Meeting ID: 868 5736 9649 

Passcode: 712410 

 

Page 317

http://www.husdschools.org/
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86857369649?pwd%3DZlhWUHExSW5vSXVIZk1JWmJBZjNvdz09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1605045145181000&usg=AOvVaw0TYrJrI3nvZEr3dKi6TVSI


Hamilton Unified School District 

Resolution No. 20-21-105 

Resolution to Approve Temporary Interfund Transfer 

 

HUSD Board Resolution No. 20-21-105  Page 1 of 3 

 

ON MOTION of Member  __________________, seconded by Member  ________________, 

the following resolution is hereby adopted: 

WHEREAS, the governing board of any school district may direct that moneys held in any 

fund or account may be temporarily transferred to another fun or account of the district for 

payment of obligations as authorized by Education Code Section 42603.1; and 

WHEREAS, the transfer is accounted for as temporary borrowing between funds or 

accounts and shall not be available for appropriation or be considered income to the borrowing 

fund or account; and 

WHEREAS, amounts transferred must be repaid either in the same fiscal year, or in the 

following fiscal year if the transfer takes place within the final 120 calendar days of a fiscal year; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code 42603.1, for the current and subsequent fiscal 

years only, up to 85 percent of the maximum of moneys held in any fund or account during a 

current fiscal year may be transferred; and 

WHEREAS, a school district must first hold a noticed public hearing in connection with 

any transfer of up to 85 percent of the maximum of moneys held in any such fund or account;  

WHEREAS, Hamilton Unified School District (“District”) has fiscal obligations that the 

District must pay from the District’s general fund during the current fiscal year (“Obligations”); 

WHEREAS, based on current projections and State-mandated funding deferrals, the 

District cannot meet the Obligations at the time they are due without temporarily 

supplementing the District’s general fund; 

WHEREAS, District staff recommends that the District’s Board authorize temporary 

transfer(s) of up to (i) $57,000 from FUND 14 (Deferred Maintenance Fund), (ii) $373,000 from 

FUND 17 (Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects), (iii) $184,000 from 

FUND 20 (Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits), and $141,000 from FUND 25 

Page 318



Hamilton Unified School District 

Resolution No. 20-21-105 

Resolution to Approve Temporary Interfund Transfer 

 

HUSD Board Resolution No. 20-21-105  Page 2 of 3 

 

(Capital Facilities Fund), as needed to support the District’s general fund (“Temporary 

Transfer(s)”); 

WHEREAS, District staff recommends that the District’s Board authorize the Temporary 

Transfer(s) be done as needed to pay for the Obligations that must be paid from the District’s 

general fund; 

WHEREAS, the general fund will receive sufficient income from the State of California 

during the current fiscal year to repay the amount of the Temporary Transfer(s). 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Hamilton Unified 

School District, that: 

1. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct. 

2. The Board authorizes the Temporary Transfer(s) up to the amounts indicated 

below from from each fund, as and to the extent needed to the District’s general fund for the 

payment of the District’s obligations, each of which amounts does not exceed the statutory 

limitations; provided that all transfers are approved by the Superintendent or designee: 

FUND 14:  Deferred Maintenance Fund; up to $57,000; 

FUND 17:  Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects;  

up to $373,000; 

FUND 20:  Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits;  

up to $184,000; and 

FUND 25:  Capital Facilities Fund; up to $141,000. 

3. Each Temporary Transfer shall be accounted for as temporary borrowing 

between the indicated Fund and the District’s general fund and shall not be available for 

appropriation or be considered income to the general fund. 

Page 319



Hamilton Unified School District 

Resolution No. 20-21-105 

Resolution to Approve Temporary Interfund Transfer 

 

HUSD Board Resolution No. 20-21-105  Page 3 of 3 

 

4. Any amounts transferred shall be repaid either in the same fiscal year as the 

Temporary Transfer, or in the following fiscal year if the Temporary Transfer takes place within 

the final 120 calendar days of a fiscal year.  The expected source of repayment for all funds is 

2020-2021 Deferred February – June State Aid expected to be repaid no later than December 

30, 2021. 

5. No more than eighty five percent (85%) of the maximum of moneys held in each 

indicated Fund during a current fiscal year shall be transferred. 

6. This Board authorizes the Superintendent or his designee to take all steps and 

perform all actions necessary to execute and implement Temporary Transfer(s) pursuant to this 

Resolution.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board on December ___, 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:   

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF GLENN 

I, ________________________, Clerk of the Governing Board, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by the Board at a 

regularly called and conducted meeting held on said date. 

WITNESSED my hand this ______ day of December, 2020. 

X
C lerk  o f  th e  H U SD  G o vern in g  Bo a rd

 

Page 320



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 

16 A 
Date: 

12-09-2020 
Agenda Item Description: 

Adopt Resolution No. 20-21-105 to Approve Temporary Interfund Transfers 

Background: 

HUSD plans on utilizing internal borrowing of other funds to temporary transfer into the 
General Fund due the state implementing cash deferrals from February through June 
2021. HUSD will be following Education Code Section 42603.1 which is only valid in 
2020-21 and 2021-22. Up to 85% of fund balance can be borrowed. Repayment must 
be within same fiscal year or next fiscal year if transfer takes place within the last 120 
days of fiscal year. The temporary internal borrowing will only take place if necessary 
and shall not be available for appropriation or be considered income to the borrowing 
fund (General Fund). 

Status: 

Pending adoption of Resolution No. 20-21-105 to approve temporary interfund transfers. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Temporary internal borrowing up to $755,000 may take place in March 2021 or later if necessary and repaid in 2021-22. 

Educational Impact: 

n/a 

Recommendation: 
 

Administration recommends the adoption of Resolution No. 20-21-105 to approve temporary interfund transfers. 

 

Page 321



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 

16 B 
Date: 

12-09-2020 
Agenda Item Description: 

Approve 2020-21 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents. 
Background: 
Annually, school districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. 
LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called " 
supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high needs 
students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 

 

This is the form that will be presented to parents explaining the use of these funds and 
the use of additional funds not included in our Learning Continuity Plan. 

Status: 

Pending Board Approval 
Fiscal Impact: 

Stakeholder information on expenditures 
Educational Impact: 

Stakeholder informatoin on expenditures 

Recommendation: 

Approval Recommended 
 

Page 322



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Hamilton Unified School District 

CDS Code: 11765620000000 

School Year: 2020-2021 

LEA contact information: Jeremy Powell, Ed.D., Superintendent 
 
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 
 

Budget Overview for the 2020-21 LCAP Year 

 
This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Hamilton Unified School District expects to receive in 

the coming year from all sources. 
 
The total revenue projected for Hamilton Unified School District is $9,568,592, of which $7,711,013 is 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $553,009 is other state funds, $150,442 is local funds, and 
$1,154,128 is federal funds. Of the $1,154,128 in federal funds, $902,216 are federal CARES Act funds.  
Of the $7,711,013 in LCFF Funds, $1,682,086 is generated based on the enrollment of high needs 
students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students). 
 
  

Page 323



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 
For the 2020-21 school year school districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the 
community to develop a Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan (Learning Continuity Plan). The 
Learning Continuity Plan replaces the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) for the 2020–21 
school year and provides school districts with the opportunity to describe how they are planning to provide 
a high-quality education, social-emotional supports, and nutrition to their students during the COVID-19 
pandemic. 
 

 
This chart provides a quick summary of how much Hamilton Unified School District plans to spend for 

planned actions and services in the Learning Continuity Plan for 2020-2021and how much of the total is 
tied to increasing or improving services for high needs students. 

 
Hamilton Unified School District plans to spend $9,249,083 for the 2020-21 school year. Of that amount, 
$2,501,272 is tied to actions/services in the Learning Continuity Plan and $6,747,811 is not included in the 
Learning Continuity Plan. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the Learning Continuity Plan 
will be used for the following: 
 
Any funds not included in the Learning Continuity Plan will be spent on the following: Recruiting, 
employing, and retaining highly qualified certificated and classified staff; Providing standards-aligned 
instructional materials and professional development; Providing a broad course of study covering all 
required academic subjects that support college and career readiness; Providing a comprehensive, 
research-based English Language Development (ELD) program; Special Education services; Alternative 
educational opportunities;  Providing opportunities for exploration and participation in athletics, visual and 
performing arts (VAPA); Providing parents/guardians opportunities for meaningful engagement; 
Maintaining basic operating services (i.e., facilities, transportation, and technology infrastructure);  
Providing Educational Services, Human Resources, and Business Services        
 

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in in the  
Learning Continuity Plan for the 2020-2021 School Year 

 
In 2020-21, Hamilton Unified School District is projecting it will receive $1,682,086 based on the 
enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Hamilton Unified School District 
must describe how it intends to increase or improve services for high needs students in the Learning 
Continuity Plan.  Hamilton Unified School District plans to spend $1,682,086 towards meeting this 
requirement, as described in the Learning Continuity Plan. 

Page 324



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2019-20 

 
This chart compares what Hamilton Unified School District budgeted in the 2019-20 LCAP for actions and 
services that contributed to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what Hamilton 
Unified School District actually spent on actions and services that contributed to increasing or improving 

services for high needs students in the 2019-20 school year. 
 
In 2019-20, Hamilton Unified School District's LCAP budgeted $1,575,697 for planned actions to increase 
or improve services for high needs students. Hamilton Unified School District actually spent $1,606,465 
for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2019-20. 
 
 

Page 325



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 

16 C 
Date: 

12-09-2020 
Agenda Item Description: 

Approve adjustments to the 8th grade promotion requirements due to COVID-19. 

Background: 
The 8th grade promotion requirements include expectations that are not reasonable given the challenges caused by COVID-19. For example, attendance is 

impacted by illness and technological difficulties, behaviors look and sound different in the virtual or hybrid world, and serving the community is not easily 

accessible due to county and state guidelines and restrictions. 

 

Current Policies: 
 
Attendance: Students must have 95% or better attendance while enrolled in 8th grade. 

Request: Waive this requirement. 

 

Grades: Students must pass ALL classes with a minimum of a D or better/CR each quarter. 

Request: No change. 

 

US Constitution: students must pass test/project. 
Request: No change. 

 

Behavior: Students may not have more than 2 out of school or 3 in-school suspensions. 

Request: To include alternatives to suspension. 

 

Community Service: Students must complete a minimum of 5 hours of community service. 

Request: Waive this requirement. 

Status: 

Pending board approval. 
Fiscal Impact: 

None. 
Educational Impact: 

Supports student success and accountability. 

Recommendation: 

Approve the adjustments to the 8th grade promotion requirements due to COVID-19. 

 

Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Agenda Item Number: 

16 D 
Date: 

12-09-2020
Agenda Item Description: 

Approve New Job Description: Social Services Coordinator. 
Background: 

Previous Job Description for District Case Manager/Parent/Family needs to be updated 
to reflect changes for needs of the students and school district. 

Status: 

Pending approval of job description changes. 
Fiscal Impact: 

New job description to reflect salary range pay change from Range 3 to 4 on the Classified Confidential Salary Schedule. 

Educational Impact: 
Help improve the learning environment for students; provide students, parents and staff with additional support. 

Recommendation: 

Motion by board member to approve request. 

Page 329



    

Page| 1                                               For Board Approval:  December 9, 2020 
  December 3, 2020 JP/JCT 

     

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Job Description 

 

JOB TITLE:  Social Services Coordinator (Bilingual in Spanish Required) 
 

SALARY RANGE: Range 4 on Classified Conf. Salary Schedule DIVISION:  Classified Confidential 

 

DEPARTMENT: District and Site Administration LOCATION:  Various District Sites  

 
REPORTS TO: Superintendent WORK YEAR:  12 months 

 

APPROVED BY: Governing Board DATE:  January 1, 2021 
 

 
SUMMARY: The focus of the Social Services Coordinator is to connect families with support services, both 
within the school district and throughout the County and Region. Under general direction of the District 
Superintendent, the Social Services Coordinator will assist site administration with student and family services 
to improve the learning environment for all students. The Social Services Coordinator will develop and 
coordinate school to home communications for district and site administration; will assist district administrators 
with SARB, SST, 504 (c) and IEP as needed.  

 
DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS: The job requires the ability to work closely with district 
administration, parents, and the community in a collaborative way to support students throughout the district.  
 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (May include, but is not limited to the following.) 
 

1. Work with parents, both at school and in the home environment, to assist parent with improving student 
academic, behavior, health and attendance; 

2. Provide community referrals, linkages, and collaboration with district and community resources to 
address student and family needs; 

3. Coordinate district Student Attendance Review Board (SARB), attend County SARB meetings, and 
assist the District with county issues SARB contracts. 

4. Work with site personnel to determine needs of students and assist with Student Study Team, 504 (c), 
IEP and other coordinated services as needed. 

5. Assist with Academic Parent Teacher Teams. 

6. Coordinate and Support district administration with LCAP, Data and Statistics, other educational 
research as needed. 

7. Provide classroom support and student observations focusing on behaviors as necessary. 

8. Other duties as assigned. 

 
Knowledge of: 

1. Work effectively with parents and students. 

2. Work with and coordinate allied agencies. 

3. Understand and apply social and emotional support systems for families. 

4. Curriculum, instruction, and pupil service trends, strategies, and techniques. 

5. Student activity, behavior management, and campus supervision and control methods, procedures, and 
techniques. 

 

Ability to: 

1. Effectively plan, organize, and coordinate assigned personnel. 

2. Demonstrate a positive leadership model. 

Page 330



    

Page| 2                                               For Board Approval:  December 9, 2020 
  December 3, 2020 JP/JCT 

     

3. Effectively analyze problems, issues, and concerns, and formulate appropriate alternative solutions. 

4. Communicate effectively in oral and written form. 

5. Understand and carry out oral and written directions with minimal accountability controls. 

6. Establish and maintain effective organizational, public, and community relationships. 

7. Work effectively with site and district administration. 

8. Work effectively with teachers and classified staff. 

9. Identify barriers to learning and propose practical solutions to foster a positive educational environment 
 

EXPERIENCE AND/OR EDUCATION: Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide 
the required knowledge and skill is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the required knowledge and skill would 
be: 

1. Experience: One year of full time experience in providing social services environment  is required. Two 

years of full time experience in social work preferred.  
2. Education:  Bachelor degree in social work, sociology, psychology or closely related field required.   

3. Condition of Employment:  Insurability by the District's liability insurance carrier.  

LANGUAGE SKILLS: Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing.  Spanish Speaking required. 

 
MATHEMATICAL SKILLS: Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using whole 
numbers, common fractions, and decimals. Ability to compute rate, ratio, and percent.  
 
REASONING ABILITY: Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out instructions furnished in 
written, oral, or diagram form.  Ability to deal with problems in the workplace with minimal direction.  Maintain 
cooperative working conditions with students, teachers, administrators, co-workers, and community members. 
 
CERTIFICATES AND LICENSES:   

1. Certification Requirement:  Current First Aid and CPR Certifications preferred. 

2. License Requirement:  Possession of a valid California Driver’s License (required by the first day of 

service). 
3. Other Requirements:  Proof of adequate automobile insurance as stipulated by the State of California.  

Must provide a DMV driving record print out that indicates a satisfactory record prior to the time of 
employment. 
 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS: The physical demands here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable accommodations may be 
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.  While performing the duties of 
this job, the employee is regularly required to stand, walk, reach with hands and arms, and stoop or kneel.  The 
employee must occasionally lift and/or move fifty (50) pounds or more.  Specific vision abilities required by this 
job include close vision and the ability to adjust focus. The use of sharp implements and dangerous equipment 
that when improperly used may cause injury or death are utilized while performing these job functions.   
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT:  The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an 
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job.  The employee is continuously 
interacting with public, staff, and students.  The employee frequently will be required to meet multiple demands 
from several people.  Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to 
perform the essential functions. The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate and it may 
occasionally be heavy. While performing the duties of this job, the employee is occasionally exposed to moving 
mechanical parts, is occasionally exposed to wet and/or humid conditions, fumes or airborne particles, extreme 
cold, extreme heat, and minor risk of electrical shock.  

Page 331



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 

16 E 
Date: 

12-09-2020 
Agenda Item Description: 

Accept donation of oak table to District from retired HES teacher, Ruthie Holland. 

Background: 

Ruthie Holland, a former teacher at the Elementary School, donated a 3 x 6' solid oak 
table to the District in October 2020. The table was a gift to Ruthie from the Elementary 
School upon her retirement. She wanted it to come back home and be of use to the 
District since it is a piece of history here. The oak table has an estimated value of $500. 

Status: 

Pending board acceptance. 
Fiscal Impact: 

None. 
Educational Impact: 

Will be of use to students and staff. 

Recommendation: 
 

District recommends accepting the donation of oak table from retired HES teacher, Ruthie Holland. 

 

Page 332



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

Agenda Item Number: 16 F Date: 12-09-2020 

Agenda Item Description: Approve 2020-21 First Interim Report 

Background: 
School districts are required to submit two interim reports during the fiscal year and certify, on the basis 
of the interim report and any additional financial information known, whether the district will be able to 
meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year and for two subsequent fiscal years.  
The First Interim Report represents adjustments to the 2020-21 Original Budget including carryover 
funds from the prior year.  It also represents actual revenues and expenditures received or incurred from 
July 1, 2020 through October 31, 2020. 

Status: Pending approval. 

Fiscal Impact: 
The 2020-21 First Interim Report projects a positive change in general fund balance of $294,509.  HUSD’s 
ending general fund balance is projected to be $1,181,831 as of June 30, 2021.  The Multiyear Projection 
(MYP) currently shows the district will meet its economic reserve requirement in the current and 
subsequent two years.  The 2020-21 First Interim Report meets the definition of a “Positive 
Certification.” 

Educational Impact: 
The effective management of the District’s resources allows our students a safe, rigorous, and engaging 
educational experience that promotes student academic success, respect, and citizenship in a caring 
environment. 

Recommendation: 
Administration recommends the approval of the 2020-21 First Interim Report as presented. 

 

Page 333



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 

16 G 
Date: 

12-09-2020 
Agenda Item Description: 

Approve Developer Fee Report for 2019-2020 
Background: 

The Developer Fee Report is required by Government Code Section 66006 to ensure 
compliance with the collection of developer fees. This annual report must be made 
available to the public and reviewed at a board meeting. 

Status: 

Pending approval. 
Fiscal Impact: 

The 2019-20 fund balance positive change in Fund 25 was $20,544.43. Ending fund balance as of June 30, 2020 was $184,003.75. 

Educational Impact: 

n/a 

Recommendation: 
 

Administration recommends the approval of the 2019-20 Developer Fee Report as presented. 

 

Page 334



Hamilton Unified School District 
Developer Fee Report 

For the 2019-20 Fiscal Year 
Prepared for December 9, 2020 Board Meeting 

 
 

It is a requirement of Government Code Section 66006 that school districts provide certain financial 

information to the public each year.  This annual report must be made available for public review within 

180 days of the close of the previous fiscal year.  In addition, the governing board must review the 

information at its next regularly scheduled board meeting held no earlier than 15 days after the 

information becomes available to the public.  Notice of the time and place of this meeting must be 

mailed at least 15 days prior to the meeting to anyone who has requested such notice.  Developer fees 

are intended to be used for the construction and reconstruction (modernization) of school facilities to 

accommodate students from new development.  Developer fees are not intended for general revenue 

purposes. 

Per Education Code Section 17620, the district collects developer fees for school facilities 

improvements.  Developer fees are placed in Fund 25.  The annual report is an accounting of fees 

collected and expended in the 2019-20 fiscal year as specified in Government Code Section 66006. 

The district provides the following information in compliance with Government Code Section 66006 for 

the 2019-20 fiscal year. 

 

Beginning Balance in Fund 25, 7/1/19  $163,459.32 

Name    Date Paid Amount Paid Type of Development 

Theresa Castillo   12/16/19 $4,570.74 Residential 

Marcus Koehn   1/17/20 $9,221.07 Residential 

Gleason Construction Co. 1/21/20 $5,904.82 Residential 

Transfer to Capay (@ 69%) 1/22/20 ($4,074.33) Residential 

D.H. Slater & Son Inc.  4/27/20 $728.34 Commercial  

 

Total Fees Collected:    $ 16,350.64  

Interest Earned:    $   4,193.79 

Total Revenue:     $ 20,544.43 

Expenditures:     $        0 

Ending Balance in Fund 25, 6/30/20  $184,003.75 

 

Page 335



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Agenda Item Number: 13H Date: December 9, 2020 

 

Agenda Item Description: Memorial Barn Notice of Completion 

Background: On July 28, 2020 the District entered into a contract with North Valley Building Systems, 

Inc. for the construction of the Roy Boone Memorial Livestock Barn for a total cost, including one 

subsequent additive Change Order, of $186,010.00.  The Project began construction on August 25, 

2020, and the final Punch List was completed on December 1, 2020. 

Status: Pending Board Approval 

Fiscal Impact: Total Project Cost of $186,010. Funding to be covered by State CTE Grant Funds 

Educational Impact: Will assist CTE-Agricultural Program at Hamilton High School 

Recommendation: District Staff and Consultants recommend approval 

 

Page 336



 

 

 

  
SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE 

 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the undersigned, HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, the Owner of that certain parcel 
of land situated in Glenn County, State of California, and described as follows: 
 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL 
620 CANAL STREET 

HAMILTON CITY, CA 95951 
 
That the HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES, as Owner of said land, did on July 28, 2020 
enter into an Agreement with NORTH VALLEY BUILDING SYSTEMS, Inc., to fund and oversee the construction of a 
COMMEMERATIVE LIVESTOCK BARN Project at Hamilton High School: for a total price, including subsequent Change 
Orders of $ 186,010.00 (ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY SIX THOUSAND TEN DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS); and that on 
December 1, 2020, the said contract or work of improvement as a whole was actually completed and accepted by the said 
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, the Owner. 
 
That the name and address of the Owner of said property is as follows: 
 

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
      620 CANAL STREET 

HAMILTON CITY, CA 95951 
 

And, the nature of its title to said property is fee simple. 
 
UNSWORN STATEMENT - CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 2015.5 
I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

                                                       
Date:_________________________   Signature:________________________________ 

      JEREMY POWELL, Ed. D., SUPERINTENDENT 
      HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy or validity of the document. 
 
State of California 
County of Glenn 
 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this _____ day of _________, 2020, by __________________, 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) who appeared before me. 

 
 
 
  
 
______________________________________     (Seal) 
  (Signature) 

 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO 

 
NAME:  HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Attention: Jeremy Powell, Ed.D.  
MAILING          PO Box 488 
ADDRESS 620 Canal Street 
CITY, STATE:  HAMILTON CITY, CA 
ZIP CODE 95951 
 

 

Page 337



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 

16 I 
Date: 

12-09-2020 
Agenda Item Description: 

Approve HHS and HUSD Participation Liability Waivers. 
Background: 

Allows voluntary participation in student activities while waiving liability of the school and 
district for damages, personal injury, illness (including but not limited to COVID-19), death 
or property damage. 

Status: 

Pending board approval. 
Fiscal Impact: 

Waives liability and holds harmless the school/district. 
Educational Impact: 

Allows for voluntary participation in student activities. 

Recommendation: 

Recommend approval of HHS and HUSD Participation Liability Waivers. 

 

Page 338



STUDENT’S NAME_______________________ACTIVITY______________________  

 

 
 

VOLUNTARY PARTICIPATION LIABILITY WAIVER 
IN CONSIDERATION FOR BEING PERMITTED BY HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ABOVE ACTIVITY, I HEREBY WAIVE, RELEASE, AND 
DISCHARGE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES FOR PERSONAL INJURY, ILLNESS (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COVID-19) DEATH, OR 
PROPERTY DAMAGE WHICH I MAY HAVE OR WHICH MAY HEREAFTER ACCRUE AS A RESULT OF MY PARTICIPATION IN SAID ACTIVITY. THIS RELEASE 
IS INTENDED TO DISCHARGE IN ADVANCE THE ABOVE DISTRICTS (ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS) FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL 
LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR CONNECTED IN ANY WAY WITH MY PARTICIPATION IN SAID ACTIVITY. I UNDERSTAND I MAY UNDERGO A WELLNESS 
CHECK EACH DAY OF THE ACTIVITY. I UNDERSTAND THAT THE ABOVE ACTIVITY MAY BE OF A HAZARDOUS NATURE AND/OR INCLUDE PHYSICAL 
AND/OR STRENUOUS EXERCISE OR ACTIVITY; AND THAT PARTICIPANTS IN THE ABOVE SPORT OR ACTIVITY OCCASIONALLY SUSTAIN MORTAL OR 
PERSONAL INJURIES AND/OR PROPERTY DAMAGES AS A CONSEQUENCE THEREOF. KNOWING THE RISKS 
INVOLVED, NEVERTHELESS, I HAVE VOLUNTARILY APPLIED TO PARTICIPATE IN SAID ACTIVITY AND I HEREBY AGREE TO ASSUME ANY AND ALL RISKS 
OF INJURY OR DEATH AND TO RELEASE AND HOLD HARMLESS THE ABOVE DISTRICTS, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS. IT IS FURTHER 
UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THIS WAIVER, RELEASE, AND ASSUMPTION OF RISKS IS TO BE BINDING ON MY HEIRS AND ASSIGNS. I FURTHER 
AGREE TO INDEMNIFY AND TO HOLD THE ABOVE DISTRICTS (ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS) FREE AND HARMLESS FROM ANY LOSS, 
LIABILITY, DAMAGE, COST OR EXPENSE WHICH THEY MAY INCUR AS A RESULT OF ANY INJURY AND/OR PROPERTY DAMAGE THAT I MAY SUSTAIN 
WHILE PARTICIPATING IN SAID ACTIVITY. BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT, I ATTEST MY WILLINGNESS TO CONDUCT A WELLNESS CHECK, INCLUDING 
A BODY TEMPERATURE CHECK EACH DAY I PARTICIPATE IN THIS ACTIVITY. 
 
I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THE ABOVE AGREEMENT, WAIVER, AND RELEASE AND FULLY UNDERSTAND ITS CONTENTS. I AM AWARE THAT THIS IS A 
RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND A CONTRACT BETWEEN MYSELF AND THE ABOVE DISTRICTS AND SIGN IT OF MY OWN FREE WILL. 
 
Participant: 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name     Signature      Date 
 
IN CONSIDERATION FOR BEING PERMITTED BY HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL FOR MY DAUGHTER/SON TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ABOVE ACTIVITY, I 
HEREBY WAIVE, RELEASE, AND DISCHARGE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES FOR PERSONAL INJURY, ILLNESS (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED 
TO, COVID-19) DEATH, OR PROPERTY DAMAGE WHICH MY DAUGHTER/SON MAY HAVE OR WHICH MAY HEREAFTER ACCRUE AS A RESULT OF 
HIS/HER PARTICIPATION IN SAID ACTIVITY. THIS RELEASE IS INTENDED TO DISCHARGE IN ADVANCE THE ABOVE DISTRICTS (ITS OFFICERS, 
EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS) FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR CONNECTED IN ANY WAY WITH MY PARTICIPATION 
IN SAID ACTIVITY. I UNDERSTAND MY DAUGHTER/SON MAY UNDERGO A WELLNESS CHECK EACH DAY OF THE ACTIVITY. I UNDERSTAND THAT THE 
ABOVE ACTIVITY MAY BE OF A HAZARDOUS NATURE AND/OR INCLUDE PHYSICAL AND/OR STRENUOUS EXERCISE OR 
ACTIVITY; AND THAT PARTICIPANTS IN THE ABOVE SPORT OR ACTIVITY OCCASIONALLY SUSTAIN MORTAL OR PERSONAL INJURIES AND/OR 
PROPERTY DAMAGES AS A CONSEQUENCE THEREOF. KNOWING THE RISKS INVOLVED, NEVERTHELESS, MY DAUGHTER/SON VOLUNTARILY 
APPLIED TO PARTICIPATE IN SAID ACTIVITY AND I HEREBY AGREE TO ASSUME ANY AND ALL RISKS OF INJURY OR DEATH AND TO RELEASE AND 
HOLD HARMLESS THE ABOVE DISTRICTS, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS. IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THIS WAIVER, 
RELEASE, AND ASSUMPTION OF RISKS IS TO BE BINDING ON MY HEIRS AND ASSIGNS. I FURTHER AGREE TO INDEMNIFY AND TO HOLD THE ABOVE 
DISTRICTS (ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS) FREE AND HARMLESS FROM ANY LOSS, LIABILITY, DAMAGE, COST OR EXPENSE WHICH THEY 
MAY INCUR AS A RESULT OF ANY INJURY AND/OR PROPERTY DAMAGE THAT MY DAUGHTER/SON MAY SUSTAIN WHILE PARTICIPATING IN SAID 
ACTIVITY. BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT, I ATTEST MY WILLINGNESS TO CONDUCT A WELLNESS CHECK ON MY DAUGHTER/SON, INCLUDING A 
BODY TEMPERATURE CHECK, EACH DAY SHE/HE PARTICIPATES IN THIS ACTIVITY. 
 
I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THE ABOVE AGREEMENT, WAIVER, AND RELEASE AND FULLY UNDERSTAND ITS CONTENTS. I AM AWARE THAT THIS IS A 
RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND A CONTRACT BETWEEN MYSELF AND THE ABOVE DISTRICTS AND SIGN IT OF MY OWN FREE WILL. 
 
Parent/Guardian of Participant: 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name     Signature      Date 

Page 339



STUDENT’S NAME______________________ACTIVITY____________________ 

 
 

VOLUNTARY PARTICIPATION LIABILITY WAIVER 
 
IN CONSIDERATION FOR BEING PERMITTED BY THE HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ABOVE ACTIVITY, I HEREBY 
WAIVE, RELEASE, AND DISCHARGE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES FOR PERSONAL INJURY, ILLNESS (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
COVID-19) DEATH, OR PROPERTY DAMAGE WHICH I MAY HAVE OR WHICH MAY HEREAFTER ACCRUE AS A RESULT OF MY PARTICIPATION IN SAID 
ACTIVITY. THIS RELEASE IS INTENDED TO DISCHARGE IN ADVANCE THE ABOVE DISTRICTS (ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS) FROM AND 
AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR CONNECTED IN ANY WAY WITH MY PARTICIPATION IN SAID ACTIVITY. I UNDERSTAND I MAY 
UNDERGO A WELLNESS CHECK EACH DAY OF THE ACTIVITY. I UNDERSTAND THAT THE ABOVE ACTIVITY MAY BE OF A HAZARDOUS NATURE 
AND/OR INCLUDE PHYSICAL AND/OR STRENUOUS EXERCISE OR ACTIVITY; AND THAT PARTICIPANTS IN THE ABOVE SPORT OR ACTIVITY 
OCCASIONALLY SUSTAIN MORTAL OR PERSONAL INJURIES AND/OR PROPERTY DAMAGES AS A CONSEQUENCE THEREOF. KNOWING THE RISKS 
INVOLVED, NEVERTHELESS, I HAVE VOLUNTARILY APPLIED TO PARTICIPATE IN SAID ACTIVITY AND I HEREBY AGREE TO ASSUME ANY AND ALL RISKS 
OF INJURY OR DEATH AND TO RELEASE AND HOLD HARMLESS THE ABOVE DISTRICTS, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS. IT IS FURTHER 
UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THIS WAIVER, RELEASE, AND ASSUMPTION OF RISKS IS TO BE BINDING ON MY HEIRS AND ASSIGNS. I FURTHER 
AGREE TO INDEMNIFY AND TO HOLD THE ABOVE DISTRICTS (ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS) FREE AND HARMLESS FROM ANY LOSS, 
LIABILITY, DAMAGE, COST OR EXPENSE WHICH THEY MAY INCUR AS A RESULT OF ANY INJURY AND/OR PROPERTY DAMAGE THAT I MAY SUSTAIN 
WHILE PARTICIPATING IN SAID ACTIVITY. BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT, I ATTEST MY WILLINGNESS TO CONDUCT A WELLNESS CHECK, INCLUDING 
A BODY TEMPERATURE CHECK EACH DAY I PARTICIPATE IN THIS ACTIVITY. 
 
I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THE ABOVE AGREEMENT, WAIVER, AND RELEASE AND FULLY UNDERSTAND ITS CONTENTS. I AM AWARE THAT THIS IS A 
RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND A CONTRACT BETWEEN MYSELF AND THE ABOVE DISTRICTS AND SIGN IT OF MY OWN FREE WILL. 
 
Participant: 
  
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name     Signature      Date 
 
IN CONSIDERATION FOR BEING PERMITTED BY THE HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR MY DAUGHTER/SON TO PARTICIPATE IN THE 
ABOVE ACTIVITY, I HEREBY WAIVE, RELEASE, AND DISCHARGE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES FOR PERSONAL INJURY, ILLNESS (INCLUDING, 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COVID-19) DEATH, OR PROPERTY DAMAGE WHICH MY DAUGHTER/SON MAY HAVE OR WHICH MAY HEREAFTER ACCRUE 
AS A RESULT OF HIS/HER PARTICIPATION IN SAID ACTIVITY. THIS RELEASE IS INTENDED TO DISCHARGE IN ADVANCE THE ABOVE DISTRICTS (ITS 
OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS) FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR CONNECTED IN ANY WAY WITH MY 
PARTICIPATION IN SAID ACTIVITY. I UNDERSTAND MY DAUGHTER/SON MAY UNDERGO A WELLNESS CHECK EACH DAY OF THE ACTIVITY. I 
UNDERSTAND THAT THE ABOVE ACTIVITY MAY BE OF A HAZARDOUS NATURE AND/OR INCLUDE PHYSICAL AND/OR STRENUOUS EXERCISE OR 
ACTIVITY; AND THAT PARTICIPANTS IN THE ABOVE SPORT OR ACTIVITY OCCASIONALLY SUSTAIN MORTAL OR PERSONAL INJURIES AND/OR 
PROPERTY DAMAGES AS A CONSEQUENCE THEREOF. KNOWING THE RISKS INVOLVED, NEVERTHELESS, MY DAUGHTER/SON VOLUNTARILY 
APPLIED TO PARTICIPATE IN SAID ACTIVITY AND I HEREBY AGREE TO ASSUME ANY AND ALL RISKS OF INJURY OR DEATH AND TO RELEASE AND 
HOLD HARMLESS THE ABOVE DISTRICTS, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS. IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THIS WAIVER, 
RELEASE, AND ASSUMPTION OF RISKS IS TO BE BINDING ON MY HEIRS AND ASSIGNS. I FURTHER AGREE TO INDEMNIFY AND TO HOLD THE ABOVE 
DISTRICTS (ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS) FREE AND HARMLESS FROM ANY LOSS, LIABILITY, DAMAGE, COST OR EXPENSE WHICH THEY 
MAY INCUR AS A RESULT OF ANY INJURY AND/OR PROPERTY DAMAGE THAT MY DAUGHTER/SON MAY SUSTAIN WHILE PARTICIPATING IN SAID 
ACTIVITY. BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT, I ATTEST MY WILLINGNESS TO CONDUCT A WELLNESS CHECK ON MY DAUGHTER/SON, INCLUDING A 
BODY TEMPERATURE CHECK, EACH DAY SHE/HE PARTICIPATES IN THIS ACTIVITY. 
 
I HAVE CAREFULLY READ THE ABOVE AGREEMENT, WAIVER, AND RELEASE AND FULLY UNDERSTAND ITS CONTENTS. I AM AWARE THAT THIS IS A 
RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND A CONTRACT BETWEEN MYSELF AND THE ABOVE DISTRICTS AND SIGN IT OF MY OWN FREE WILL. 
 
Parent/Guardian of Participant: 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name     Signature      Date 

Page 340



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Number: 

16 J 
Date: 

12-09-2020 
Agenda Item Description: 

Approve Spring 2021 Instructional Schedules 
Background: 
The District has worked to meet the social, emotional, and academic needs of our 
students through a combination of Distance Learning and Hybrid in-person learnng 
throughout the Fall 2020 semester. Looking ahead to the Spring Semester, the District 
has sought parent and staff input on which instrcutional schedule we should follow when 
we return January 11th for the Spring 2021 semester. 

Status: 

Pending Board Approval 
Fiscal Impact: 

None 
Educational Impact: 

This will determine the mode of instrcution for all students Pre-School-12th Grade in the District for the Spring 2021 Semester. 

Recommendation: 

Approval Recommended 
 

Page 341



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 
Wednesday, October 21, 2020 

 
5:00 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:00 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

 

As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further notice. 
Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through the 
below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4968739639?pwd=aGNWc0pWdUJOOXBiaXhybnJmQmRQdz09 
 
Meeting ID: 496 873 9639 
Passcode: 929707 
 
Dial in: 
Meeting ID: 496 873 9639 
Passcode: 929707 

 
1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 

a. Call to order and roll call at 5:00 p.m. 
 

_√_ Gabriel Leal, President  _√_ Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk _√_ Rod Boone 

_√_ Genaro Reyes   _√_ Ray Odom 

 
2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 

 
3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 

may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. None. 
 

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 
a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, 

resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees. 
b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation. Government Code section 54957, subdivision (b)(1). Superintendent. 
c. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 
d. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified 

School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394. 
e. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, 

approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency 
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: 
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

f. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr. 
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamitlon Teachers Association. 

 
Report out action taken in closed session. None. 

 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:  Lead by Mr. Reyes 

  

Page 342

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4968739639?pwd=aGNWc0pWdUJOOXBiaXhybnJmQmRQdz09


 
6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 

Motion to adopt the agenda by Mr. Odom 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
7.0 COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 

a. Board Member Comments/Reports. 
i. Mr. Reyes, Mr. Boone and Mr. Leal made comments. 

b. District Reports (written) 
i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (p. 4) 

ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 5) 
iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p.6) 

c. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 
i. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 7) 

ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (p. 8) 
iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 9) 
iv. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 11) 

d. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (p. 12) 
e. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (p. 14) 

 
8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a.  None 
 

9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 
10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 

a. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years (p. 15) 
b. Bond Satus (Fund 21) Update (p.16)  
c. Update on Roy Boone Memorial Barn Project – Mike Cannon (p. 19) 

i. Mr. Cannon noted that there is one change order and that the foundation and base are finished. 
d. HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update – Mike Cannon (p. 20) 

 
11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a. Learning Loss Mitigation Funds (p. 22) 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed the Learning Loss Mitigation Funds. 

 
b. Draft 2021 HUSD Board Meeting Dates for discussion (p. 26) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed the proposed meeting dates for 2021. 
 

12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

a. Public comment was given regarding mitigation funding. 
 

13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 
a. Learning Loss Mitigation Funds (p. 27) 

Motion to approve Learning Loss Mitigation Funds by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
b. Roy Boone Memorial Barn NVBS Project Change Order #1 (p. 28) 

i. Mr. Cannon reviewed the change order. 
Motion to approve NVBS change order by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Page 343



Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 

motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on Wednesday, September 23, 2020 (p. 30) 
b. Minutes from Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, September 23, 2020 (p. 36) 
c. Minutes from Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, October 7, 2020 (p. 38) 
d. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 41) 
e. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually). 

i. Out 
1. Hamilton Elementary School 

a. none 
2. Hamilton High School 

a. none 
ii. In 

1. Hamilton Elementary School 
a. none 

2. Hamilton High School 
a. none 

f. Personnel Actions as Presented: 
i. New hires: 

Maxwell Montgomery Short-Term, Paraeducator/Library Media Technician 
- Position Ending December 2020 

HUSD 

Dianna Camarena Short-Term District Case Manager/Parent/Family 
Coordinator - Position Ending December 2020 

HES 

Rosa Rivera Temporary Office Assistant I - Position Ending 
December 2020 

HES 

Cierra McCarthy Short-Term District Custodian - Position Ending 
December 2020 

HUSD 

 
 

ii. Resignations/Retirement: 
Evelyn Navarro Child Nutrition Assistant (effective 10/23/20) HES 
Raegan Avrit JV Volleyball Coach (effective 10/15/20) HES 
Mark Priano Girls Varsity Basketball Coach HHS 
Elliot Delmatier Girls JV Basketball Coach HHS 

 
Motion to approve consent agenda by Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
15.0   ADJOURNMENT:  7:26 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 344



X
Wendell Lower

HUSD Board Clerk

 

X
Jeremy Powell, Ed.D.

Superintendent

 
 

Page 345



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 
Wednesday, November 4, 2020 

 
5:00 p.m.  Open Public Session of Special Board Meeting 

 

As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further notice. 
Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through the 
below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88287052477?pwd=bEJoVUhYUE5JR043OWMzOGhjR3QxQT09 
 
Meeting ID: 882 8705 2477 
Passcode: board 
 
Phone in: 
        +1 312 626 6799 
Meeting ID: 882 8705 2477 
Passcode: 142621 

 
1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 

a. Call to order and roll call at 5:00 p.m. 
 

_√_ Gabriel Leal, President  _√_ Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk _√_ Rod Boone 

_√_ Genaro Reyes   _√_ Ray Odom 

 
2.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:  Lead by Mr. Boone 

 
3.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 

Motion to adopt the agenda by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
4.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 

heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

a. Public comment was given by a number of attendees expressing concerns regarding the proposed timing and 
high school schedule under the Plan to Reopen Schools under CDPH Red Tier Guidelines. 

b. Board members appreciated the hard work by the staff. 
 

5.0   ACTION ITEMS: 
a. Plan to Reopen Schools under CDPH Red Tier Guidelines 

Motion to Reopen Schools under CDPH Red Tier Guidelines by Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
6.0   ADJOURNMENT: at 7:17 p.m. 

 

Page 346

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88287052477?pwd%3DbEJoVUhYUE5JR043OWMzOGhjR3QxQT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1604765821993000&usg=AOvVaw0JA2aPrZrsM3JLTqhwV6qd


X
Wendell Lower

HUSD Board Clerk

 

X
Jeremy Powell, Ed.D.

Superintendent

 

Page 347



Hamilton Unified School District 

 

 

Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints 
(Education Code § 35186) 

 

 

Person completing this form:  Jeremy Powell Title:  Superintendent 

 

 

Quarterly Report Submission Date:           January 2020 

                                                (check one)     April 2020 

       July 2020 

       October 2020 

 

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting:   

 

Please check the box that applies: 

  

 No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter 

indicated above. 

 

 Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter 

indicated above.  The following chart summarizes the nature and 

resolution of these complaints. 

 

 Total No. of 

Complaints 

No. Resolved No. Unresolved 

Textbooks and 

Instructional Materials 

 

0 

  

Teacher Vacancy or 

Misassignment 

 

0 

  

Facilities Conditions  

0 

 

 

 

 

 

TOTALS 0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Dr. Jeremy Powell, Superintendent 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Date Signed 

 

December 9, 2020 

Page 348



HES School Site Council Minutes 

11/10/2020 

6:15 PM  

Item 1: Welcome and introductions 

Item 2: Establish Quorum 

Parents present: Rocio Jauregui, Teresa Alvarado, Ana Lozano, Fabiola Mata, Maria Guerra,  

Staff present: Kathy Thomas, Maribel Hernandez, Jenny Firth, Maggie Sawyer, Aaron Johnson, Ariel Ellis,  

Item 3: verification of posting of agenda 11/6/2020  

Item 4: Public comment: 

Jenny Firth shared what’s happening with the Middle School and how much she appreciated having the Car 

Parade. 

Item 5: Approval of Minutes 

Ariel motioned and Maribel seconded the October minutes.  

Item 6: Prepare for elections 

Explanation of the SSC and the roles, responsibilities and the purpose of the body. Ana Lozano was nominated as 

chair by J. Firth. Ana Lozano nominated Teresa Alvarado for Vice Chair. Rocio was nominated by Maggie Sawyer to 

serve as secretary.  

Item 7: Attendance and Engagement Update 

Mrs. Thomas shared current Attendance percentages for all grade levels and talked about the difference between 

ADA and period attendance/engagement. There was a question about tardies and when students are marked 

absent. It was explained that right now tardies are flexible due to the car traffic and drop offs---there is a 5 minute 

grace being asked of teachers, but tardies are being tracked by classroom teachers.   

Item 8: LCFF (Local Control Funding Formula) Presented by Dr. Powell by invitation of council members.  

Dr. Powell explained that there is a base grant based on ADA (ADA explained by Mrs. Thomas in Item 7). The high 

school receives slightly more because of additional costs needed at the HS level.  All schools do receive the same 

amount of money but there is supplemental funding based on students receiving free/reduced lunch qualification, 

as well as special populations—EL, Special Education, homeless which is a supplemental/concentration grant. The 

Elementary school does qualify for this additional funding due to their student population, but the HS does not get 

this additional funding. This additional funding is targeted to support students of need.   

 

Parent asked a question if this is broken down to grade level, but it is a “whole school” funding.  

o Title I is a federal program based on Free and Reduced numbers.  

o COVID $: expenditures for cleaning, tent, etc. 

 NOT permanent.  

Additional staffing 

Any resources needed to serve during the pandemic.  

 

Page 349



Rocio asked if the COVID $ is not permanent, what about the current resources that our school needs? 

Will these resources continue next semester and next year? Dr. Powell explained that this is not a funding 

that we get, but not sure of how long this situation will last, and we could have the same issues next year 

to work with, for example, the liaison position was cut, but brought back with the COVID $. This is an 

“integral and key” position at the Elementary School. Title I money could be spent for this kind of resource 

and the SCC has a voice in these kinds of decisions.  

 

Members thanked Dr. Powell for explaining the funding and have a clearer understanding of how our 

school receives its money and how it can be spent.  

Item 9: Parent feedback shared by Mrs. Thomas regarding the return to in-person instruction. Feedback is positive 

and complimentary of the district, teachers and staff.  

Action Items: 

Item 10: Nominate and Elect Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary. 

Ana Lozano was nominated as chair by J. Firth. Ana Lozano nominated Teresa Alvarado for Vice Chair. Rocio was 

nominated by Maggie Sawyer to serve as secretary. All in favor. Motion carried.  

Item 11: Approve Addition to By Laws 

Council Agreements overview--take action at next meeting 

 -bring multiple perspective 

 -share open and honest 

 -stay on agenda 

 -assume positive intent 

 -respect commitment of role: attend all meetings, arrive on time, and come prepared 

 -keeping students at the center 

Maggie Sawyer made motion and Ariel Ellis seconded. All in Favor. Motion carried. 

Item 12: Approve Site  Budget 

Ana Lozano made motion. Maggie Sawyer seconded. All in Favor. Motion carried.  

Item 13: Approve SSC dates and times 

Approve SSC dates. Maribel Hernandez seconded. All in favor. Motion carried.  

Maggie Sawyer made motion and Ariel Ellis seconded. 

Meeting adjourned 7:05 PM 

 

Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378




